
NAVJN NAVAR& COMPANY 

[Format of covering letter of the Annual Audit Report to be filed with the Stock 
Exchanges under Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as r.r SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/15/2015 
Dated 30 November, 2015] 

ANNEXURE- X 

FORMA 
(For Audit Report with Unmodified Opinion of Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statement Format) 
1 Name of Company DHP INDIA LIMITED 

fCIN- L65921WB1991PLC051555] 
2 Annual Financial Statement 3fn MARCH, 2020 

for the Year Ended 
3 Type of Audit observation UN-MODIFIED OPINION 
4 Frequency of observation REPETITIVE AS PER STATUTORY 

PROVISIONS AND SATISFACTORY 
5 To be signed by -

• CEO/Managing Director ASHEESB DABRIW AL 
[CEO and Managing Director) 

[DIN : 00044783) 
Place : Kolkata, Dated : 30/06/2020 

• CFO 
ASHOK KUMAR SINGH 
[Chief Financial Officer] 

Place : Kolkata, Dated : 30/06/2020 

• Auditor of the Company 
NAVIN NAYAR 

[Statutory & Income Tax Auditor] 
Proprietor of Mis. NA VIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

[Firm Regd. No. 317117E & Membership No. 053267] 
Place : Kolkata, Dated : 30/06/2020 

UDIN : 20053267 AAAAAN3780 

• Audit Committee Chairman 
BUDDHADEB BASU 

[Chairman of the Audit Committee] 
[DIN : 00061771] 

Place : Kolkata, Dated : 30/06/2020 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L65921WB1991PLC051555 

Registered Office : l 0, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071 
Phone No: (+91(033) 2229-5735/7995/9626/7929, Fax No: +9 1(033) 2217-2751 

E-mail : info@dhpindia.com, Website: www.dilindia.co.in 

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE DATED 30TH JUNE, 2020 FOR THE29T11 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 
COMPANY TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, THE 28m DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020 AT 11 .00 A.M. 

I. Name and Registered Address o f Sole/First named Member : 

2. Joint HoldersName ( If any) 

3. Registered Folio No./ DP ID & Client ID* : 
(*Applicable to investors holding shares in demat form) 

4. Number of 8quity Shares Held : 

Dear Shareholder, 

Subject: Process and manner for availing E-voting facilitv 

Pursuant to Provisions of Section I 08 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administrution) 
Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 ofSEBl 
(Listing Obligations and Dlsclos~re Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide E-voting facility to the 

members to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) will 
be held on Monday, the 281i> September, 2020 at I 1.00 A.M. at CALCUTTA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, 18H, Park Street, 

Stephen Court~ Kolkata - 700 071. 

The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services ( India) Limited (CDSL) to provide thee-voting focility. The 
e-voting facility is available at the link hllps://www.cvolingindia.com. 

Tb El e • ectrontc _olme _art1cu ars are set out e ow: b I 

EVSN User 10 PAN / Sequence No. 
(F.-Voting Sequence 

Number) 

200717004 

Th E -votm11 e ac, 1tv w, e ava, a e urmg I e o owmg votm11 neno f T ·11 b ·1 bl d . h ti II . d 

Remote e-Voting Start On Remote e-Voting End On 
Friday, 251

h September, 2020 from 10:00 a.m. (1ST) Sunday,27th September, 2020 till 05:00 p.m. (1ST) 

Please read the instructions mentioned in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting before exerc ising your vote. 

Registered Office : 
10, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071. 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L6592l~LC0Sl555 

Date: 2ih July, 2020 .f;-}A ,,1:}\ 
!: . \ ,: -, :, 
i -;~--~\ {• ·1:: 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
SURUCJil TIW ARI 

Company Secretary-cum-Compliance Officer 

Encl : AGM Notice (with Notes) / Attendance Slip / Proxy Form/ Ballot Form / Annual Report / AGM Route MAP 
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NOTICE 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L65921WBl99IPLC051555 

Registered Office: JO, Middleton Row, Kolkata -700 071 
E-mail: info(a)dhpindia.com, Website: www.dilindia.co.in 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Twenty-Ninth Annual General Meeting of the Members of 
DHP INDlA LIMITED (the Company) will be held on Monday, the 2st11 September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. 
at CALCUTTA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, 18H, Park Street, Stephen Court, Kolkata - 700 071, to 
transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS : Ordinary Resolutions : 
Item No. (1) - Adoption of Standalone Audited Financial Statements: 

To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Fihancial Statements (including the Statement 
of Financial Results, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in 
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flow and Other Financial Reports) of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2020 and the Report oft.he Board of Directors ("the Board") and Auditors thereon. 

'·Resolved that, the audited financ ial statement (including the Statement of Financial Results, the Balance 
Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flow 
and Other Financial Reports) of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and the report of 
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon as c irculated to the members, be and hereby consideted and 
adopted.'' 

Item No. (2) - Declaration of Dividend : 
To declare a final dividend of Rs.2.50 per equity share (@25% of Share Capital of the Company) for the 
year ended March 31 , 2020. 

"Resolved that a tina[ dividend at rate of Rs.2.50 (Two rupees and fifty paisa only) per equity share of 
Rs. I 0/- (Ten rupees) each fully paid-up of the Company i.e. @25% of paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company, as recommended by the Board of Directors, be and is hereby declared for the financial year 
ended March 31 , 2020 and the same be paid out of the profits of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2020." 

Item No. (3}-Appointment of Sri Janak Bhardwaj (DIN:00047641) as a director liable to retire by rotation : 
To appoint a directors in place of Sri Janak Bhardwaj (DIN: 00047641 ), who retires by rotation and, 
being eligible, seeks re-appointment. 

Explanation : Under the te rms of their appointment, our Executive Director Sri Janak Bhardwaj and our a 
Non-Executive and woman Director Smt. Anjum Dhandhania are subject to retirement by rotation. Last 
year, Smt. Anjum Dhandhania was subject to retirement by rotation and was appointed by shareholders. To 
the extent that Sri Janak Bhardwaj is required to retire by rotation, he would need to be re-appointed as 
Executive Director. 

Therefore. shareholders are requested to consider and, ,f thought fit, to pass With or Without 
modilication(s), the following resolution as an ordinary resolution ~ 

"Resolved that, pursuant to provisions of Section 152 read w i1h Schedule IV and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 20 13, the approval of the members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Sri Janak Bhardwaj (DIN : 0004 7641) as a Executive Director, to 
the extent that he is required to retire by rotation." 

Com. page - l 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L65921WB1991PLC051555 

Registered Office: 10, Middleton Row. Kolkata - 700 071 
E-mail : info@dhpindia.com, Website : www.dilindia.co.in 

NOTICE (Continuing) 

SPECIAL BUSINESS : Ordinary Resolutions : 
Item No. (4) - To approve the Re-appointment of Sri Surajit Raha (DIN : 07019436), as a Non-Executive, 

Independent Director (Non Rotational Director) of the Company, who retire on September 27, 2020, 
offer himself for re-appointment for a new terms of approximate 5 years from September 28, 2020 to 
March 31 , 2025. 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) of the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution : 

"Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV, 161 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any Statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time bcin,g in force) and applicable Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20 I 5. as may be in force from time 
to time, Sri Surajit Raha (DIN : 07019436) a Non-Executive and Independent Director of the Company. 
who will retire on September 27, 2020. and seeks re-appointment for a further period of approximate 5 
(five) years from September 28, 2020 to March 31, 2025, and who has submitted a declaration that he 
meets the criteria for independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for re­
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Non-Executive and Independent Director (Non-Rotational 
Director) of the Company for a further period of approximate 5(five) years with effect from September 28, 
2020 to March 31. 2025.'' 

Registered Office : 
10, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071. 
Corporate Identity Number (Cl~921WBI991PLC05l555 By Order of the Board of Directors 

-~V• l;~ SURUCHI T[W ARI 
Dated : 30m June, 2020 rf~r· ,-.,--1 ,'f;-:: Company Secretary-cum-Compliance Officer 

\\ <-. t~ ' . ,· 
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Enclosed : Notes (forming part of Notice) 



NOTES: 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L65921WB199IPLC051555 

Registered Office : I 0, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071 
E-mail : i11fu1i'l\1hpindiu.cum, Website: www.dilindia.co.in 

l) As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has permitted convening the Annual General 
Meeting through Video Conferencing or Other Audio Visual, without the physical presence 
of the members at the MCA Circulars. Now as from our past experience and records of 
attendance in AGM the tota l presence only 20-25 recorded in AGM, hence the Board 
Decided to hold the Annual General Meeting in physical presence and not exercise the 
relaxation issued by MCA for holding AGM without physical presence as members will be 
able to maintain social distancing at all times during AGM. 

2) The Company's Statutory Auditors, Mis. Navin Nayar & Company, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 32895IE), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 
period of 5 (Five) consecutives years from Financial Year 2018-19 to financial year 2022-23 
(from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2023) at the AnnuaJ General Meetings ('•AGM") of the 
Members held on September 24, 2018 on a remuneration mutually agreed upon by the 
Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors. 

Their appointment was s ubject to ratification by the Members at every subsequent AGM 
held after the AGM held on September 24, 2018. Pursuant to the amendments made to 
section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Companies (Amendments) Act, 2017 effective 
from May 7, 2018, the requirement of seeking ratification of the members of the appointment 
of the Statutory Auditors has been withdrawn from the statute. 

In view of the above, ratification by the members for continuance of their appointment at this 
AGM is not been sought. The Statutory Auditors' have given a confirmation to the effect that 
they are eligible to continue with their appointment and that they have not been disqualified 
in any manner from continuing as Statutory Auditors. The remuneration payable to the 
Statutory Auditors shall be determined by the Board of Directors based on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

3) The Explanatory Statement setting out material facts, pursuant to section I 02 of the Companies 
Act. 20 13, Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings and Regulation 36 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in 
respect of the Special Business under item Nos. 4 of the accompanying Notice is a1111e.xed hereto, 

4) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND ANO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on behalf 
of Members not exceeding 50 (Fifty) in number and holding in aggregate not more than 10% (Ten 
Pen:~ent) of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more 
than I 0% (Ten Percent) of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person cannot act as a proxy for any other person or 
shareholder. Proxies in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company at IO. Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071 , duly completed and signed, not less than 
forty-eight hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting. Proxies submitted on 
behalf of the Companies, Societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolutions/authority. 
as applicable. A Proxy Form is t1m1exetl to this Notice. 

5) Corporate. Members are requ ired to send a certified true copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to 
secti.on 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorising their representatives to attend and vote on 
their behalf at the Annual General Meeting. 

Com.page - ] 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES (continuing) : 

6) Members. Proxies and Authorised Representatives are requested to bring to the Annual General 
Meeting. the attendance slip enclosed herewith, duly completed and signed mentioning their in 
details of their DP ID and Client ID/Folio No. and Number of Shares holding. Duplicate 
attendance slip or copies of the Report and Accounts will not be made available at the AGM 
venue. Members seeking any information or clarification on the Accounts are requested to send. fn 
writing, queries to the Company, at least one week before the date of the meeting. Replies will be 
provided, in respect of such written queries, only at the meeting. 

7) A brief resume to each of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed at this AGM, nature of their 
expertise in specific functional areas. names of companies in which they hold directorship and 
membership/chairmanships of Board Committees. Shareholding and relationship between directors 
inter se as stipulated under Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obi igations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, and other requisite in formation as 
per clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard-2 of Annual General Meetings, are provided in Annexu re­
l. 

8) Electronic copy of the Annual Report for r-.Y. 2019-20 (Year Ended March 31. 2020) is uploaded 
on the Company's website at www.dilindia.co.in and is being send to all the Members whose email 
IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes, unless 
any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same. Members are requested to support 
Green Initiative by registering/updating their email addresses with the Depository Participant (in 
case of shares in dematerialized form) or with link in M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited, 
3A, Acuckland Place, i 11 Floor, Room No. 7 A & 78, Kolkata- 700017, the Registrars and Transfer 
Agents ('·RTA ,.) of the Company (in case of shares held in physical form). Electronic copy of the 
Notice of the Twenty-Ninth AGM is uploaded on the Company's website at www.dilindia.co.in 
and also on the website of Central Depository Services (India) Limited at www.evot ineindia.com 
of the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with attendance slip 
and Proxy Form and same is being send to all the Members whose emai l IDs are registered with 
the Company/Depository Participant(s) fo r communication purposes, unless any Member has 
requested for a physical copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their email 
address, physical copies of this Notice and the Annual Report for FY 2019~20 (Year Ended March 
31, 2020) are being send through permitted mode. For any communication the Members may also 
send requests to the Company's email ID at: info@dhpindia.com . 

9) Relevant documents refer to in the accompanying Notice and in the Explanatory Statement are 
opened for inspection by the Members at the Companies Registered Office : I 0, Middleton Row, 
Kolkata - 700 071 on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) between 
11 :00 AM I :00 PM up to the date of this AGM and also at the AGM. 

I 0) The Securities and Exchange Board of India C'SEBI") has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAt--:) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are. therefore. requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with 
whom they maintain their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form should submit 
their PAN to the RTA of the Company or Company. 

Con/. page - J 
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DllP INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES (continuing) : 

11) SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and further amendment 
vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 2018, requests for 
effecting transfer of securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall 
not be process from Apri l I, 2019 unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with the 
depositories. Therefore, Shareholders are requested to take action to dematerialize the Equity 
Shares of the Company, promptly. 

12) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 
from Tuesday, the 22nd September, 2020 to Monday, the 28th September, 2020 (both days 
inclusive), for determining the names of Members eligible for dividend on Equity Shares, if 
declared at the AGM. 

13) The dividend on Equity Shares proposed Rs.2.50 per Equity Shares, if declared at the AGM will be 
paid on or after 28th September, 2020 to Members whose names appear on the record of Depositories 
[National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (lndia) Limited] on as at the 
end of business day hours o~ Monday, the 2 )st September, 2020 (for shares held in demat mode) and 
in the Register of Members of the Company (for shares held in physical mode) updated as on the end 
of business day hours on Monday, the 21 st September, 2020. The dividend w ill be paid to the 
Members within the stipulated time. 

14) Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
transferred on due dates, all unclaimed dividends up to the financial years ended 31st March, 20 I 0 
to Investor Education and Protection Fund ("said Fund'') established by the Central Government. 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, the Company has 
uploaded the details of the unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company on the website 
of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (www.mca.gov.in). During the current financial year ended 
from April I, 2019 to March 31, 2020, no amount will fall due for transfer to the said Fund. Those 
Members, who have not encashed their dividends for the FY 20 12-13 to FY 2018-19, are requested 
to claim it from the Company immediately. 

Information in respect of such unclaimed dividend when due for transfer to the said Fund is given 
lkiml- Financial Date of declaration Last date for claiming Due date for transfer 

No. Year Ended of dividend unpaid dividend to IEP Fund 
I. 31/03/20 13 23/09/2013 22/09/2020 21/10/2020 
2. 31/03/2014 19/09/2014 18/09/202 1 17/10/2021 
3. 3 1/03/2015 28/09/2015 27/09/2022 26/10/2022 
4. 3 1/03/2016 19/09/20 I 6 18/09/2023 17/10/2023 
5. 31 /03/2017 20/09/2017 19/09/2024 18/10/2024 
6. 3 I /03/20 I 8 24/09/20 I 8 23/09/2025 22/10/2025 
7. 3I /03/2019 20/09/2019 I 9/09/2026 18/10/2026 

Co111. page - 4 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES (co11tifluing) : 

15) Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 20 16, 
as amended from time to time, all Equity Shares of the Company on which dividend has not been 
paid or c la imed for seven consecutive years or more on February 19, 20 18 shal l be transferred by 
the Company to Investor Education and protection Fund ("IEPF''). 

During the current financial year ended from April I, 20 19 to March 31, 2020, no shares will fall 
due for transfer to the said Fund. The Company has also written to the concern Shareholders 
intimating them their particulars of the Equity Shares due for transfer. This details are also 
avai lable on the Company's website www.d ilindia.co.in . No claim shall lie against the Company 
in respect of this Equity Shares post their transfer to IEPF. Upon transfer, the Shareholders will be 
able to c laim this Equity Shares only from the IEPF Authority by making and online application, 
the detai ls of which are avai lable at www. iepCgov.in. Al'I correspondence should be addressed to 
the RTA of the Company Mis. Niche Technologies Private Limited, 3A, Auckland Place, J1h Floor, 
Room No. 7 A & 78, Kolkata-700017, Tel : 033-22806616, Email : nichetechplla).nichetechpl.com. 

16) The cutoff date for the purpose of determining the members e ligible for participation in remote e­
voting (e-voting from a place other than venue of the AGM) and voting at the AGM is September 
2 l, 2020. Please note that Members can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either by voting at the 
meeting or remote e-voting. lf Members voted in remote e-voting, then they should not vote at the 
meeting and vice versa. However, once an e-vote on a resolutions is casted by a Member, such 
Member is not permitted to change it subsequently or cast the vote again. Members who have cast 
their vote by remote e-voting prior to the date of the AGM can attend the meeting and partic ipate 
in the meeting, but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

17) Any person, who acquired shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after 
dispatched of the Notice, hold shares as of the cut-off date i.e. September 21 , 2020, may obtain the 
login ID and password by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. However, if the 
Member is already registered with CDSL, for remote e-voting, then he/she can use his/her existing 
user ID and password for casting the vote. Only a Member which entitled to vote shall exercise 
his/her/its vote through e-voting and any recipient of this Notice who has no voting rights as on the 
cut-off date should treat the same as intimation only. 

18) fn case of Joint holders attending the meeting, the joint holders who is highest in the. order of names 
wi ll be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

19) A route map showing directions to the venue of the Twenty-Ninth AGM is given at the end of this 
Notice as per the requirement of the Secretaria l Standard-2 on AGM. 

20) At present the Company's Equity Shares are listed on the Stock Exchanges at Kolkata and 
Mumbai and listing fees for the current financial year 2020-202 1 of Mumbai Stock Exchange 
have been paid and awaiting Bills from Kolkata Stocls. Exchange for payment. Members are 
informed that the scripts of the Company have been activated both in Central Depositories Services 
Limited (CDSL) and National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and may be dematerialised 
under the ISIN •- IN E 590D O IO 16. The custodian fees for the current financial year 2020-2021 
have been paid to CDSL & NSDL. 

Cont. page 5 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 
NOTES (colllinubig) : 

21) Voting through Electronic means : 
I) Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reg'ulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, 
the Company is pleased to provide its Members the facility of remote e-voting to exercise their 
right to vote at the Twenty-Ninth Annual General Meeting (AGM). The business may be 
transacted through e-voting services rendering by Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL). 

The Board has appointed Mr. Sushil Tiwari, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 
6 I 99 & Certificate of Practice No. 1903) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and 
voting process at the Twe nty-Ninth AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

II) The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under : 
( i) The voting period begins on Friday, September 25, 2020 (10.00 a.m. 1ST) and ends on Sunday, 

September 27, 2020 (5.00 p.m. 1ST). The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter. During this .period, shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form 
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Monday, September 2 1, 2020, may 
cast their vote electronically. 

(ii) Members holding shares in physical or in demat form as on the cut-off date (record date} of 
Monday, September 2 1, 2020, shall only be eligible fore-voting. 

(iii) The shareholders should log to thee-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting 
period. 

(iv) Click on "Shareholders/Members'' tab. 

(v) Now Enter your User ID: 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL : 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client JD, and 
c. Members hold ing shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

(vii) If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

(viii) If you arc a first time user follow the steps given below. 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form I 
PAN Enter your 10 d igit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number which is printed on 
Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN field. 

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details o r Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

Bank Details recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

or Date of • If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company then 

Birth (DBD) please enter the Member ID I folio number in the Dividend Bank Details 
field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

Cont. page 6 



; 6 : 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES (continui11g) : 

(ix) Afte r entering these details appropriate ly, c lick on "SUBMIT" tab. 

(x) Members hold ing shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password 
Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter the ir login password in the 
' New Password' field . Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential. 

(xi) For Members ho lding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on 
the resolutions conta ined in this Notice. 

(xii) A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-Voting or by ballot. lfa 
Member cast vote by both modes, then voting done through e-Voting sha ll prevail and 
ballot shall be treated as in val id. 

(xiii) Click on the EYSN for the relevant Company Name i.e.<DHP JNDlA LIMITED> on which 
you choose to vote. 

(xiv) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUT ION DESCRIPTION" and against the same 
the option ·1YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as des ired . The option YES 
implies tha t you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 

(xv) Click on the " RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details . 

(xvi) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, c lick on ·'SUBMIT". A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, c lick on "OK'', else to 
change your vote, c lick on "CANCEL" and accordingly m odify your vote. 

(xvii) Once you "CON FIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be a llowed to modify your 
vote. 

(xvi ii) You can a lso take a print of the votes cast by cl icking on "Click here to print" option on the 
Voting page. 

(xix) If Demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User lD and the 
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the detai ls as prompted by the 
system. 

(xx) Sha reholders ca n also cast their \1otes using CDSL's mobile app m-voting availa ble for 
android based mobiles. The m-voting app can be downloaded from Google Play 
Stores. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store 
and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted 
by the mobile a pp while voting on your mobile. 

Com. page - 7 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 
NOTES (contiuuing) : 

(xxi) Notes for Non-rod ividual Shareholders & Custodians~ 
• Non-Tndividual shareholders (i.e . other than Individuals, HUF, N RI etc.) and Custodian 

are required to log on to https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as 
Corporates. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Fonn bearing the stamp & signed of the entity 
shou ld be emailed to helpdesk .evoting@cdsl india.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin 
login and password. The Compl iance User would be able to link the account(s) for 
which they wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to 
helpdesk.evotingrq.cdsl india.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able 
to cast their vote. 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they 
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any. should be uploaded in PDF format in the 
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

(xxii ) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (' ·FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingind ia.com under 
he lp section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

(xxiii) The result dec lared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be avajlable at the Registered 
Office of the Company and placed on the Company's website www.di li ndia.co.in and on 
website of CDSL e-voting www.cvotingindia.com within two days o f the passing of the 
Resolutions at the Annual General Meeting of the Company and will also be communicated 
to Bombay Stock Exchange l., imited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, where the 
shares of the Company are listed. 

22) Institutional Members / Bod ies Corporate (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, N RI etc .. ) are required 
to send scanned copy (PDF/J PG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. 
iogether with attested spec imen signature of duly authorized signatory (ies) who are authorized to 
vote through e-mail at sush il tiwari assoc iateslalrediffinail.com (Scrutiniser E-mail 10) with a copy 
marked to helpdesk.evotin!..!tii1cdslindia.com on or before Saturday, 26th September, 2020. up to 
3.00 p.m. without which the vote shall not be treated as valid. 

23) The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up Equity Share 
Capita l of the Company as on the cut-off date of Monday, 2 1st September, 2020. A person who is 
not a member as on cut-off date should treat this notice for information purpose only. 

24) The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off date of 
Monday, 2 l st September, 2020. T he fac il ity of e-voting would be provided once for every folio / 
client id, irrespective o f the number of joint holders. 

25) Since the Company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by e lectronic 
means. shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date of Monday, 21 st September, 2020, and not casting their vote 
electronically, may only cast their vole at the Annual General Meeting. 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 
NOTES (contin11i11g) : 

26) Notice of the AGM along with attendance s llp, proxy form along with the process instructions and 
the manner of conducting e-voting is being sent electronically to all the members whose e-mail IDs 
are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s). For members who request for a hard 
copy and for those who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the same are 
being sent through the permitted mode. 

27) Lnvestors who became members of the Company subsequently lo the dispatch ofthe Notice / Email 
and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, 21st September, 2020, are requested to 
send the written / email communication to the Company at info@dhpindia.com by mentioning 
their Folio No./DP ID and C lient ID to obtain the Login-ID and Password fore-voting. 

28) Mr. Sushi! Tiwari, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 6199 & Certificate of 
Practice No. I 903). has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process 
and voting at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion 
of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the 
employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of the 
AGM, a consol idated scrutinizer' s report o f the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the 
result of the voting forthwith. 

29) Since e-voting facility (includ ing Ballot Forms) is providecl to the Members pursuant to the 
provisions of Section I 08 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, voting by show of hands are not allowed. 

30) The Chairman shalL at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to 
be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of " Ballot Paper" for all those 
members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting 
facility. 

Registered Office : 
10, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071. 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L65921 WB1991 PLC051555 

Date: 30th June, 2020 
~ ~ tf~"~- ~~t\, 

1,\ ~~ Ktq ~ 1 \:;} ,'1 

.. .. ~- \ 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
SURUCHI TIW ARl 

Company Secretary-cum-Compliance Officer 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Corporate Identity Number(CIN): L65921WB199IPLC05I555 

Registered Office : IO. Middleton Row. Kolkata - 700 071 
E-mail : info!tildhpindia.com, Website : www.dilindia.co.in 

Explanatory Statement in respect of the Special Business pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 Secretarial Standard - 2 on Annual General Meetings. 

and Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(Annexure as referred to in the note No. 3 on Notice and Item No. 4 of the Notice) 

Item No. 4 

The Company had. pursuant to provisions of Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in respect of Special Business 
appointed Mr. Surajit Raha, as Independent Director at various times. in compliance with the requirements 
of the clause and retire on September 27, 2020, and seeks re-appointment for a further period of 
approximate 5 years from September 28, 2020 to March 31, 2025. Pursuant to the provisions of section 
149 ofthe Companies Act, 20 13 (Act). which came into effect from April I, 2014, every listed company is. 
required to have at least one-third of the total number of directors as independent directors, who are not 
liable to retire by rotation. 

The Management Committee has recommended the re-appointment of these directors as Independent 
Directors for a further period of approximate live year of tenure from September 28. 2020 to March 31 , 
2025. 

Mr. Surajit Raha, Non-executive and Independent Directors of the Company. have given a declaration to 
the Board that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under section 149(6) of the Act. In the 
opinion of the Board, each of these directors fulfi ll the conditions specified in the Act and Rules framed 
there under for appointment as Independent Director and they are independent of the management. 

Relevant details relating to appointment of Mr. Surajit Raha as required by the Companies Act. 2013, 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 on 
AGM are provided as an "Annexure-1 '' to this Notice. 

In Compliance with the provisions of section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of 
these directors as Independent Directors is now being placed before the Members for their approval. 

The Directors therefore recommend passing of the Ordinary Resolution contained in Item No. 4 of tht­
accompanying Notice. 

Except Mr. Surajit Raha. none of the directors is interested in this resolution. 

This also constitutes an extract in terms of section I 02 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Registered Office : 
10, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071. 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L6592~~~~~991 PLC051555 

,:\;vl\ l/ By Order of the Board of Directors 
SURUCHI TIWARI Date : 30th June, 2020 ft:~ ... .J _. ~-.-. , 

\· :..: ., . . ~ ·~ ~. ~ .. ~ -': Company Secretary-cum-Compliance Officer 



DHP INDIA LIMlTED 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L65921WBl991PLC051 555 

Registered Office : 10, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 07 1 
E-mail : info,d dhpindia.com, Website: www.dilindia.co.in 

"Annexurc- l " 

Additional Information of Directors seeking re-appointment at the 
Twenty-Ninth Annual General Meeting as required under Regulation 

36{3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 

(Annexure as referred to in the note No. 7 on Notice and Item No. 3 & 4 of the Notice) 
Name of Director Sri Janak Bhardwaj Suraiit Raha 

Director Identification Number DIN - 0004 764 1 DIN - 07019436 

Date of Birth 05-07-1 963 25-02-1967 

Date of First Appointment 25-06-1998 08-12-2014 
Educational Qualification D.M.E. Graduate 

Expertise in specific func tional areas Service Service 

C hairmans hip/ Membership of None Member of Audit Committee. 
Committees in this Company Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee and Corporate & Social 
Responsibi lity Committee 

Present Status of directors hip in this Executive Director Non-Promoter, Non-Executive & 
Company Independent Director 

Directorship in other Public Limited None None 
Companies 

Chairmanship/ Membership o f None None 
Committees in other Public Limited 

Companies 
Number of Meeting of the Board 5 out of 5 5 out of5 

attended during the year 
Relationship with other Directors N . A. N.A. 

Shareholding as on 31" March, 2020 Nil Nil 
Seeking appointment/re- Re-appointmem as Rotational Director Re-appointment as Non-Rotational 

annointment Independent Director 
Rotational Status Rotational Director Non-Rotational Director 

Tenure of appointment, if Not Applicable Approximate 5 years from September 
a pplied 28, 2020 to March JI, 2025 

Registered Office : 
IO, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071. 
Corporate Identity Number{CIN): L65921WBl99IPLC051555 

_.,.~-· . 
.;~ '-;V\ i ~ · · 

Date: 301h June, 2020 '· t 
By Order of the Board of Directors 

SURUCHI TIW ARI 
Company Secretary-cum-Compliance Officer 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS 
Your Directors are pleased to present the Company's Twenty-Ninth Annual Report and Company's 
Standalone Audited Financial S tatement of Accounts for the Financial Year ended 3 1st March, 2020. 

COVID-19 PANDEMIC EFFECT: 
In view of the lock-down declared across the country by the Central / State Government due to COY ID-19 
pandemic during second half of March 2020, the Company's operations were adversely impacted. The 
operations have since resumed in a phased manner frorn May 2020 in accordance with the guide lines issued 
by re levant regu latory authorities with regard to adhering of social distancing and following prescribed 
hygiene standards. The Company continues to comply with such guidelines from time to time. 

T he Company has sufficient liquidity / financing arrangements for the continuity of business operations. The 
Company is confident of its ability to service the debt / financing arrangements. The lock-down due to 
COVID-19 is continuing with certain relaxation and Company is continuing its operations with existing 
demand. The Company has assessed the potential impact ofCOVID-19 based on the current circumstances 
and expects no significant impact on the continuity of operations of the business on long-term basis. The 
Company does not have any material risk o f non-fulfilment of obligations by any party a rising out of 
existing contracts/ arrangements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS : 
The Board's Report shall prepared based on the standalone financ ial statements o f the Company for the 
year ended March 3 1, 2020 is s ummarized below:- (Rs. in Lacs) 

Pa rticu la rs 
Revenue from Operations (net) 
Other Income 
Total Revenue including Other Comprehensive Income 
Profit Before Finance Cost, Depreciation & Tax 
Less : Finance Cost 
Less : Depreciation 
Profit Before Tax {am/ pro/it before exceptio11a/ and extraordinary items} 
l ess: £xceptio11a/ Items (Net of Tax) Provision for dimu11atio11 in value of 

Year ended 
31.03.2020 

5553.01 
368.55 

5921 .56 
1662.64 

(-) 19.88 
(-) 175.38 

1467.38 

Investment i11 Mutual Fund due to COVID-19 pandemic as exceptio11al items (-)832.35 
Profit Before Tax {and profit after exceptional items} 635.03 
Less : Provision fo r Taxation (inclusive of adjustment of deferred lax asset) (-) 325.90 
Profit After Tax for the year of Continuing and Total Operation 309.13 
Other Comprehensive (Loss)/ lncome {Net of Taxes} (-) 461.98 
Total Comprehensive (Loss)/ Income for the period (-) 152.85 
Add : Transferred from General Reserve 243.00 
Add : Profit brought forward from prev ious year 

Profit Available for Appropriation 
Appropriations 
Dividend Declared 
Tax payment of Decla red Dividend 
Transfer to General Reserve 
Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 
Net Worth (Capital employed at the year end - Rs. in Lakh) 

Book Value of Shares at the vear end (Amount in Rs.) 

Earning per Share (Amount in Rs.) 

0.45 
90.60 

(-) 75.00 
(-) 15.42 

0.18 
6852. )8 

228.41 

10.30 

Year ended 
3 1.03.2019 

67 14.85 
52.07 

6766.92 
1833.04 
(-) 16. 16 

(-) 134.46 
1682.42 

1682.42 
(-) 471.47 

1210.95 
78.23 

H 

1289.18 

1.69 

1290.87 

75.00 
(-) 15.42 

{-) 1200.00 
0.45 

7095.45 

236.5 1 

40.36 
Cont. pn/(t! - 1 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

DIVIDEND 
Your Directors have recommended a dividend of Rs.2.50 per Equity Share (Previous year of Rs. 2.50 per 
Equity Shares) for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, i.e. @25% of total paid-up equity share 
capital. The above dividend will be payable out of current year's profit of the Company. The dividend, if 
approved by the shareholders, will entail an out-flow of Rs.75.00 lacs and this is subject to tax deducted at 
source. 

TRANSFER OF RESERVES 
Due to COVID-19 pandemic effect, the Exceptional Items Loss shown in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Account and or Other Comprehensive Loss also shown in Statement of profit and Loss Account. The 
Company transfer Rs.243.00 lacs from its General Reserve to Accumulated profit and Loss Account to 
meet the statutory obligations. The Other Equity i.e. Reserves & Surplus thereafter will stand as on March 
31, 2020 at Rs.6552.18 lacs at a Book value of Rs. 228.41 per Equity Share. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 
Due to COVID-19 effect, the production, sales and other operation of March 2020 (last month of financial 
year) effected. Similarly the market sudden fall as on March 31, 2020 and the value of dimunation in value 
of Investment also accounted for as Exceptional Items as well as Other Comprehensive Loss in Statement 
of Profit and Loss as per statutory requirement. The total revenue during the year was decreased to the 
extent of 12.49% in comparison with its previous year, s imilarly the profit before tax during the year was 
decreased to 62.25% in comparison w ith its previous year and profit after tax during the year was 
decreased to 74.47% in comparison with its previous year. This comparison is not comparable due to a 
short-term COVID- 19 pandemic arises. Your Directors continue to be of the opinion that high quality of 
products and innovations in products as well as improvement in technology along with cost cutting efforts 
will help your company to face th is competition. The company is expected to continue to do well and 
improve further in the coming years. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD 
a) Present Key Managerial Personnel. 
The fo llowing are Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:-

1. Mr. Asheesh Dabriwal (DIN : 00044783) : Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company; 

2. Mr. Janak Bhardwaj (DIN : 0004764 1) : Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer of the 
Company; 

3. Mr. Ashok Kumar Singh : Chief Financial Officer of the Company; ahd 
4. Ms. Suruchi Tiwari : Compahy Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company. 

b) Committee of the Boarc.J. 
The Board of Directors have the following Committees : 

I . Audit Committee; 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee; 
3. Shareholders/ Investor Grievance Committee (Stakeholders; Relationship Committee); and 
4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 

The details of the Committee along with their composition, number of meetings and attendance at the 
meeting are provided ih the Corporate Governance Report. 

c) Changes in Directors anc.J Key Manageria l Personnel. 
There are no changes recorded in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the fihancial year ended 
31st March. 2020. 

Coltl. page - 3 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD 

d) Proposed Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel seeking approval of ensuing 
AGM 

Mr. Janak Bhardwaj (DlN-0004 7641 ), a Executive Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered himself for re-appointment and the same 
proposed in notice. 

Mr. Surajit Raha (DIN-070 19436), a Independent Director of the Company, retire on September 27, 2020, 
and seeking re-appointment for a further terms of approximate tive(5) years from September 28, 2020 to 
March 3 1, 2025. The Board proposed for re-appointment of Mr. Surajit Raha (DfN-0701 9436), as 
Independent Director o f the Company for a further period of approximate five (5) years from September 
28, 2020 to March 3 1, 2025 atid seeking approval o f members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
the same proposed in notice. 

e) Declaration by an Independent Directors : 
The Company has received dec)aration from al l the Independent Directors (Non-Rotational) of the 
Company, confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as per Section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 201 3. 

f) Formal Annual Evaluation : 
The Company has devised a Policy for perfonnance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, 
Committees and Other individual Directors which includes criteria for performance evaluation of the non­
executive directors and executive di rectors. The Remuneration paid to Directors & Other Key Managerial 
Personnel are evaluated by che "Nomination and Remuneration Committee" of the Company o n yearly 
basis. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD 
g) Number of meetings of the Board of Directors : 
Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financial year 2019-20 i.e. year ended March 
31, 2020. For further details. please refer report on Corporate Governance of this Annual Report. 

h) Policy of Directors' Appointment and Remuneration : 
The current policy is to have an appropriate mix o f executive and independent directors to maintajn the 
independence of the Board, and separate its functions of governance and management. As on March 31 , 
2020, the Board consist of 6 members, one of whom is non-rotational executive director, one of whom is 
executive (liable to retire by rotation). one of whom is woman (liable to retire by rotation) and rest three are 
independent (non-rotational). The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and 
size. 

The Company' s policy on d irectors· appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 
178(3) of the Companies Act, 20 13 has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms 
part of the directors' report. 

i) Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors: 
The Company proactively keeps its Directors in formed of the activities of the Company, its management 
and operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as issues being faced by the industry. 

Cont. page - 4 
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY ST A TEMENT 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section I 34(3)(c) of the Companies Act. 20 l 3 read with Section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act. 20 13, with respect to Directors' Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed 
that; 

(i) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31. 2020 the 
appl icable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same: 

(ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 3 1, 2020 and the profit of the Company for the year 
ended on that date; 

(iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3 for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(iv) the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended March 3 l, 2020 on a 'going 
concern ' bas is. 

(v) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be fo llowed by the Company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and 

(vi) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance w ith the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

MA TERJAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS 
No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this Report, 
which aftect the financial position of the Company. There has been no change in the nature of business of 
the Company. 

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 
There are no significant changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of 
this Report. which affect the financial position of the Company. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business. including adherence to the Company's policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and en-ors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely 
preparation of rel iable financial disclosures. The details in respect of internal financial control and their 
adequacy are included in the management Discussion & Analysis, wh ich forms part of this report. During 
the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation were 
observed. 

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM 
The Company has established a Vigi l Mechanism that enables the Directors and Employees to report 
genuine concerns. The Vigil Mechanism provides for (a) adequate safeguards against victimization of 
persons who use the Vigil Mechanism; and (b) direct access to the Chainnan of the Audit Committee of 
the Board o f D irector of the Company in appropriate or exceptional cases. 

Cont. page - 5 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Company manages, monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its 
abi lity to achieve its strategic objectives. The Company evaluating the all risks that the organization faces 
such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational 
and other risks. 

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT 
Statutory Auditors & their Statutory Audit Report 
The Company's Statutory Auditors, M/s. Navin Nayar & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 328951 E), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five (5) 
consecutives years from Financia l Year 2018-2019 to financial year 2022-23 (from April I, 20 18 to March 
31, 2023) at the Annual General Meetings ("AGM") of the Members held on September 24, 2018 on a 
remuneration mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors. Their 
appointment was subject to ratification by the Members at every subsequent AGM held after the AGM 
held on September 24, 20 I 8. Pursuant to the amendments made to section 139 of the Companies Act, 
2013 by the Companies (Amendments) Act, 2017 effective from May 7, 2018, the requirement of seeking 
ratification of the members of the appointment of the Statutory Auditors has been withdrawn from the 
statute. Hence the resolution seeking ratification of the Members for continuance of their appointment at 
this AGM is not being sought. 

There is no audit qualification, reservation or adverse remark for the year under review. The opinion made 
in the Auditors' Report to the Members of the Company have been dealt with in the Notes to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Balance Sheet in Notes No. 1 to 27. 15 of the Accounts. These are self 
explanatory and do not call for further comments. 

Cost Auditors 
The Board has appointed Mr. Kishore Majumdar, Practicing Cost Accountant and Proprietor of M is. K. 
MAJUMDAR & ASSOCIATES. Cost Accountants for conducting Cost Audit for the Financial Year 
2019-20 (Year ended March 31. 2020) and also appointed for next Financial Year 2020-21 (Year ended 
March 31, 202 1) as Cost Auditor, su bject to such approvals as may be applicable. 

Secretarial Auditors & their Secretarial Audit Report 
The Board has appointed Mr. Sushi) Tiwari, Practicing Companies Secretaries and Proprietor of M/s. 
SUSI-Ill TIWARI & ASSOCIATES, Companies Secretaries for conducting Secretarial Audit for the 
Financial Year 20 19-20 (Year ended March 31, 2020) and also appointed for next Financial Year 2020-21 
(Year ended March 31. 2021) as Secretarial Auditor. The Secretarial Audit Report and the Secretarial 
Annual Compliance Report, both for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 is annexed in a separate 
report namely "Secretarial Audit Report" in Form No. "MR-3 and its Annexure-"A" and 
"Secretarial Annual Compliance Report". The Secretarial Audit Report and Secretarial Annual 
Compliance Report does not contai n any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

l.nteroal Auditors 
T he Board has appointed Internal Auditor Mr. Timir Baran Hazra, Chartered Accountants, a practicing 
Chartered Accountants and Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants· of India, for conducting 
Internal Audit for the Financial Year 2019-20 (Year ended March 31, 2020) and also appointed for next 
Financial Year 2020-2 I (Year ended March 31 , 2021) as Internal Auditor. 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTlON AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
The particulars relating to energy conservation. technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo, as required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013. read with rule 
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20 I 4 are given in a separate Annexure - "I" attached hereto and 
form part of the Report. 

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 
The extract of the Annual Return as of March 31, 2020 pursuant to the sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the 
Companies Act, 20 13. in Form No. MGT - 9 shall form part of the Board's Report given in a separate 
Annexure - " II" attached hereto and form part of the Report. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
The Company have a lready formed a new committee named Corporate & SociaJ Responsibility 
Committee and adopt a CSR policy to be undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the 
Board. The disclosure as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
are given in a separate Annexure - "III" attached hereto and form part of the Report. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 
As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace ( Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, Company provides for diversity and equal opportunities 
to a ll employees across the Company, based on merit and ability. The cultures of the Company ensure the 
aspects of work-life balance for employees, especially for woman and are suitably addressed. During the 
year, no complaints of sexual harassment were received. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The Audit Committee comprises Non-Executive & Independent Directors namely Mr. Buddhadeb Basu 
(Chairman), Non-Executive & Independent Director namely Dr. Subrata Haldar & Non-Executive & 
Independent Director namely Mr. Surajit Raha as other Members. All the recommendations made by the 
Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND CSR COMMITTEE 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises two Non-Executive Independent Director 
namely Mr. Buddhadeb Basu (Chairman) & Mr. Surajit Raha (Member) and one Non-Executive & 
Woman Director Mrs. Anjum Dhandhania (Member). All the recommendations made by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee were accepted by the Board. 

The Corporate & Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises one Non-Executive & Independent 
Director namely Mr. Buddhadeb Basu (Chairman). one Executive Director namely Mr. Asheesh Dabriwal 
(Member) and one Non-Executive & Independent Director namely Mr. Suraj it Raha (Members). All the 
recommendations made by the Corporate & Social Responsibility Committee were accepted by the Board. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 
During the year the Company have not paid any loans, guarantees or made any investments referred to 
Section 186 of the Companies Act. 20 13. T he particulars of other loans given, investments made for the 
purpose of its business activities are provided in the standalone financial statement (please refer to Note 
No. 6 & 9 to the Standalone Financial Statement). 
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
All the contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related 
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm's Jength basis. During the year, the Company 
had not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with related parties which could be considered 
material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions, thus the 
disclosure in prescribed Form No. AOC - 2 is not required as per third provision of Section 188(1) of the 
Companies Act, 20 13. Your Dire.ctors draw attention of the members to Note No. 27.8 ofthe Standalone 
Financial Statement which sets out related party disclosures as per Ind AS - 24. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES & MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197( 12) of the 
Companies Act, 20 I 3 read with Rule 5( l) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial personnel) Rules, 20 I 4 are provided in a separate Annexure - "IV" attached hereto and fonn 
part of the Report. 

Particulars of employees pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule-s 5(2) and 5(3) of the _Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 are NIL. 

CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
The Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 15(2) and other relevant provisions 
of SE Bl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20 I 5 for the year ended 3 I si 
March, 2020, as forms part of the Annual Report and which has been set out in a separate report called 
"Corporate Governance Report'' annexed herewith. The requisite Certificate from the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company, Mis. NAV[N NAYAR & COMPANY, Chartered Accountants. confinning 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the aforesaid Clause 49 & 
Regulation 15(2) of SEBf (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is also 
annexed to th is Report. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 
15(2) and other relevant provisions of SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for the year ended 31st March, 2020, is presented in a separate section fanning part of 
the Annual Report called as Management Discussion & Analysis Report" is annexed. 

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES 
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed and traded on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.("CSE"), 
Kolkata [Securities Code No. I 0014058) and Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (" BSE"), Mumbai [Securities 
Code No. 530306J and the Listing Fees for the Financial Year 2020-21 of BSE & CSE have already been 
paid. 

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM 
Trading in Equity Shares of your Company in the dematerialised form is compulsory for all the 
shareholders in terms of notification issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The 
Equity Shares of the Company have been activated both in Central Depositories Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) and National Securities & Depository Limited (NSDL) and may be dematerialsed under the lSIN 
- INE 590D 01016. Your Company has achieved a high level of dematerialized with about 98.99% of total 
number of Equity Shares being held in electronic mode with NSDL & CDSL. The custodian fees for the 
Financial Year 2020-21 have already been paid. 
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STATUTORY INFORMATION AND OTHER DISCLOSURES 
The declaration requfred under regulation 26(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of [ndia (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requ irement) Regu lations 2015, regarding "Code of Business Ethics,. of the 
Company issued by Chief Executive Officer-cum-Managing Director, is annexed and fonns are integral 
part of this Report. 

The certificate required from a Company Secretary in Practice under sub-clause (i) of clause IO of Part C 
o f Schedule V of the Securities and · Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations 20 15, regarding ''Directors and KMP are not debarred or disqualified from 
statutory authorities" of the Company issued by Company Secretary in Practice, is annexed and fonns 
are integral part of th is Report. 

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, joint certificate required under regulation I 7(8) 
o f the Securities and Exchange Board o f India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations 20 15. regarding "CEO/CFO Certification of Financial Report" of the Company issued by 
Chief Executive Officer-cum-Mar:iaging Director and Chief Financial Officer, jointly, is annexed and 
fonns are integral part of thi s Report. 

GENERAL 
Your Directors state that no disclosures or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there 
were no transactions on this items during the year under review : 

I) Deta il s relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 20 13. 
2) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 
3) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme 

save and except ESOS referred to in this Report. 
4) Neither the Managing Director nor the any Executive Director of the Company receive any 

remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries. 
5) No significant or mate rial orders were passed by the regu lators or courts or tribunal which impact 

the going concern status and Company' s operation in future. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Your Directors would 1 ike to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation 
received from the Banks, Government Authorities, Customers, Vendors and Members during the year 
under review. Your Directors a lso wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the 
committed services by the Company's executives, staff and workers . 

Place : Kolkata 
Dated ; 30th day of June, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Oirectors 
ASHEESH DABRIWAL 

Managing Director & C.E.O. 
(DIN - 00044783) 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

ANNEXURE- "l" TO DIRECTORS' REPORT 

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FORE IGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

{The information under section 134(3)(01) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2020 is given here below and forms part of the Board's 

Report.} 

A . CONSERVATION Of ENERGY: 
a) The Company has an o n going study to identify and implement energy saving systems. For 

reducing the consumptio n o f energy, the Company has installed the Energy Saving Flameless 
Electrical ly o perated Melling Furnace for Zinc to achieve reduction in energy inputs. 

b) This will have a n impact in reduc ing the consumption of Fuel and Power and consequently 
the cost of production. 

c)The required data w ith regard to conservation of energy is furnished below :-

FORM - A 
Disclosure of particulars with r!lspect to Conservation of Energy for the year ended 31'' March, 2020 

A). Power and Fuel Consumption : Year ending Year ending 
I. Electricity : 31.03.2020 3 1.03.2019 

a) No. of Units (Excluding own generat ion units hy Generator) 1300783 U nits 1260021 Units 

b) Total amount in ·. Rs.l,21,61,111 Rs .. 1,17,57,829 

c) Effective Rate / Unit C) Rs. 9.35 Rs. 9.33 

2. Coal N.A. N.A. 
3. Furnace Oil N.A. N.A. 
4. Others I Internal Generation 

(Cost o f Diesel. Mobil. Consumables & Other Exp. incurred etc.) 

B). Consumptit>n per Unit of Production:-
1. Electricity (in Unib bcluJing own generation units by Generator) 

2. Coal 
3. Furnace Oil 
4. Other 

Rs. 30,62,878 

0.60 Units 
N.A. 
N.A. 
N.A. 

B.TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: The required informatio n is furnished as below :-

FORM-8 

Rs. 35,00. 166 

0 .39 Units 
N.A. 
N.A. 
N.A. 

Disclosure of particulars with respect to technology absorption for the year ended 315
t March, 2020 

l. Specific areas in which R & D proposed to be carried out by the Company : None 

2. Benefit derived as result of above R & D : Not Applicable 

3. Future plan of action Not Applicable. 

4. Expenditure on R & D : ( Jn Lacs) 

(a) Capital :NIL 
(b) Recurring :NIL 
(c) Tota l :NIL 
(d) Total R & D Expenditure as a Percentage of total turnover:N.A. 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

Continuing of ANNEXURE- "I" TO DIRECTORS' REPORT 

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

{The informa tion under section l34(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31 , 2020 is given here below and forms part of the Board's 

Report.} 

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation : 
1. Efforts. in brief made towards technology absorption, adaptation & innovation : 

Continuous efforts are being made towards improvements in the existing production process. 

2. Benefit derived as a result of the above efforts : 
The Company is successful in improving and maintaining the quality of its product. 

3. Particulars of technology imported during last 5 years: 
(a) Technology import 
(b) Year of import 
(c) Has technology been fulJy absorbed 
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken 

NIL 
N.A. 

: N.A. 

place, reasons thereof and future plan of action : N.A. 

C.FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
(a) Activity relating to export, initiatives taken to increase exports; development of new 

export markets for products; and export plans : 

The net exports of the Company has been decreased from Rs. 5646.73 lacs to Rs. 4785.50 lacs 
during the year. The Company is expanding its production capacity to emerge as a leading exporter 
of our product. The Company is LSO 900 I : 2008 certified. 

(b) Total foreign exchange used and earned : 
Total Foreign exchange earning 
Total Foreign exchange outgo (including CIF Value of Import) 

Rs.4 7,85,49,832/­
Rs.18, 70,86,560/-

The above details have been given under Notes No. 27.3 to 27.5 of Notes to Standalone Financial 
Statements. 

Place : Kolkata 
Dated : 30th day of June, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
ASHEESH DABRIWAL 

Managing Director & C.E.O. 
(DIN - 00044783) 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 

ANNEXURE - ''II" TO DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Form No. MGT - 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2020 

{Pursuant to Section 92(3) t?{tlte Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(/) oft/re Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014} 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

1 ' CIN L65921WBl991PLC051555 
2 RC1?istration Date 26-04-1991 
3 Name of the Company DHP INDIA LIMITED 
4 Category/Sub-Category of the Public Limited Company - Limited by Shares/ Indian Non 

Company Government Company 
5 Address of the Registered Office I 0, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071 

and contact details Telephone : +9 1 (033) 2229-5735, Fax: +91 (033) 22 I 7-2751 
Email : infol@dhoindia.com 

6 Whether listed Company Yes I N-e 
7 Name, Address & contact details Niche Technologies Private Limited 

of the Registrar & Transfer 3A, Auckland Place, 7oJi Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata-700017. 

Agents, if any Telephone: +91 (033) 2280-6616, Fax: +91 (033) 2280-6619 
Email : nichetechol<@nichetechol.com 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated) 

SI. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the product/service % to total 
No. products/services turnover of 

the Company 

I Manufacturing of LPG Regulator, its Group : 281, Class : 2819 & Sub-class : 100% 
parts and Accessories (includ ing 28199 - Manufacturing of Other General 
articles of Brass used as accessories Purpose Machinery 
and parts of LPG Re!!ttlator) 

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:-
SI.No. Name and Address CIN /GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ Associates % of shares held Applicable 

of the Company Section 

- --- ----------~--------- -------------- ------- NIL------------------------ ·------------------- -------------·--
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

Continuation of Form f,lo. MGT- 9 (As on Financial Year Ended Morch 31, 2020) 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
(i) Category-wise Share Holding 

No. of Shart,s h eld • t the begin ning of the year No. of Shares hvld at the end of the year 'I, 

Category o f Shareholders Oemat Physical Total 'lo of Total Oemat Physical Total % o f Total 
Change 
durl119 

Shares Shares the year 

A. PROMOTERS 

(1) Indian 

a) Individual / HUF 1827700 1827700 60.923 1827700 1827700 60,923 

b) Central Government . . . . . 

c) State Government . . . . . . 

d) Bodies Corporate 403500 . 403500 13.450 403500 403500 13...450 

e) Banks/ Financial Institutions . . . . . . . 

f) Anv Other - . - . 

Sub-total (A)(l} 223UOO . 2231200 74.373 2231200 . 2231200 74.373 . 
(2) Foreign 

a) NRls • Individuals . - . . . - . . 
b) Other· lndtv,duals . . . 

c) Bodies Corporate . . . . . 

d) Banks/ Financial Institut ions . . . . 

e) An~ Other . . . . . . 
Sub-total (A)(2) . . - - . . . . 

Total Shareholding of Promoter (A) -= 
2231200 2231200 74.373 2231200 2231200 74.373 -

(A}(l)+(A}(2) 
8. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING 
(I ) lnstltutions 

a) M utual Funjs . . . 

b) Banks/ Financial Institutions . . . -
c) Central Governmenis . . -
d) State Governments . - . . . . 

el Venture Capital Funds . . 
f) Insurance Companies . . . . 
g) Foreign Institutional lrwestors (FIi) . . . . 

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - . . . 

i) Others (Specify) : FPI 

• Corporate Categories - Ill 450 . 450 o.oi5 450 . 450 0,015 

Sub-total (8)(1) 450 . 450 0,015 450 . 4S0 0.015 . 
(2) Non-Institutions 

a) Bodies Corporate 

I) Indian 11289 4600 15889 0.530 15089 1200 16289 O.S43 0.013 

Ii) Overseas . . . . . 
b) Individuals 
I) Individual shareholders holding nominal 

538800 3 1332 570132 19.004 535607 29032 564639 18.821 -0,183 
share caol tal uoto Rs 1 lakh 

Ii) Individual shareholders holding nominal 
58728 . 58728 1.9S8 61633 61633 2.054 0.097 

share capital in excess o f Rs l lakh 

c) Ot hers Spec\fy 

1 NR/ 100110 . 100110 3,337 105190 105190 3 .506 0.169 

2. Overseas Corporate Bodies . -
3. Foreign Nationals . 

4. Clearing Members 5841 5841 0,195 2949 . 2949 0.098 ·0.096 

5. Trusts . . . . 

6. Foreign Bodies • D.R. . . . . . 
7. IEPF Authoritv 176S0 17650 O.S88 17650 . 17650 0.588 

Sub-total (8)(2) 732418 35932 768350 25.612 738118 30232 768350 25.612 

Total Public Shareholding (B) = (8)(1)+(8}(2} 732868 3S932 768800 25.627 738568 30232 768800 25.627 

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs . . . - . ,. 

GRANO TOTAL (A+B+C) 2964068 35932 3000000 100.000 2969768 30232 3000000 100.000 . 
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Continuation of Form No. MGT- 9 (As on Financial Year Ended March 31, 2020) 

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters 
SI 

No. 

Shareholder's Name 

l ANJUM DHANDHANIA 

2 /ISHEESH DABRIWAL 

3 0ABRIWAlA CONSTRUCT,ONS PRIVATE LTD 

4 DOLPHIN PROPE.RTIES PRIVATE LIMITED 

5 KUMKU M DABRIWAL 

6 NIRMAL KUMAR DABRIWALA 

TOTAL 

iii Chan e in Promoter's Shareholdin 

SI 
No. 

Name of Promoters 

1 ANJUM DHANDHANIA 

a) At the Beginning of the Vear 

b) Changes during the year 

c) At the End of the Year 

2 ASHEESH DABRIWAL 
a) At the Beginning of the Year 

b) Changes our1ng the year 

c} Al the End of the Year 

3 DABRIWALA CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 

b) Change·s during rhe year 

c) At the End of t he Year 

4 DOLPHIN PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 

b) Changes durrng the year 

c) At the End of the Year 

S !(UMKUM DABRIWAl 
a) At the Begin111ng of the Year 

b) Changes during the year 

c) At the End of the Year 

6 NIRMAL KUMAR DABRIWALA 
a) At the Beginning of lhe Year 

b) Cnange; dunng the yea, 

cl At the End of the Yea, 

TOTAL 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year 

No. of % of tota l °lo of No. of 
Shares shares of Shares Shares 

the Pledged 
company /encum 

bered to 
total 

shares 

20000 0 667 20000 
662600 22.087 662600 
385600 12.853 - 385600 
17900 0.597 - 17900 

180100 6.003 . 180100 
965000 32.167 . 965000 
2231200 74.373 . 2231200 

Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Sh.aroholdlng 
of the year durlng the year 

No. of 
shares 

20000 

% of total 

shares of the 
No. of % of total 

h 
shares of the 

s ares 

32.167 
74.373 
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Continuation of Form No. MGT- 9 (As on Fi'nancial Year Ended March 31, 2020) 

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders - At the Beginning of the year and at the 
end of the year (other than Directors, Promoters and Holder of GORs and ADRs) ; 

SI. 
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders (at Shareholding at the 

No. 
the beginning of the year and at the end be innin of the ear 

of the year) No. of % of total 

1 BALASUBRAMANIAM LAKSHMI NARASIMHAN 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 41846 1.395 

b)Changesduringtheyear 

Date Reason 

05/04/2019 Transfer -133 -0.004 1.390 
31/05/2019 Transfer 1.388 

c) At the End of the Year 1.388 

2 GAODAM SRINIVASA RAO 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 5807 0,194 
b) Changes during the year 

Date Reason 

12/04/2019 Transfer 18 0.001 5825 0.194 

10/05/2019 Transfer 100 0.003 5925 0.198 

01/ 11/2019 Transfer 20 0.001 5945 0,198 

21/02/2020 Transfer 20 0.001 5965 0.199 
c) At t he End of the Year 

3 HARSHA VENKATESH 

a) At the Beginrung of the Year 

b) Changes durfng the year 

Date Reason 

03/05/2019 Transfer 163 0.005 163 0.005 
19/07/2019 Transfer 37 0.001 200 0.007 

15/11/2019 Transfer 20000 0.667 20200 0.673 

4 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 

b) changes durlng the year 

c) At the End of the Year 

5 MANMIT HANSPAL 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 

b)'Changes durrng the year 

Date Reason 

05/04/2019 Transfer 249 0.008 6962 0.232 

19/04/2019 Transfer -157 -0.005 61:!0S 0.227 

07/06/2019 Transfer -1000 -0.033 5805 0.194 

16/08/2019 Transfer -1700 -0.057 4105 0.137 
23/08/2019 Transfer -2000 -0.067 2105 0.070 

21/02/2020 Transfer -2105 -0.070 0 0.000 

c) At the End of the Year 0 0.000 

Cont. page - 5 



: s : 
DHP INDIA LIMITED 

Continuation of Form No. M GT- 9 (As on Financial Year Ended M arch 31, 2020) 

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders - At tile Beginning of the year and ar the 
end of the year (other than Directors. Promo1ers and Holder of GDRs and AORs) · 

Shareholding at the Cumulative 
beginning of the year Shareholding during 

SI. 
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders (,;Jl the year 

No. 
the beginn1ng of the year and at the end No. of ¾ of total No. of % of total 

of the year) shares shares or shares shares of 
the the 

comoanv comn,.nv 
6 NEERAJ GUPTA 

a) At the Beg111ning of the Year 5756 0.192 
bl Changes during the year 

Date Reason 
30/08/2019 Transfer 14 0.000 5770 0. 192 
21/02/2020 Transfer -70 -0.002. S700 0.190 
]0/03/2020 Transfer 20 0 .001 5720 0.191 
c I At the End of the Yo?J r 

~ ·"' 7 PRATAP KUMAR CB V 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 2 
b) Changes dur,ng the yea, 

Date Reason 

2&/04/ 2019 Traml~r 37 0 .001 18983 0.633 
03/05/ 2019 Transfer 685 0.023 19668 0.656 
10/05/2.019 Tran,ler 14 o.000 19682 0.656 
07/06/ 2019 Transfer 403 0.013 20085 0.670 
14/ 06/ 2019 Tr;Jnsfe,- 716 0.024 20801 0.693 
12/07/ 2019 Transfer 200 0.007 21001 0.700 
19/07/2019 Trarrsfe( 546 0.018 21547 0.718 
26/07/ 2019 Transfer 301 0.010 21848 0 .728 
02/08/2019 f,3rrs{e1 290 0.010 22138 0.738 

09/08/2019 Transfer 280 0 .009 22418 0 .747 

30/08/ 2019 Tra,,sfer .5 0.000 22413 0 .747 
13/09/ 2019 Transfer -20 -0.001 22393 0.74& 
20/09/2019 Tran, f~r -392 -0.013 22001 0 .733 
27 /0.9/2019 Transfer 400 0.013 22401 0.747 
04/ 10/2019 Transfer -146 -0.005 22255 0.742 
I J/ 10/ 2019 Transfer 437 0.015 21818 0.727 
18/10/2019 Transfer 629 0.021 21189 0.706 

2',/ 10/ 2019 Tr~nsfer -389 -0.013 20800 0.693 
01/11/ 2019 Tran\ le, -1073 -0.036 l9727 0 ,658 

08/ 11.12019. Transfer -6 0 .000 19721 0.&57 

15/11/2019 Tramfer · 18132 -0.604 1589 0.053 
22/ 11/ 2.019 Tran, fer -189 -0.006 1400 0 .047 
06/12/2019 Transfer 372 0.012 1028 0 034 
27/12/ 2019 Transler ·380 -0.013 648 0.022 
31/12/7019 Transfer l2 0 .000 660 0.022 
3 1/ 01/2020 Transfer 4 22 0 .0 14 1082 0.036 
07/02/2020 Tran,fer 1145 0 038 2J27 0 .074 
14/02/ 2020 Transfer 100 0.003 2327 0.078 
28/02/2020 Transfer 420 0.0 14 2747 0.092 
20/03/ 2020 Transfer -360 -0.012 2387 0.080 
27/03/ 2020 Transfer -2382 0.079 5 0.000 

c) At the Cnd of the fear 5 0.000 

8 PUNIT OHANDHANIA 

a) Al the Beginning of the Year 10000 0.333 
bJ Change, dL,ring the year 

~ R] c) At 1he End of 1he Year 0.333 

9 SIDDHARTH KOTHARI 

a) At the Beginning of th(' Year 2 

b) Changes during the year ~ING THE YEAR) 

cJ Al lhe End of the Year 17164 0.572 

Com. page - 6 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Continuation of Form No. MGT• 9 (As on Financial Year Ended Morch 31, 2020) 

(iv) Shareholding Patrem of top ten Shareholders. Ar the Beginning of the year and at the end 
of tlHi year (orfler than Directors, Promoters and Holder of GDRs and ADRs) : 

Shareholding at the Cumulallve 
beginning or the year Shareholding during 

SI, 
For Each ol the Top 10 Shareholde~ (at the year 

No. 
the IMlglnnlng of Iha year and at the end No. or % of total No. of % of total 

or the year) sharee shares of sham sharw• ot 
the th• ______ ,. 

rnmn2nv 

10 TIRUPATIRAO THAKKAlLAPEUY 

a) At the Beginning or the Year 11500 0.383 
b) Cl\anges during the yea, 

Date Reason 

05/07/2019 Transfer 332 0.011 11832 0 .394 

12/07/2019 Transfer 218 0 .007 12050 0.402 
26/07/2019 Transfer 52 0 .002 12:102 0.403 

•an.nAr HI D,001 1.,,-,n- Ono= 

16/08/2019 Transfer ~v 0.001 12150 0.405 
23/08/2019 Transfer 150 0.005 12300 0.410 
06/09/2019 Transfer 300 0.010 12600 0.420 
c) At the End or the Year 12600 0.4-20 

11 UOHANI SANJAY SURESHKUMAR 
a) At the Beginning of the Year 10000 0.333 
b) Changes during the year ~ INGTHEYEARj 
c) At the End of the Year 10000 0,333 

12 VUAYMALIK 

aJ At the Beginning ofthe Year ll118 0.371 
b) Changes during the year 

Date Reason 

17/05/2019 Transfer 551 0.018 
c) At the End of the Year -TOTAL 156500 5.217 

(v) Shareholdln of Directors and Ke Mana er/a/ Personnel : 

$1, 
No. 

For Each or the Director• and KMP 

1 ASHEESH OABRIWAL (EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR) 
a) At the Beginning of the Year 

b) Changes during the year 

c) At the fnd of the Year 

2 JANAK BHARDWAJ (EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR) 
a) At the Beginning of the Year 

b) Changes during the year 

c) At the End of the Year 
3 AN.H.J"1 OHANOHANlA (NOH .. fKECUTlVt DtRE:C"fOR) 

a At the Be• Inn in ofthe Year 

b) Changes during the year 

c) At the End of the Year 

4 BUDDHADEII' BASU (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR I 

a) At the Beginning o f the Year 

, b) Changes durlng the year 

c) At the End of the Year 

5 OR, SUBRATA HALOAR IINDEPENOENT DIRECTOR) 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 

b) Changes during the year 

c At the End of the Year 

6 SURIIJIT RAHA (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 

b)· Changes during the year 

c) At the End of the Year 
7 SURUCHI TIWARI (COMPANY SECRETARY) 

a) Ar the Beginning of the Year 

bl Changes during the year 

c) At the End of the Year 

8 ASHOIC KUMAR SINGH IOIIEF F1NAHdAl OfFICERf 

a) At the Beginn1ng of the Year 

bf Changes during the year 

c) At the End of the Year 

TOTAL 

Shareholdln,g at th• 
be lnnln of the ear 
No. of ,. of 101a1 

ahares tharot or u .. 
comp1n)' 

11669 0.389 

11669 0.389 

152599 5,087 

cumubtiw sna,..no1drno 
du_t1ng CM year 

No. ol r.or101a1 

shares 1h1rt• of the 
Co. 
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Continuation of Form No. MGT· 9 (As on Financial Year Ended March 31, 2020) 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 
I d b n e t ness o the C om pany Includ i ng Int erest outsta nding/accrued but not due for p a yment ·-

lc>ins To™ 
e><dudln1 vn-ured Deposits 

lndtbtness 
depoilts(ln loans (In Rs.) lln Rs,l 

(lnRs.) 
Rs.) 

lndeblftess at the btglnnlng of the flnandal year 

(i) Principal Amount 31290023 31290023 

(ii) Interest due bot not paid . 
(iii) lntere~t accrued but not due . . . 

Total (1+11+111) 31290023 . . 31290023 

Chan1e In tndebtness durtnm1 the flnandal year . Additlon . Reduction 11290023 - 1,1190023 

Net Changes 11290023 . 11290023 

lndebtness at the end of the financial year 

(i) Principal Amount 20000000 . 20000000 
(ii) Interest due but not paid . . . 
(Iii) Interest accrued but not due . . 

Total (i+ii+iil) 20000000 . 20000000 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to M anoglng Director, Whole-time Director and/ar Manager : 

Nam• of M.OJE:xeaJtlvo 
Total 

SI, 
Particula~ o f Remune~tlon 

Dlro<tor (In Rs.) 
Amount(ln 

No. Asheesh Janak Rs.) 
Dabriwal Bhardwaj 

1 Gross salary 

l•I Salarvas pee provisions oonta,_ned jn section 17(1) of tho lr>COme•t•~ Act. 1961 66,86,100 31,55,889 98,41,919 

(b) Value of perQulsl tes u/s. 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 . 1,069 1,069 

(c) Profit in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the lncome·tax Act, 1961 . . 
2 Stock Option 

3 Sweat Eouity . 
4 Commissfon 

• as% on profit . . -
- other, specify . 

s Other, please specify . 

Total (A)_ 66,86,100 31.S6,9S8 98,0,()58 

Ceiling as per t he Companies Act, 2013 [being 10'4 of net profit of the Company 

calcuted U/s,198 o f the Companies Act, 2013 I.e. PROFIT BEFORE TAX) 
1,77,16,226 

Note : The above remuneration po1d is w ithin the prescribed limit os per Companies Act, 20l3 

B. Remuneration to Other Directors : (Amount In Rs,} 

Name o f Directors 
SI. 

Partlcula~ of Remuneratlon 
Total 

No. 
An)um luddNd Or.Subuta 

Surajlt~ha Amount 
Dhandhanla eb &asu Haldar 

1 Independent Directors 

• Fees for attending board committee meetings . 10,000 10,000 10,000 30,000 
• Commission . . . . 
• Others, please specify . . . 

Total (1) . 10,000 10,000 10,000 30,000 

2 Other Non-Executive Dlrecto~ 

• Fees for attending board committee meetings 10,000 . 10,000 

• CommH·sion . . . 
• Others, please specify - . . 

Total (2) _10,000 . . 10,000 

Total Managerial Remuneratlon (B) 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 40,000 

Over-all Celling as per t he Companies Act, 2013 [being 

1% of net profit of the Company talwlated U/s.198 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. PROFIT BEFORE TAXI 17,71~623 

Note r The above remuneration paid is within the prescribed limit os per Companies Act, 20J3 Cont. page • 8 
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Continuation of Form No. MGT- 9 (As on Financial Year Ended March 31, 1020) 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
C. Remuneration to Key Monagerial Personal other than MO/Monager/ WTD : {Amount in Rs} 

Key Managerial Personnel 

SI. C.Omp•ny Chief flnami•1 
Total 

No. 
Particulars of Remunerat ion s«tttarv Otfkitt 

Asholl: Kumar 
SUtuchl Tiwa,r 

Slnoh 
1 Gross salary 

(af Salary•·• per prO\/lslcM containod ln ,ec1<0n 1711) of the lncOn'le-tak A<I. 1961 1,64,160 28,97,310 30,61.470 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s. 17(2) of the Income-tax Act,1961 , 

(cl Profit in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of t he Income-tax Act, 1961 -

2 Stock Option -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Co"lmisslon 

• as % on profit - -
• other, specify - - . 

s Other, please specify - . 
Total (Cl 1,64,160 28,97,310 30,61,470 

VII. PENAL TIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : 

Section of th• Brief ~tallsof Authority 
Type Companies Oescrlptl penalty/Punlshment/Comp [RD/NCLT/C 

A COMPANY 

Penalty 

Punishment 

Compounding 

8 DIRECTORS 

Penalty 

Punishment 

Compounding 

C OTHEll OFACER IN DEFAULT 

Penalty 

Punis.hmen1 

Compounding 

Place : Kolkata 

Dated : 30th day of June, 2020 

Act on oundln11 fees Imposed 

~'v 

. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

ASHEESH DABRIWAL 

Managing Director & C.E,0. 

(DIN -00044783) 

OURl] 

Appeal 
made, If any 
(gl\le details) 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 

ANNEXURE - '·III'" TO DIRECTORS' REPORT 

CORPORA TE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 
AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2020 

{Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014} 

I.A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy,: The key philosophy of CSR initiatives of the Company is 

including overview of projects or programs: amount funded to the " Prime Minister National Relief Fund" 

proposed to be undertaken and a reference to: for developing the CSR by Central Government. 

the web-link to CSR policy and projects or: 
programs. : 

2.The composition of the CSR Committee: Mr. Ruddhadeb 13asu - 1ndependent Director (Chairman) 
Mr. Surajit Raha - Independent Director (Member) 
Mr. Asheesh Dabriwal - Executive Director (Member) 

3.Average net profit of the Company for-last 
Three financial years Rs. 14,85, 11 ,886/-

4.Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of 
The amount as in item 3 above) : Rs. 29,70,238/-

5.Details of CSR spend during the financial year 
(a)Total amount to be spent for financial year : Rs. 29, 71 ,000/-
(b)Amou nt unspent, if any NIL 
(c)M I . I I d th fi . I anner m w uc , t ,e amount spe-nt urme e manc1a year 1s e a1 e e ow: . dt .l d bl 

S r. No. CSR Sector in Projec ts o r Amount outlay Amount spent on Cumulative Amount 
projCl't 01' n hich the programs (budget) the projects or expenditure spent: 
acti, itr Project is ! )Local area or project or programs up to the Direct or 
identified covered other programs wise Sub-heads: reporting through 

2)Specify the I )Direct period implementing 
State and expenditure on agency (give 
district where projects or details of 
projects or program$ implementing 
programs was 2)0 verhcads agency) 
undertaken 

( I ) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

I Schedule VII Clause (viii) As per Prime Rs. 29,71 ,000/· Rs. 29,71,000/- Rs, 29,71,000/- Implementing 
of Contribution Minister Office Agency-

Cumpani..::; to the Prime and Central Govt. Prime 
Act. 2013 - Minister's Decision Minister 
A1:tivlty No. Nuiional Office of 

(viii) Rclit!fFund India under 
Contribution Central 
to lhc !'rim<" Government. 
Minister's 
N,1tional 

Rdicf Fund ' 

RESPONSlBlLITY STATEMENT 
The Responsibil ity Statement of the Corporate & Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of 
Directors of the Company is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company. 

'-

~~\Al~ 
ASHE ESH DABRIW AL .~-1<0L·,1~)) 
Managing Di rector to- ~'}.; 
(DIN - 00044783) -~ ~ / 
Dated : 3011

' day of June , 2020 

BUDDHADEB BASU 
Chairman, CSR Committee 
(DIN-00061771) 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 

ANNEXURE - "IV" TO DIRECTORS' REPORT 
l>IS( 'I.O',UU: ON Tllf'. Rl::~lll~ERATION OF THE :\1ANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

{Pursua111 111 Ruic 5( I/ ol' the Companies (Appointment & Rrmuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20141 

(i)The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees 
of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 : 
(a) Sri Ashe~sh Dabriwal (Managing Director Remuneratjon) ~ Other than KMP Remuneration is 1 : 9. 
and (b) Sri Janak Bhardwaj (Executive Director Remuneration): Other than KMP Remuneration is I : 20. 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, CFO, CEO, Company Secretary of the 
Company for the financi-al year 2019-20: 
(a) Sri Asheesh Dabriwal (CEO & MD) :- 80% [From Rs.37, 14,500/- to Rs.66,86, 100/-] 
(b) Sri Janak Bharclwaj (Executive Director & COO): 11.65%, [From Rs.28,26.S 13/- to Rs.31,55,889/-) 
(c) Sri Ashok Kunrn1· Singh (CFO) - 11.43%, and [From Rs.26,00,150/- to Rs.28.97,310/-J 
(d) Ms Surll\.:hi 'l'i\\',ll"i ( Company Sccrcl:lry) - No1 comparable appomred 13/01/18 lFrom Rs.92, 175/- lo Rs.1.64, 160/-l 

(iii)The percen tage inl'.rease in the median remuneration (other than Director & KMP Remuneration) of 
the employl·es in the financial year 2019-20 is : 6.82%. 

(iv)The number uf pc-rmancnt/total employees on the roll of the Company as on 31'1 March, 2020 is: 219. 

(v) The e~plarwlion on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company 
pcrformann.· : Company ·s .Profit after Tax decrease by 62.25% in comparison of its previous year due to 
COVID-19 1.'ll~ct rni. Exceptional Losses of Dimunation in value of Investment in Mutual Fund. Average 
increase in total employees expenses is 11.33% in comparison of its previous year. The salary increased 
due to in0ation. individual performance, prevailing industry trends. 

(vi)Variation in the market capitalization of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of 
the current lin,irlcial year and previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the 
market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company 
came out" ith the last public offer.jThis figures is a temporary phase due to COVID-19 Pandemic! 
Date 1' 1arl<N Price(in Rs.) EPS (in Rs.)P/E ratio Market Capitalisation(in Rs.) % Changes 
March 3 I. :201 •) 550. I 5 40.36 13.63 1,65,04,50.000 
March 3 1. lil.:'.11 2.3().35 I 0.30 23.24 71.80.50,000 (-) 56.49% 

Percentage incr~ase over the last public offer is not relevant as there has never been any public offer by the 
Company during thl' financial year 2019-20. 

(vii)Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the manageria l 
personnt'I in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration .tml justification thereof and point out if there arc any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration : Average increase in the remuneration of all employees 
excluding KMPs is 6.82% and average increase in the remuneration of KMPs is 39.75%. The KMP salary 
increased arL· decid.:cl based on the individual performance, responsibilities. prevailing industry trends and 
benchmarks. 

(viii) Compari~on of citch remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel against performance of the 
Company : F.ad1 KMP is granted salary based on his qualification, experience. nature of job & 
responsibili1~ covcrl!d. industry benchmark, earlier salary and many other factors, comparison of one 
agains t the 1•lli..:r is nut feasible. 

(ix)The key parameters for any variable components of remuneration availed by the directors is : NIL. 

(x) The ratio of remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who arc not directors 
but recci\'c remum·ration in excess of the highest paid director during the year is : NIL. 

(xi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: - Yes . 

Place : Kollrnta 
Dated : 30th day of .lune, 2020 

.... ~ ·.-:.:.~-
.·,/<,\,A//\ 
f'~v ,, 
,1 ._ ·• I \ ' • •• 

\!N " 

\· / 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
ASHEESH DABRIW AL 

Managing Director & C.E.O. 
(DJN - 00044783) 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL -REPORT OF 2019-20 
/As per Regul<ttion 34(3) read with Schedule V and Regulation 15(2) and other relevant provisimns of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year e11ded 3 /11 March, 2020/ 

TO THE MEMBERS 

Corporate Governance is based on the principles of integrity, fairness, equity, transparency, accountability 
and commitment to values. Good governance practices stem from the culture and mindset of the 
organ ization. The Company continuously reviews its policies and practices of Corporate Govennance with 
a clear goal not merely to comply with statutory requirements in letter and spirit but also constantly 
endeavors to implement the best international practices of Corporate Governance, in the overall interest of 
all stakeholders. Some of the maj or initiatives taken by the Company towards strengthening its Corporate 
Governance systems and practices include the fo llowing:-

• To set-up various dedicated independent Committees. 
• The Company has appointed an independent practicing Company Secretary to conduct 

Secretarial Audit. 
• Best Governance Practices are rev iewed on a quarterly basis . 
• Observance o f the Secretarial Standard issued by the Institute of Company :Secretaries 

of India. 
In Accordance will, Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V and Regulation 15(2) and other relevant 
provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reg11/atio11s, 2015 for the year 
ended 31st March, 2020 and some of ti,e best practices followed i11temationally 011 Corporate 
Governance, the report containing the details of governance system and processes at DIIP INDIA 
LIMITED is as under:-

1. BRIEF STATEMENT ON COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE : DHP India Limited is a w idely-held Public Limited Company and maintains a very 
high level of Corporate Governance. The Company' s philosophy on corporate governance envisages 
the a ttainment of the highest levels of transparency, accountability and equity, in al I facets of its 
operations, and in all its interactions with its stakeholders, including shareholders. The Company 
follows the code of corporate governance in its entirety. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS : 
The Company has a broad-based Board and meets the "Composit ion" criteria. As on 3 1st March, 2020, 
the Board comprised of six Directors. Out o f the six Directors, four are Non-Executive of which three 
are the Independent Directors and one is non-executive woman director. The Board believes that its 
current composition is appropriate. Composition of the Board and category of Directors are as follows 

a) Th e comoos1tlon an d cate!!ones o f d. ,rectors 1.e. b k rea UD 0 f d. t ,rec ors 1s as fi IJ 0 ows: 
SI. Categories Promoter/Non- Name of Director & Designati,on 
No. Promoter 

i) Executive Directo r Promoters I ) Sri Asheesh Dabriwal - Managing IDirector 
& Chief Executive Officer (C.E.0 .) 

Non- Promoters 2) Sri Janak Bhardwaj - Director-cum--Works 
Manager & Chief Operating Onicer (C.0.0.) 

ii) Non-Executive & Woman Promoters 3) Smt. Anjum Dhandhania (Woman Director) 
Directo r 

iii) Independent & Non- Non-Promoters 4) Sri Buddhadeb Basu- Lead Independent Director 
Executive Directo r Non-Pron1oters 5) Dr. Subrata Halda r 

Non-Promoters 6) Sri Sura ii t Raha 
iv) Nominee Directo r N .A. NIL 
v) lnstitutionaJ Director N.A. NIL 

Cont. page - J 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS : 
b). The Profile of all Board of Directors are as follows · . 

Name of Directors Sri Asheesh Sri Janak Smt. Anjum Sri lluddhabeb Dr. Subrata Sri SuraJit 
Dabriwal Bhardwa1 Dhandhania Basu Haldar Raha 

Directors ldentitication No. 00()44783 00047641 00058506 00061771 00089655 07019436 

Date ofBinh 04/l0/1967 05/07/1963 07/12/1970 23/06/1967 25/04/1962 25/02/1967 

Date of first Appointment 26/04/1991 25/06/1998 31/01/2003 Jl/01/2003 17/05/200] 08/1 2/2014 
Educational Qualification B. Com. D. M£, LL.B B. Com. MB.B.S. Graduate 
Occupation Industrialist Service Business. Business Doctor Service 
Status in dtffert:nt Comm-
mee of this Company -
(A] Audit Committee None None None Chairm,m Member Member 
[BJ Shareholders/Investors 

Grievance Committee Member None Member Chairman None None 
[CJ Nomina1ion & 
Remuneration Committee None None Member Chainnan None Member 
(DJ Corporate& Social 

Resoonslbil itv Commiuee Member None None Chairman None Member 
Present Status in this Company Managing Executive Non-E,xeculive Lead Independent Independent 

Director & Director& Woman Director Independent Director Director 
C.EO. C.0.0. Director 

01rectorsh1p in Other Public None None None None None None 
Limited Company 
Chairmanship/Membership of None None None None 'None None 

· Committee in Other Public 
Limited Company 
Shareholding as on 31" March, 662600 Shares NIL . 20000 Shares 200 Shares Nil. NIL 
2019 [22.09%1 10.66%] ro.0066%1 

c.). Disclosure whether Chairman is Executive/Non Executive : 
The Company has not appointed any Director to the post of "Chairman". However in most of 
the Board Meeti ngs & General Meetings Sri Asheesh Dabriwal, M.D. & C.E.0 . , Promoter & 
Executive Director of the Company convenes the meeting as Chairperson. 

d). Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, Last Annual General Meeting and number of 
other Directorships and Chairmanships / Memberships of committees of each Directors 
in various companies : The Composition of Board during the year ended 3 1st March, 2020. its 
attendance and other directorships & Chainnanships/Memberships in other Public Ltd. Companies are 
as under :-

Name of Directors Categories No. of Last No. of Other No. of Other No. of Other 
Board AGM Public Ltd. Public Ltd. Public Ltd. 

Meeting attended Companies Companies Companies 
attended Directors hips Committee Committee 

Chairmanships Memberships 
Sri Asheesh Dabriwal MJJ. & C.E.O: 5 YES None None None 
Sri Janak Bhardwaj E.D. & C.O.O. 5 NO None None None 
Smt. Ani_um Dhandhania N.~.D. 5 NO None None None 
!Sri Buddhadeb Basu N.E. & I.D. 5 YES None None None 
br. Subrata Haldar N.E. & I.D. 5 NO None None None 
Sri Surajil Raha N.E. & 1.0. s NO None None None 

Nmc : • I ) M.D. & C.E.O. - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer, 2) E.D. & C.O.O.- Executive Director & Chief 
Operating Oflicer. 3) N.E.n.- Non-Executive Director. 4) N.E. & LD. - Non-Executive & fndependcnt Director 

e). No. of Board Meetings held along with the dates of Board Meeting: 
The Corporate Governance policy requires the Board to meet at least four times in a year with a 
maximum gap of three months between any two meetings. 
T h d ·1 f B d h Id d h d C eta , so oar meetings e unng t e year are as un er :-

Date of Board M eetinl! Board St.renl!th No. of Directors Present Ma.in ·Purrn1se of Meetines 

18/04/2019 6 6 Misc. General Activity 
30/05/2019 6 6 41

" Qtr./Annual Audjted Accounts Approval 

13/08/2019 6 6 I st Quarter Accounts Aooroval 
11/11/2019 6 6 2nd Quarter Accounts Approval 
11 /02/2020 6 6 3 rd Quarter Accounts Ar,oroval 

Cont. page. J 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS : 
f). Board's Procedure : It has always been the Company's policy and practice that apart from 

matters requiring the Board's approval by statute, all major decisions of the Company as a 
whole are regularly placed before the Board. This is in addition to information with regard to 
actual operations. major litigation, feed back reports and minutes of Committee Meetings. 

g). independent Directors, their tenure, meetings and familiarization programme : Company 
appointed Independent Directors having expertise/experience in their respective 
field/profession. None of the Independent Directors are Promoters or related to Promoters. 
They do not have pecuniary relationship with the Company and further do not hold two percent 
or more of the total voting power of the Company. Every Independent Director, in every 
financial year. gives a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as required under 
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The details of all three independent Directors terms of office are as below :-
• Sri Buddhadeb Basu - Non-Promoter, Non-Executive, Lead Independent Director - Terms of 

Office, as per existing terms·: from September 18, 2019 to march 31, 2024, (approximate five 
years). 

• Or. Subrata Haldar - Non-Promoter, Non-Executive, Lead Jndependent Director - Terms o:· 
Office as per existing tenns : from September 18, 2019 to march 31, 2024, (approximate five 
years). 

• Sri Surajit Raha - Non-Promoter, Non-Executive, Independent Director - Terms of 
Office, as per seeking re-appointment : from September 28, 2020 lo March 3 I, 2025. a further 
tenure of next approximate five (5) Years. 

During the year all Independent Directors meets under leadership of Mr. Buddhadcb Basu and 
presented their views with the Board for overall affairs of the Company. 

The fami liarization of the Independent Directors is done by the Managing Director/Executive 
Director/Senior Management personnel who conducts presentations/programme to familiarize 
the Independent Directors with the operations and functioning of the Company. 

h). Performance Evaluation of Directors: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Board laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of all Directors. The performance 
evaluation has been done by the entire Board of Directors, except the Director concerned being 
evaluated. 

i). Responsibility of the CEO, COO and CFO : The current policy of the company is to have a 
Chief Executive Officer (C.E.O.) - Mr. Asheesh Dabriwal, who is also the Promoter & 
Managing Director of the Company, a Chief Operating Officer (C.0.0.) - Mr. Janak 
Bhardwaj, who is also the Executive Director-cum-Works Manager & employee of the 
Company, and a Chief Financial Officer (C.F.0.) - Mr. Ashok Kumar Singh, is an employee of 
the company. There are clear demarcations of responsibility and authority amongst the three. 

• The CEO {llld Managing Director Mr. Asheesh Dabriwal is overall responsible for 
corporate strategy, brand equity, planning, external contracts and all other management 
matters. He is also responsible for achieving the annual business plan & investments. 

• The COO and Executive Director~cum-Works Manager Mr. Janak Bhardwaj is 
responsible for all production matters, customer service operations. He is also 
responsible for technology, new technical initiatives. renovations & industrial & 
personnel relations. 

• The CFO Mr. Ashok Kumar Singh is a qualified Chartered Accountant & Cost 
Accountant. He is responsible for ensuing all the accounts, auditing, taxation & 
corporate governance matters. 

( ·0111. page - ./ 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS : 
j). Composition of Board Committee Details of the Board Committees and other related 

infonnation are provided hereunder : 
a) Audit Committee : 

I) Sri Buddhadeb Basu - Independent Director (Chairman of the Committee) 
2) Dr. Subrata HaJdar - Independent Director 
3) Sri Suraj it Raha - lndependent Director 

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
I) Sri Buddhadeb Basu - Independent Director (Chairman of the Committee) 
2) Smt. Anjum Dhandhania - Non-Executjve Woman Director 
3) Sri Suraj it Raha - lndepndent Director 

c) Shareholders / Investor Grievance Committee : 
1) Sri Buddhadeb Basu -Independent Director (Chairman of the Committee) 
2) Smt. Anjum Dhandhania- Non-Executive Woman Director 
3) Sri Asheesh DabriwaJ - Executive Director 

d) Corporate & Social Responsibility Committee: 
I) Sri Buddhadeb Basu - Independent Director (Chairman of the Committee) 
2) Sri. Suraj it Raha -·Independent Director 
3) Sri Asheesh Dabriwal - Executive Director 

k) M . eetml! o fB d C omm1ttees oar h Id d e urm2 t h e vear an d D" ,rectors atteo d ance: 
Board Committees Audit Nomination and Shareholders/Jnvestor Corporate & Social 

Committee Rfmunualion Committee Grievance Commilttt Responsibility Committee 
Medio2 Held 5 I ] I 
Sri Buddhadcb Basu 5 I I I 
Smt. Anium Dhandhania 5 I I N.A. 
Dr. Subrata Haldar 5 N.A. N.A. N.A. 
Sri Asheesh Dabriwal N.A. N.A. I I 
Sri Surai it Raha 5 I NA. I 

I). Re-appointment of Directors retire by rotation: Sri Janak Bhardwaj (DIN : 00047641 ), a 
Executive Director shall retire by rotation at the ensu ing Annual Genera l Meeting, and is 
eligible for re-appointment. 

The brief particulars of above director have already been mentioned in their profile. However, 
the suitable disclosure mentioned in the Notes as fanning part of Notice of A.G.M. to annexed 
with the Report. 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE : 
i)Composition, name of members and Chairperson : The composition of the Audit Committee at 
present are as below :-

1. Sri Buddhadeb Basu - Chairman [Non-Executive & Lead Independent Director -
havingfinancial and accounting knowledge} 

2. Dr. Subrata Haldar - Member [Non-Executive & Independent Director] 
3. Sri Surajit Raha - Member [Non-Executive & Independent Director] 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Singh, Chief Financial Officer (C.F.O.) of the company having requ1s1te 
qualification as qualified Chartered Accountants & Cost Accountants, acts as Finance & Accounts 
function of the company is a pennanent invitee of the Audit Committee. 

Ms Suruchi Tiwari, Company Secretary-cum-Compliance Officer of the company having requisite 
qualification as qualified Companies Secretaries & Cost Accountants, acts as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 
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J. AUDIT COMMITTEE : 
ii) No. of meeting and attendance : During the year the Audit Committee has met five (5) times on 

April 18, 2019; May 30, 2019; August 13, 20 19; November 11 , 2019; and February 11, 2020 and 
the details of attendance of its member already provided in this report. 

iii) Brief description of terms of reference : The Audit Committee has been constituted as per 
Section I 77 of the Companies Act, 2013, and as per Regulation 15(2) and other relevant provisions of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20 15 for the year ended 31 •1 March, 
2020. The terms of reference & powers of the audit committee are as under :-

(A) Powers of Audit Committee : 
I. To investigate any activity within its tenns of reference. 
2. To seek information from any employee. 
3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice. 
4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 

(B) The role of the Audit Committee includes : 
l. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial in formation to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and 
credible. 

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the 
replacement or removal of Cost Auditors & Statutory Auditors and fixation of audit 
fees. 

3. Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the 
Statutory Auditors. 

4. Reviewing. with management, the annual financial statements before submission to the 
Board for approval, with particulars reference to : 
• Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Directors' Report in terms of Section 134(3 )(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

• Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
• Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by 

the management. 
• Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

fi ndings. 
• Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements. 
• Disclosure of related party transactions. 
• Qualificatim1s in draft audit report. 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission 
to the Board fo r approval. 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised 
through an issue (public issue, right issue, preferentiaJ issue, etc.), the statement of 
funds utilized for purposes other that those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency, 
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a pub I ic or right issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 

7. Reviewing, with the management, the perfonnance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, 
adequacy of internal control systems. 

8. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department. 
reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

9. Discussion with Internal Auditors any significant findings and fo llow up thereon. 
Com. page-6 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
iii) Brief description of terms of reference : 

(B) The role of the Audit Committee includes : 
I 0. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into the 

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the 111 atter to the Board. 

I I. Discussion with Cost Auditors, Secretarial Au1ditors & Statutory Auditors before the 
audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion 
to ascertain any areas of concern. 

12. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to the 
depositors. debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non payment of declared 
dividends) and creditors. 

13. To review the functioning of Whistle Blower Mechanism, in case of same is existing. 
14. Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the quaJitications, experience & 

background etc. of the candidate. 
15. Carrying out any other function as is mentioneid in the terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee. 
16. To review the following information : 

• The management discussron and analysis of financial condition and results of 
operations; 

• Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit 
Committee). submitted by management; 

• Management letters/letter of internal control weakness issued by the Statutory 
Auditors; 

• Internal audit report relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
• The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Internal Auditors & 

Secretarial Auditors. 

The Audit Committee's report submitted by the head of Finance & Accounts Department i.e. 
C.F.0. of the Company Mr. Ashok Kumar Singh. He briefs the Committee on all the points 
covered in the report as well as the other issues which come up during discussions. 

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee are ciirculated to members of the Committee 
and the Board is kept apprised. 

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :: 
i) Brief description of terms of reference : The terms of reference of Nomination and Remunerat ion 

Committee include: 
• Review and approval of business strategies and policies, med ium & short term plans. 
• Review of operating performance of the company. 
• Approval of Remuneration of Executive & Non-Executive Directors. 

Minutes of the meeting of the Nomination and Rem uneratio:n Committee are circulated to members 
of the Committee and the Board is kept apprised. 

ii) Composition, name of members and Chairperson : As on date the particulars of directors in 
nomination and remuneration committee are as below :-

1. Sri Buddhadeb Basu - Chairman [Non-f:-reculive & Indep endent Director} 

2. Smt. Anjum Dhandhania - Member [Non-Executive & Woman Directo,j 
3. Sri Surajit Raha- Member [Non-Executive & Independent Directo,} 

iii) No. of meeting and attendance : During the year the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
met one time on April 18, 20 19, and the details of attendance of its member already provided in this report. 
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4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE : 
iv) Remuneration Policy : The Remuneration Policy of the Company for managerial personnel ts 

primary based on the performance of the fo llowing criteria: 
• Performance of the Company. 
• Track record, potential and perfonnance of the individual managers and 

• External competitive environment. 

v) Details of Remuneration to all d irectors as per format listing out the following: Sri Asheesh 
Dabriwal, Managing Director of the Company & Sri Janak Bhardwaj, Executive Director of the 
Company - both is an employee of the Company. In addition to remuneration paid to Sri Asheesh 
Dabriwal & Sri Janak Bhardwaj, the company a lso pays the sitting fees @Rs.2,000/- per sitting of 
General Board Meeting to all Non-Executive Directors (Other than those receiving remuneration) 
for attending Board Meetings for the year ended 31st March, 2020. 

Tl D . I f . D. b I 1e eta, so remuneration payment to ,rectors are as e OW: 

Name of Directors Desienation Nature of remuneration Remuneration Paid 
Sri Asheesh Dabriw;il Managing Director & Chief Salary/Leave pay/8onus etc. Rs. 66,86, I 00 

Executive Officer (C.E.O.) 

Sri Janak Bhardwaj Executive Director & Chief Salary/Leave Rs. 3 1,55,889 
Operating Officer (C.0.0.) pay/al lowances/Bonus 

Smt. Anjum Dhandhania Non-Executive Director Sitting Fees of Board Meeting Rs. 10,000 

Sri Buddhadeb Basu Independent Director Sitting Fees of Board Meeting Rs. 10,000 

Dr. Subrata Haldar Independent Direc to r SittinJ:?. Fees of Board Meetin_g Rs. 10,000 
Sri Surajit Raha Independent Director Sitting Fees of Board Meeting Rs. 10.000 
Note: I) The Service Contract of Sri Asheesh Dabriwal, Managing Director & C.E.O. of the Company is 

an employee of the company and the notice period of service contract is one month. 
2) Sri Janak Bhardwaj , Executive Director & C.0.0. of the Company is an employee of the 

company and the notice period of service contract is one month. 
3) The terms of Office of Sri Buddhadeb Basu & Dr. Subrata HaJdar, Independent Directors of the 

Company is for approximate Five years as existing tenns from September 18, 2019 to March 3 1. 
2020. The terns of office of Sri Suraj it Raha, Jndependent Director of the Company as per 
seeking re-appointment : from September 28, 2020 to March 31, 2025, a further tenure of next 
approximate fi ve (5) years. 

5. SHAREHOLDERS / INVESTOR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE : 
i)Name of non-executive director heading the committee & other members: 

I. Sri Buddhadeb Basu - Chainnan [Non-Executive & Lead Jndependenr Director] 
2. Smt. Anjum Dhandhania - Member [Non-executive & Promoter Directmj 
3. Sri Asheesh Dabriwal - Member [Executive & Promoter Director] 

ii) Name & designation of Compliance Officer : Ms Suruchi Tiwari, Company Secretary of the 
Company is the Compliance Offieer of the Company. 

iii) No. of Shareholders Complaints received so far and No. of Complaints not solved to the 
satisfaction of the shareholders: None of the complaints received from shareholders are pending 
unsolved as on March 31, 2020 from any investors for any services. Only revalidation o f dividend 
warrant / change of address & bank account intimation etc. were received from some investors and 
the ir requests were complied promptly. No complaints are pending & unsolved of shareholders. 

iv) No. of pending share transfer for more than a fortnight: No shares are pending for transfer till 
date for more than a fortnight from the date of share transfer request received. 
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5. SHAREHOLDERS/ INVESTOR GRJEV ANCE COMMITTEE : 
v) No. of meeting and attendance : During the year the Shareholders / Investor Grievance 

Committee has met one time on April 18, 2019. and the details of attendance of its member already 
provided in this report. 

6. CORPORA TE & SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE : 
i) Name of non-executive director heading the commhtee & other members : 

I. Sri Buddhadeb Basu - Chairman [Non-Executive & lead Independent Director] 
2. Sri Surajit Raha - Member [Non-executive & Independent Director} 
3. Sri Asheesh Dabriwal - Member {Execlllive & Promoter Director] 

ii) Name & designation of Compliance Officer : Ms. Suruchi Tiwari, Company Secretary of the 
Company is the Compliance Officer of the Company. 

iii) No. of meeting and attendance : During the year the Corporate & Social Responsibility 
Committee has met one times on February 11, 2020, and the details of anendance of its member 
already provided in this report. 

7. AFFIRAMATlONS AND DISCLOSURES: 
i) Compliances with Governance Framework: The Company is in compliance with all mandatory 

requirements under the Listing Regulations. 

ii) Disclosure by Key Managerial Person about Related Party Transactions : All transactions 
entered into with the Related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of 
the Listing Regulations during the financial year were on arms-length basis and do not attract the 
provis ions of Section 188 of the Companies Act. 2013. There are no materially significant 
transactions with Related Parties viz. Promoters. Director or the Management, Key Managerial 
Person. their subsidiaries, o r relatives conflicting with Company's interest, during the financial year. 
Related Parties transactions have been disclosed under significant accounting policies and notes 
forming part of the Financial Statements in accordance with (Ind AS). A statement in summary form 
of transactions with Related Parties in ordinary course of business and arm's length basis is 
periodically placed before the Audit Committee for review and recommendation to the Board for 
the ir approval. 

As required under Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulation, the Company has formulated a policy 
on dealing with Related Party Transactions. None of the Transactions with Related Parties were in 
conflict with the interest of Company. All the transactions are on arm ' s length basis and have no 
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large and are carried out on an arm's length or 
fair value basis. 

iii) Details of Non-Compliance by the Companv, penalties and strictures imposed on the 
Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statuton 1 authority, on the matter on any 
matter related to capital market. during last three financial years: The Company has complied 
w ith all requirements specified under the Listing Regulations as well as other regulation and 
guidelines of SEBI. Consequently, there were no strictures or penalties imposed by eirher SEBI or 
Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital 
markets during the last three financial years. 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

7. AFFIRAMA TIONS AND DISCLOSURES : 
iv)Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy : Pursuant to Section 177(9) and ( I 0) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has fonnulated Whistle 
Blower Policy for Vigil Mechanism of Directors and Employees to report to the management about 
the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct. The mechanism 
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who use such 
mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in 
exceptional cases. None. of the personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. 

v) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment : In the preparation of the financial statements. the Company 
has fo llowed the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20 13. The 
significant accounting policies which are consistently applied are set out in the ;\Jotes to the Financial 
Statements. 

vi) Board Disclosure - Risk Management : Business risk evailuation and management is an ongoing 
process within the Company. The assessment is periodically examined by the Board. 

vii) Commodity Price Risk and· Commodity Hedging Activiities : The Company has adequate risk 
assessment and minimization system in place including for commodities. The Company does not 
have material exposure of any commodity and accordingly, no hedging activities for the same are 
carried out. Therefore, there is no disclosure to offer in term of SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD I/CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated November 15, 20 18. 

viii) Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferentiial allotment or qualified institutions 
placement as specified under Regulation 32(7 A): Not Applicable. 

ix) A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the directors on the Board of 
the Companv have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutorv 
authoritv: The Certificate of Company Secretary in practic1~ is annexed herewith as a part of the 
report. 

x) Where the Board had not accepted any recommendation ,of any committee of the Board which 
is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year: Not Applicable. 

xi) Total fees or aJI services paid by the lis ted entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, 
to the Statutory Auditor and all entities in the oehvorlk firm/nehvork entity of which the 
statutory auditor is a part : Details relating to fees paid to tine Statutory Auditors are given in Note 
23(p) to the Standalone Financial Statements. 

xii) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Woman at work place (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: No complain rec,eived during the financial year under 
review and no complain is under pending at the year end und1er review. The same is also reported in 
Directors' Report. 

xiii) Non Mandatory Requirements : Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of the Listing 
Regulations is being rev iewed by the Board from time to time. 
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8. DETAILS OF ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY {DISCRETIONARY} REQUIREMENTS: 
Non-Mandatory (discretionary) reqoirements under regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations 

The status of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements of the Listi_ng Regulations is provided below :-
i) The Board : The requirement relating to maintenance of office and reimbursement of expenses of 

Non-Executive Chairman is not applicable to the Company since the Chainnan of the Company is an 
Executive Director. 

ii) Shareholders rights : The Company has not adopted the practice of sending out half-yearly 
declaration of financial perfonnance to shareholders. Quarterly results as approved by the Board are 
disseminated to Stock Exchanges and updated on the website of the Company. 

iii) Modified opinion(s) in audit report : There are no modified opinions in audit report. 

iv) Reporting of Internal Auditor : In accordance with the provisions of Section l 38 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed an Internal Auditor who reports to the Audit 
Committee. Quarterly Internal Audit Reports are submined to the Audit Comminee which reviews 
the audit reports and suggests necessary action. 

9. THE DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND REGULATION 46(2) 

Sr. Particulars Regulations Brief Descriptions of the Regulations Compliance 
No. Status 

(Yes/NO/N.A.) 
I Board or 17( I) Composition ot'Board Yes 

Directors 1'7(2) Meeting of Board of Directors Yes 
17(3) Review of Compliance Reoorts Yes 
17(4) Plans for orderly succession for appointment Yes. as and 

when 
aoolicable 

17(5) Code of Conduct Yes 
17(6) Fees/Commission Yes 
17(7) Minimum information to be placed before the Board Yes 
17(8) Compliance Certificate Yes 
17(9) Risk Assessment and Management Yes 

17(10) Performance Evaluation Yes 
2 Audit Committee 18( I) Composition of Audit Committee & Presence of the Chairman 

of the Committee at the Annual General MeetinR Yes 
18(2) Meeting of Audit Committee Yes 
18(3) Role of the Committee and Review of infonnation by the 

Committee Yes 

3 Nominatio11 and 19(1)&(2) Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee Yes 
Remuneration 19(3) Presence of the Chairman of the Committee at the Annual 
Committee General Meeting Yes 

19(4) Role of the Committee Yes 
4 Shareholders/I nve 20( 1 ),(2) & (3) Composition of Shareholders/Investor Grievance (Stakeholders 

stor Grievance Relationship) Committee Yes 
(Stakeholders 
Committee) 

20(4) Role of the Committee Yes 

5 Risk Management 21( l ).t2) & (3) Composition of Risk Management Committee N. A. 
Committee 21(4) Role of the Committee N.A. 

6 Vigil Mechanism 22 Formulation of Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employee Yes 
Com. page -I I 
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9. THE DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND REGULATION 46(21 

Sr. Particulars Regulations Brief Descriptions of the Regulations Compliance 

No. Status 
(Yes/NO/N.A.) 

7 Related party 23( I ),(5 ).(6 ).( 7) Policy for Related party Transaction Yes 

Transaction &(8) 
23(2) &(3) Approval including omnibus approval of Audit Committee for 

all Related Party Transactions and review of transaction by the 
Co_mmitt_ee Yes 

23(4) Approval of Material Reiated Party Transactions N.A. 

8 Subsidiaries of 24( I) Composition of Board of Directors of Unlisted Material 

the Company Subsidiaries N.A. 

24(2),(3),( 4),(5) Other Corporate Governance Requirements with respect to 
&(6) Subsidiary including Materia l Subsidiary of Listed entity N. A. 

9 Obligation with 25( 1)&(2) Maximum Directorshjp and Tenure Yes 

respect to 25(3) Meeting of Independent Directors Yes 
Independent 25(4) . Review of performance bv the lndeoendent Directors Yes 
Directors 25(7) Familiarisation of lndeoendent Directors Yes 

10 Obligations with 26( I) & (2) Membership & Chairmanship in Committees Yes 

respect to 26(3) Affirmation with Compliance to Code of Conduct from Yes 
Directors and Members of Uoard of Directors and Senior Management 
Senior Personnel Yes 

Managemcn1 26(4) Disclosure of Shareholding by Non-Executive Directors Yes 
26(5) Disclosures by Senior Management about potential conflicts of 

interest Yes 
11 Other Corporate 27(1) Comoliance ofDiscretionarv Reauirements Yes 

Governance 27(2) Filing of Quarterly Compliance Report on Corporate 
requirements Governance Yes 

12 Disclosures 46(2)(b) Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors Yes 
website o f the 46(2)(c) Composition of various Committees of Board of Directors Yes 
Company 46(2)(d) Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior 

Manall.ement Personnel Yes 
46(2)( e) De.tails of establishment of Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower 

P'olicv Yes 
46(2)(1) Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors Yes 
46l2)(g) Policv on dealing with Related Partv Transactions Yes 
46(2)(h) Policy for determinini.? Material Subsidiaries N.A. 
46(2)(i) Details of famil iarization programmes imparted to Independent 

Directo rs Yes 

JO. GENERAL BODY MEETING: 
i) Location and time where the last 3 AGMs were heJd : The last three Annual General Meetings 

were held as per details given below :-
YEAR DATE DAY TIME 

2018-2019 20/09/20 19 Friday 11.00 A.M. 
2017-20 I 8 24/09/20 I 8 Monday I 1.00 A.M. 
20 16-20 17 20/09/2017 Wednesdayll.00A.M. 

Name of AGM/EGM Held at 
Twenty-Eighth A.G.M. l 8H,Park Street, Kol-71 
Twenty-Seventh A.G.M. l8H,Park Street, Kol-71 
Twenty-Sixth A.G.M. 18H, Park Street, Kol-7 1 

ii)Whcther Special resolutions were put through postal ballot last year, details of voting pattern 
and person who conducted the postal ballot excise and procedure for postal ballot: No Special 
Resolution passed in last A.G.M. dated September 20, 2019 under the postal ballot scheme. 
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I 0. GENERAL BODY MEETING : 
iii).Code of Conduct: The company has a code of conduct, which is applicable to all Board Members 

and senior management of the company. The code of conduct is as below :-
• To maintain Fair Market Practices. 
• To maintain the integrity of Financial records and Accounting 
• To develop a good External Communication with aJI Statutory Bodies 
• To develop Work Ethics with Honesty, Integrity, Respect, Fairness, 

Purposefulness, Trust, Responsibility and Caring. 
• To ensure highest level of transparency. 

The Chief Executive Officer (C.E.O.) Sri Asbeesh Dabriwal has declared that the above code 
of conduct is applicable to all the senior management & board members and has also been 
complied by the company. Declaration Certificate is Attached with Report. 

iv) Code of Conduct for prohibition of insider trading : Company has adopted a Code of Conduct 
as per Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
1992. All Directors, Designated Employees who could have access to the Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information of the Company ate governed by the Code. 

v) CEO/CFO Certification : The CEO / CFO Certificates on Corporate Governance are enclosed. 

vi) Secretarial Compliance & Capital Integrity Report : The Company Secretary while preparing 
the Agenda, notes on agenda, minutes etc. of the meeting(s), is responsible for and is required to 
ensure adherence to all applicable provisions of law including the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Secretarial Standards recommended by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report from a practicing Company Secretary as per Regulation 
24A of SEBJ (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Report) Regulations 2015 obtained and Attac.bed 
with Report. The Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report from a practicing company secretaries 
as per Regulation SSA of SEBl (Depositories & Participants) Regulation, 2003, confinning that the 
total issued capital of the Company is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form 
and the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL, is placed before the Board 
on a quarterly basis. A copy of the above Secretarial Audit Report is submitted to both depositories 
NSDL & CDSL and also the Stock Exchanges, where the securities of the Company are listed. 

11. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION ; 
i)Ouarterly results : The Company's quarterly results are published in "Business Standard" (English 

News paper) and " Arthik Lipi" (Bengali News paper), and all reports & all disclosures etc. 
forwarded to the Stock Exchanges immediately after these are taken on record by the Board and is 
displayed on the company's website www.dilindia.co.in. 

ii) Annual Report: The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statement, Directors' 
Report, Auditors' Report and other important information is circulated to members and other entitled 
thereto. The Management's Discussion and Analys is Report forms part of the Annual Report and is 
displayed on the Company's website www.dilindia.co.in. 

iii) Corporate website: www.dilindia.co.in 

iv) BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre : BSE's Listing Centre is a web-based application 
designed for corporate. All periodical compliance filings are also filed electronically on the Listing 
Centre. 

v) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) : The investor complaints are processed in a 
centralized web-based complaints redress system. 

Cnm. page -/J 
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DHP INDIA LIMJTED 

11. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 
vi) Designated Exclusive email-id : 

13 

Name of Compliance Officer : SURUCHI TIWARI E-mail ID-:- info(@.dhpindia.com 

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION : 
i)Company Registration Details : The Company is registered in the State of West Bengal. The 

Corporate Identity Number (ClN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate A ff airs is 
L65921WB1991PLC051555. 

ii) A.G.M. - Date, time and venue :Twenty-Ninth A.G. M. dated : September 28,2020 (Monday) 
Time : l l.00 A.M. at Calcutta Chamber of Commerce, 
18H, Park Street, Stephen Court, Kolkata - 700 071. 

iii) Financial Year & Financial Calendar : The Company observes the financial year starting 
from 1st April to 31 51 March as its financial year. The Board Meeting for forthcoming quarterly, 
half yearly and annual financial results expected are as below :-

For adoption of quarterly results Expected date 
Quarter ending June 30, 2020 Second week of August, 2020 
Quarter ending September 30, 2020 Second week of November, 2020 
Quarter ending December 3 I, 2020 Second week of February, 2021 
Quarter ending March 31, 2021 Last week of May, 202 l 
Year ending March 31, 2021 Last week of May, 2021 

iv) Book Closure Date: September 22, 2020 (Tuesday) to September 28, 2019 (Monday), both days mclusive. 

v) Listing on Stock Exchanges & Stock Code, if any: At present the shares of the company listed 
with only two stock exchanges Kolkata & Mumbai. The details of Stock code etc. are as below :­

(t) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. i.e. CSE (Regional Stock Exchange Code : IOOl 4058( 
(2) Bombay Stoc-k Exchange Limited, Mumbai i.e. BSE LSecurities Code No .- 5313061 

Annual listing fees for the financial year 2020-2021 of Bombay Stock Exchange have been paid 
and awaited Bill from The Calcutta Stock Exchange for payment. 

vi) Dcmat ISIN No. with CDSL & NSDL & Electronic Connectivity : The !SIN of dematcrialised 
shares of the Company is INE590D0 IO 16. The shares of the company is electronically 
connected with both the depositories i.e. Mis. National Securities Depository Ltd [NSDLJ 
& Mis. Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. ICDSLJ. The required custodian fees for 
financial year 2020-202 l ti 11 date paid to CDSL & NSDL. 

vii) Number of Employees: Location wise break-up of the number of employees of the Company as 
on 3 1st March, 2020 : (a) Registered Office: 12 and (b) Factory: 207 i. e TotaJ: 219 

viii) Share Transfer system : Presently as per SEBI and Stock Exchange requirement the company 
has appointed a Registrars & Share Transfer Agents Mis. Nkhe Technologies Private Limited, 
3A, Auckland Place, 71h Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata - 700 017 for handling of all 
share transfers system as well as Dematerialisation process with a single entity. The share 
transfers which are received in physical form are processed within IO days from the date of 
receipt, subject to documents being valid and completed in all respect. 

ix) Plant Location : The factory situated at :-
"Ohulagarh Industrial Park, P.O.:- Kanduah, P.S.:- Sankrail, N.H.-6, Howrah - 711 302". 

x) Dematerialisation of Shares and liquidity as on March 31, 2020 : Over 98.99 % of the 
Company' s paid-up equity share capital has been dematerialised up to 31 ~1 March, 2020. 

Cont. page -/4 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION : 
xi) Ma rket Price Data - High/Low du ring each month of the F.Y.2019-2020: The equity shares 

of the company are hardly traded. in The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. In Mumbai Stock 
Exchange the shares of company are regularly traded. As per BSE website the following market 
p . & I f h d d d . h fi . I 2019 2020 nee vo ume o s ares tra e urmg t e nanc1a year - -

Month BSE (Monthly High) BSE (Monthly Low) No. of shares traded Turnover () 
Price per shares() Price per shares C) 

-
Aoril, 2019 572.95 541.00 592 58,17,036 
May, 2019 620.00 532.05 802 I 10,82.552 
June, 2019 603.00 570.10 687 82, 17,278 
July, 2019 598.00 515.00 934 1 09,55,814 
August, 2019 531.00 425.00 1574 1,65,39,912 
Seotember,2019 5 16.95 468.00 704 71,92,31 l 
October, 2019 503.80 478.00 690 95,15,874 
INovember,2019 495.00 440.20 ll lO 1,80,50,562 
Decembcr,2019 474.00 450.05 507 42,39,75 l 
Januarv,2020 5 11 .40 450.00 495 35,58,722 
February, 2020 489.00 376.00 903 94,02,059 
March, 2020 437.55 221.05 1675 J, 32,29,047 

Total No. of shares traded & volume of 2019-2020 10673 11 ,78,00,918 
xii) Distribution of S harehold ing as-o n 31st March, 2020 : Distribution of Shareholding pattern by 

the number of shares are as below :- la l Sbareboldiosr Pattern bv Size (as on March 31. 2020) -
No. of Equity Shares held No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders No. of Shares % of Sbareholdin2 

l - 500 2378 88.7313 2,32,595 7.7532 
501 - I,000 152 5.671 6 l , 13,069 3.7690 

1,001 - 5,000 132 4.9254 2,59,369 8.6456 
5,001 - I 0,000 6 0.2239 42,858 1.4286 

10,001 - 50,000 8 0.2985 1,58,809 5.2936 
50,001 - 1,00,000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 

1,00,001 and above 4 0.1 493 21 ,93,300 73.1100 
TOTAL 2680 100.0000 30,00,000 100.0000 

lbl Shareboldin~ Pattern bv Ownershio fas on Ma rch 31. 2020) :-
Categories Particula rs of Categories No. of Total No. As percentage 

shareholders of S hares of s ha res 
Promoters Director's & their relatives holdin2 4 18,27,700 60. 923 % 

Group Promoter' s Body Corporate holding 2 4,03,500 13. 450 % 

(India n) Total of Promoters holdineflndian} 6 22,31,200 74. 373 % 

Non- Indian - Body Corporate 25 16,289 0. 543 % 

Promoter Indian-individual & HUF holding 

Group Nominal Shares Value Up to Rs.2 lakh 2498 6,06,072 20. 203 % 

Indian-Individual & HUF holding 

Nominal Shares Value above Rs.2 lakh I 20,200 0.674 %. 
138 1,05, 640 3. 521 % 

Any Others - NRJ/OCB 
11 2,949 0. 098 % Clearing Member 

1 17,650 0. 588 % IEPF Authority 
2674 7,68,800 25. 627 % Total of Non-Promot ers boldine 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDINGS 2680 30,00,000 100. 000 % 
cl Sha reholdine: Patt.ern bv Dematerialisation & Phvsical Form (as oo March 31. 2020) :-

Particulars No. of Equity Shares % of Shareholdim! 
Dematerialised with NSDL 26,25,60 1 87.52 
Dematerialised with CDSL 3,44,167 11.47 
Total Dematerialised Shares 29,69,768 98.99 
Shares in Physical Form 30,232 1.01 
Total Paid-up Equity Shares 30,00,000 l00.00 

Conl. page • 15 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

12. GENERAL SBAREHOLDER INFORMATION : 

xiii) Dividend : The Board of Directors, recommended the dividend of Rs.2.50 per Equity Share for 

the financial year ended March 3 1, 2020 (i .e.@25% of Equity Share capital of the Company), 
for approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If approved, the 
dividend will be paid on or after 28th September, 2020, but before 2ih October, 2020. 

xiv) D' "d d Hi t 1v1 en s orv or e as ave fi th L t F" Y ears 
Sr.No. Financial Year Date of Declaration of Dividend Amount declared per share (Rs.' 

I 2014-2015 28/09/2015 Rs. 1.50 
2 2015-2016 19/09/2016 Rs. 2.00 
3 2016-2017 20/09/2017 Rs. 2.00 
4 2017-20 18 24/09/2018 Rs. 2.50 
5 2018-2019 20/09/2019 Rs. 2.50 

xv) Transfer of unclaimed amount to Investor Education and Protection F und: The investors 
arc advised to c laim the unencashed dividends lying in the unpaid dividend accounts of the 
Company before the due date (as ind icated in the Notes to the Notice) for c rediting the same to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

xvi) Mandatory transfer of shares to demat account of Investor Education a.od Protection 
Fund Authorities (IEPFA) in case of Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend on shares for a 
consecutive period of seven years Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124(6) of the 
Companies Act, 20 13 and the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 20 I 6, as amended from time to time, a ll Equity Shares of 
the Company on which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or 
more on February 19, 20 18 shall be transferred by the Company to Investor Education and 
protection Fund ("lEPf"). During the current financial year ended from April I, 20 19 to March 
31, 2020, no shares will fall due for transfer to the said Fund. 

Shares which are transferred to the demat account of IEPF A can be claimed back by the shareholders 
from IEPf-'A by following the procedure prescribed under the IEPF Rules. 

xvii) Address for Corres pondence: For transfer/dematerialisation of shares and any other query 
relating to the shares of the company. 

Niche Technologies Private Limited 
[Registrar & Share Transfer Agents of DHP India Limited J 
3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7 A & 7B, Kolkata - 700 017. 

For any query on Annual Report/Dividend and any Investor Grievance Matter etc. 
DHP INDIA LIMITED 
10, Middleton Row, Kolkata -700 071. 

xviii) Compliance Certificate of the Auditors : The Statutory Auditors have certified that the 
company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the relevant 
provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as referred to in Regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulations 
and the same is Annexed to this Report. 

Place Kolkata 
Dated : 30th day of June, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
ASHEESH DABRIWAL 

Managing Direc tor & C.E.O. 
(DIN - 00044783) 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT OF 2019-2020 
/As per Regulation 15(2) and other relevant provisions of SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended JF' Marci,, 2020/ 

TO THE MEMBERS 

In view of the lock-down declared across the country by the Central / State Government due to COVID-19 
pandemic during second half of March 2020, the Company's operations were adversely impacted. The 
operations have since resumed in a phased manner from May 2020 in accordance with the guid,elines issued 
by relevant regulatory authorities with regard to adhering of social distancing and following prescribed 
hygiene standards. The Company continues to comply with such guidelines from time to time. 

The Company has sufficient liquidity / financing arrangements for the continuity of business operations. The 
Company is confident of its ability to service the debt / financing arrangements. The lock-down due to 
COVID-19 is continuing with certain relaxation and Company is continuing its operations with existing 
demand. The Company has assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 based on the current circumstances 
and expects no significant impact on the continuity of operations of the business on long-term basis. The 
Company does not have any material risk of non-fulfilment of obligations by any party arising out of 
existing contracts/ arrangements. 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 
2013. Our management accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of these· financial 
statements, as well as various estimates and judgements used therein. The estimates and jiudgements 
relating to the financial statements have been made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in order that the 
financial statements reflects in a true and fair manner the form and substance of transactions, and 
reasonably present our state of affairs, profits and cash flows for the year. Apart from financial analysis, 
the management discussed on following areas :-
(a). Forward-Lookfoe Statement : All statements that address the expectations and/or proj,ections for 

the future, not limited to the Company' s strategy for growth, product development & i1nnovation, 
market standing, expenses and financial results, are all forward- looking statements. These are 
based on assumptions and expectations in the future and the Company cannot guarantee its 
accuracy or its realisability. The Company's actual results and/or performance will hence differ 
from those portrayed in forward-looking statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to 
publicly amend, modify or revise such statements on the basi's of any future developments, 
information and/or events. 

(b) Industrial structure and development : The Company concentrated on expanding the export 
market for its products and continues to do so. 

(c) SWOT (Strength, Weakness, Opportunity & Threat) Analysis for the Company : There is a 
big potential of increasing the sale of LPG Regu lators for the export market. The SWOT analysis 
of the company are as below:-

Strengths: 
• Obtain various License and Certification for Exported Goods in various Countries as well as in 

India for specific technical requirements and safety measurements. 
• High quality and safe products at affordable prices. 
• Ongoing product innovation and improvement. 
• Strong and varied range of products as per requirement of varied markets. 

Weakness: 
• Time delays in procurement of raw materials. 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

Opportunities : 
• Potential for expansion for diversified products. 
• The future global market is very optimistic relating to LPG Appliances. 
• Growing trend for consumption of Low Pressure Regulators & Gas Appliances. 
• Expanding into newer untapped markets. 

Threat: 
• Rising price of Raw Materials & Components. 
• Competitive environment with diverse players. 

(d) Risk and concern :The Company is exposed to risks from market fluctuations of foreign 
exchange, interest rates, commodity prices, business risk, compliance risks and people risks. It is 
difficult to assess the risk involved in the business. It is always the intention of the management to 
minimize the risk involvement with proper analysis and market study & internal control systems. 

(e) Internal Control System & Their Adequacy : Given the nature of business and size of 
operations. your Company' s Internal Control system has be,en designed to provide for: 
i) Accurate recording of transactions with internal checks and prompt reporting. 
ii) Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards and pol iicies .. 
iii) Compliance with applicable statutes, policies and management policies and procedures. 
iv) Effective use of resources and safeguarding of assets. 

The Internal Control System provides for well documented policies/guidelines, authorizations and 
approval procedures. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the 
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems and :suggests improvement for strengthening 
them as appropriate. The observations arising out of the audit are periodically rev iewed and 
compliance ensured. The summary of the Internal Audit observations and status of 
implementations are submitted to the Audit Committee and is reviewed by it on a regular basis and 
concerns, if any, are reported to the board. 

(f) Financial Performance : During the year 2019~20 the Company recorded net revenue from 
operation of Rs.5553.0 I lacs as compared to previous year of Rs.6714.85 lacs. Profit before tax 
were at Rs.635.03 lacs and Profit after tax were at Rs.309. 13 lacs for the year ended March 3 1, 
2020 as compared previous year ended March 3 1, 2019 of Rs.1682.42 lacs and Rs.12 10.95 lacs 
respectively. 

(g) Operational Performance : The Company has alreaidy shifted the main focus of its 
manufac-turing business from domestic market to the expOit markets and is confident of obtaining 
satisfactory orders in the coming years. 

(h) Industrial Relation : The Company considers its human resource as the most valuable ingredient 
of the functioning of the company and utmost endeavor is made to maintain good relations with the 
employees at all levels. 

(i) Cautionary Statement : Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the 
Company's focal objectives, expectations or anticipations may be forward looking within the 
meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations. Ac:tual results may differ materially from 
the expectations. 

Place : Kolkata 
Dated : 30th day of June, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
ASHEESH DABRIW AL 

Managing Director & C.E.O. 
(DIN - 00044783) 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Corporate Identity Number (ClN): L6592tWBl991PLC05t555 

Registered Office: 10, Middleton Row. Kolkata - 700 07 1 
Phone No: (+91 (033) 2229-5735/7995/9626/7929, Fax No : +91 (033) 2217-2751 

E-mail : info@dhpindia.com, Website: www.dilindia.co.in 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (C.E.O.) DECLARATION IN TERMS OF 
REGULATION 26(3) OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF 
INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 

REGULATIONS, 2015, RELATING TO CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT 
AND ETHICS OF THE COMPANY 

TO THE MEMBERS OF DHP INDIA LIMITED 

DECLARATIONS 

I, ASHEESR DABRJWAL, C.E.O. & Managing Director of DHP INDlA LIMITED, hereby 
declare that, as per the requirements of Regulation 26(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all the Board Members 
and the Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct of the Business Conduct and Ethics of the Compaoy, for the year ended March 31, 
2020. 

Place : Kolkata 
Dated : 30th day of June., 2020 

For DHP INDIA LIMITED 
ASHEESH DABRIW AL 

Managing Director & C.E.O. 
(DIN -00044783) 



SUSHIL TIWARI & ASSOCIA~TES 
Company Secretaries 

31A, S.P.Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700 025. Phone No. (033) 2476-5908 & (033)24155-9891 

CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN J~RACTICE 
[Pursuant to clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR)] 

To 
The Members 
DHP INDIA LlMITED 
IO, Middleton Row, 
Kolkata - 700 071. 

In pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20 15,, (LODR) in 
respect of DHP INDIA LIMITED (CIN : L65921 WB 1991 PLC05 I 555) we hereby certify that during the 
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019 :-

On the basis of the written representation/declarations received from the directors, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives and taken on record by the Board of Directors, as on March 31, 20 19, 
none of the directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as director of Companies by the SEBJ/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
Statutory Authority. 

31A, S. P. Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata - 700 025 
The 30th day of May, 2019 
UDJN: A006.199B000401220 

For SUSHIL TIW ARI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Si?cretaries 
susmL TIW ARI 

Propriietor 
Membership No.ACS-6199 & Certificate of Pr,actice No. 1903 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L65921WB1991PLC051555 

Registered Office : I 0, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071 
Phone No: (+91(033) 2229-5735/7995/9626/7929, Fax No: +91(033) 2217-2751 

E-mail : info@dhpindia.com, Website: www.dilindia.co.in 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (C.E.O.) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER (C.F.O.) CERTIFICATION AS PER REGULATION 17(8) 
OF SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA {LISTING 

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015 

TO THE MEMBERS OF DHP INDIA LIMITED 

We, Asheesh Dabriwal, C.E.O. and Managing Director and Ashok Kumar Singh, C.F.O. of DHP 
INDIA LIMITED ("the Company") to the best ofour knowledge and belief certify that :-

1. We have reviewed the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 , 2020 and 
that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that :-
(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 

or contain statements that-might be misleading; 

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company' s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

2. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions are entered into 
by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's 
code of conduct. 

3. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls over financial reporting 
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems pertaining to 
financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps we have taken or proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee :-
a) Significant changes, if any, in internal controls over financial reporting during the year; 

b) Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

c) Instances of sign ificant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company's internal control system over financial reporting. 

Place : Kolkata For DHP TNDIA LIMITED 
Dated : 30th June, 2020. ASHEESH DABRJWAL 

Chief Executive Officer(CEO) & Managing Director 
Executive & Promoter Director (DIN -00044783) 

For DHP INDIA LIMITED 
ASHOK KUMAR SINGH 

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

-



SUSHIL TIW ARI & ASSOCIAlTES 
Company Secretaries 

31A, S.P.Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700 025. Phone No. (033) 2476-5908 & (033)24155-9891 

FORMNO. MR - 3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF "DHP INDIA LIMITE:0'' 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED : 31 ST MARCH, 2020 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
To 
The Members 
DHP INDIA LIMITED 
10, Middleton Row, 
Kolkata - 700 071. 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions aJ11d the adherence to 
good corporate practices by DHP India Limited (hereinafter called ''the Company''). The Secretarial Audit 
Compliance was conducted in a manner, which provided us a reasonable basis of evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opin ion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, fonns and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its o fficer, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
Company has, during the aud it period covering the financial year ended on 31 st March, 2020 (' Audit period") 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and a lso that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, fonns and returns filed and other records maintain by the Company 
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the provisions of:-

( i) The Companies Act, 2013 ("'the Act") and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the ReguJations and bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules,and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowings; 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(SEBI Act) :-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisitions of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011 ; 
(b) The Secur ities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
(c) T he Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and DisclostJLre Requirements) 

Regulations, 20 18 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations, 2014 

(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 20!09 (Not applicable 

to the Company during the Audi( Period); 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy.back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertibl1e and Redeemable 

Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 
Con/, poge2 



SUSHTIJ TIW ARI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

31A, S.P.Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700 025. Phone No. (033) 2476-5908 & (033)2455-9891 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF "DHP rNDIA LIMITED" FOR THE YEAR ENDED: 31ST MARCH, 2020 
(vi) We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed 

by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company. The list of 
major head/groups of Acts, Laws and Regulations as applicable to the Company is given as below :-

( I) The Factories Act, 1948 and Industrial (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951, 
(2) Labour Laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the Company on its 

payroll as related to wages, gratuity, provident fund, ESIC etc. of the Central and State Act. Labour Welfare 
Act of States, Shops and Establishment Act of the States and Professional Tax Act of the States etc. 

(3) Act prescribed under Direct Tax and Indirect Tax (like Finance Act, 1ncome Tax Act, Goods and Services 
Tax Act, Customs Act, lmport & Export Act and Rules etc.) 

(4) Acts prescribed under prevention and control of pollution, environment protection etc. 
(5) Land Revenue laws of the States and Trade Mark Act 1999. 

(vii) We have also examined compliance with the applicable clause of the following: 
(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(2) The Securities and ~xchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject and no observations were noticed. 

We further report that 
Based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also on review by the compliance 
reports of Company Secretary/Chief Executive Officer taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our 
opinion, adequate systems and processes exist in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with provisions of 
applicable general laws like labour laws and direct and indirect tax laws goods and service tax laws etc. 

The Board of Director of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors, Woman Directors, and Independent Directors. 

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
send at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further infonnation and clarifications on 
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 
meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and process in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during !he audit period the Company has not undertaken any events, action having a major 
bearing on the Companies Affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

3 1A, S. P. Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata - 700 025 
The 30th day of June, 2020 
UDIN: A006199B000410900 

For SUSHIL TIW ARI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 
SUSHIL TIWARI 

Proprietor 
Membership No.ACS-6199 & Certificate of Practice No.1903 

Note ; This report is to be read with our Jetter of even date which is annexed as "Annexure - A" and forms an integral part of this 
reporl. 



SUSHIL TIWARI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

31A, S.P.Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700 025. Phone No. (033) 2476-5908 & (033)2455-9891 

ANNEXURE - "A' {Forming part of Secretarial Audit Report} 
To 
The Member 
DHP INDIA LIMITED 
10, Middleton Row, 
Kolkata - 700 071. 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

l . Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, 
we followed, provide a reasonable basis of our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happing of events etc. 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test 
basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viabi lity of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

31A, S. P. Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata - 700 025 
The 30th day of June, 2020 
UDIN : A006199B000410900 

For SUSlliL TIW ARI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 
SUSHlL TIW ARI 

Proprietor 
Membership No.ACS-6I99 & Certificate of Practice No.1903 

,- . 
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SUSHIL TIW ARI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

31A, S.P.Mukberjee Road, Kolkata - 700 025. Phone No. (033) 2476-5908 & (033)2455-9891 

SECRETARIAL ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF "DIIP INDIA LIMITED" 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED : 31 ST MARCH, 2020 

To 
The Members 
DHP INDIA LIMITED 
10, Middleton Row, 
Kolkata - 700 071 . 

We Mis. Sushi/ Tiwari & Associates, Practicing Companies Secretaries have examined:-
(a) All the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by DHP INDIA LIMITED 

("the listed entity"), 
(b) The filing/submission made by the listed entity to the Stock Exchanges, 
(c) Website of the listed entjty, 
(d) Any other document/filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification, 

For the year ended 3151 March, 2020 ("Review Period") in respect of compliance with the provisions of:-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act") and the Regulations, circulars, 

guidelines issued thereunder; and 
(b) The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, 

circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"); 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, 
include :-

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015; 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisitions of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011 ; 

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period); 

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations, 2014 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference 
Shares) Regulations, 2013 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(h) Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
(i) Other Regulations as applicable and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder; 
U) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
(k) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
(I) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
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SUSHIL TIW ARI & ASSOCIJ\. TES 
Company Secretaries 

31A, S.P.Mukherjee Road, KoJkata - 700 025. Phone No. (033) 2476-5908 & (033)~!455-9891 

: 2; 

SECRETARIAL ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF "DHP INDIA LIMITED" 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED: 315TMARCH, 202:0 

(m) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

And based on the above examination. We hereby report that, during the Review Period :-
(a) The listed entjty has complied with the provisions of the above regulations and circulars/ guidelines 

issued thereunder, exce t in res ect of matters s ecified b~Jow :-
Sr. No, Compliance Requirement (Regulations/ Deviations Observations/ Remarks of the 

circulars/ uidelines includin s ecific clause 
------- N IL--------····-··-----·-------------- No deviation 

(b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and 
circulars/guidelines issued thereunder in so far as it appears from our examination of those records. 

(c) The. following are the detruls of actions taken against the listed entity / its Promoters / directors / material 
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures 
issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/Regulations and circulars/guidelines 
issued thereunder :-
Sr. No. Action taken by Details of Details of action taken Obser,vations/remarks of 

violation e.g. fines, warning the Practicing Company 
letter, debarments, etc. S~trctarv, if anv. 

-·------- -No Action Taken-- -----No violation-- --No action taken etc.- --All Regulation complied--

(d) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observatiom made in previous 
rt repo s:• 

Sr. No. Observations of the Observation made in the Action Comme1r1ts of the Practicing 
Practicing Company secretarial compliance taken by the Compainy Secretary on the 

Secretary in the report for the year listed entity, actions taken by the listed 
previous reports ended if any entity. 

------·-·- -No observations made -No observations made Not applied --All Regulation complied--
in any previous year ---- in any previous year----

We hereby confirm that no observations made in any previous year under secretarial audit report and we 
also confirm that during the year no action taken by any regulatory/govt. body against the Company, its 
promoter, its director and its managerial personnel etc. Similarly the listed entity have no subsidiary 
companies. The company have complied all rules, regulations and directions issu1ed under aforesaid 
regulations during the Review Period. 

31A, S. P. Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata - 700 025 
The 30th day of June, 2020 
UDIN: A006199B000401297 

For SUSHIL TIW ARI & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 
SUSHlL TIWARI 

Proprietor 
Membership No.ACS-61.99 & Certificate of Practice No.1903 



NAVIN NAYAR& COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

Address: Sbantiniketan Buildings, 8, Camac Street, 9th Floor, Room No.IS, Kolkata - 700 017. 
Email : navinayar.nnco@yahoo.com Phone No. 9831025559 

lNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

TO 
THE MEMBERS OF DHP INDIA LIMITED 

I. We NAVIN NA VAR & COMPANY, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of DHP INDIA 
LIMITED ("the Company"), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the 
Company for the year ended on 31'1 March, 2020, as stipulated in regulations I 7 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) 
of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (''SEBI Listing Regulations") for the year ended 31st March, 
2020. 

Managements' Responsibility 
2. The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This 

responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to 
ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 

Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither and audit 
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

4. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the 
Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance 
requirements by the Company. 

5. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of tlle Company in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 
ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as 
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificate for 
Special Purposes issued by the !CAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code 
of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements ofthe Standards on Quantity Control (SQC) I, 
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information and Other 
Assurance and Related Services Engagements. 

Opinions 
7. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanation provided 

to us and the representation provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the 
condition of Corporate Governance stipulated in regulations I 7 to 27 and clauses (b) to ( i) of regulation 46(2) 
and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBf Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2020. 

8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

8, Camac Street 
Kolkata - 700 017 
The 30th day of June, 2020 
UDIN : 20053267 AAAAAN3780 

For NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 
Firm Registration No. 317117£ 

Chartered Accountants 
NAVIN NAYAR 

Proprietor 
Membership No. 053267 



NA VIN NAYAR & COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

Address : Shantiniketan Buildings, 8, Camac Street, 9th Floor, Room No.15, Kolkata - 700 017. 
Email : navinayar.nnco@yahoo.com Phone No. 9831025559 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
UDIN : 20053267 AAAAAN3780 

TO THE MEMBERS OF DHP INDIA LIMITED 

l.Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements : 
(a) Opinion : 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of DHP INDIA LIMJTED ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit & Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "Standalone financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid 
Standalone financial statements give 1he information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity wi1h the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 
2015, as amended, (·'Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

(b )Basis for Opinion : 
We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 
of the Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the standalone financial statements 4nder the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the !CAi' s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone fi nancial statements. 

(c)Key Audit Matters : 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. As per our audit and verification of books and records and 
fact finding etc. we have determined that there are no separate key audit matters applied to this company 
which is communicated to the audit's report. Our audit report in unmodified and self explanatory. 

2.Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's 
Report Thereon : 
The Company's Board of Director is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
infonnation comprises the information included in the Board' s Report including Annexures to Board 's 
Report, Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, but does not include the 
standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 
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INDE PENDENT AUDLTORS' REPORT [UDIN: 20053267AAAAAN3780) 

Our opinion on standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and w1;: do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

lo connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, out responsibility is t,o read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtain during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. 

u: based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

3.Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements: : 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fai r view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash !lows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accouinting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibil ity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring th<! accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Companies 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless managemen1 either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

4.Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Staitements : 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exits. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on lthe basis of this 
standalone financial statements. 

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also : -

• Identify an assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial stati~ments, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform auctitprocedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resultirng from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

Cont. page 3 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT [UDIN: 20053267AAAAAN3780] 

• Obtain and understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section I 43(J)(i) of the Act, we also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
control systems 1n place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist relat1ed to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Companies ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exist, we are required to draw attention In our auditor' s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify o ur opinion. Our conclusion are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going conc,ern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone finan,cial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,. individually or 
in aggregate, makes its probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitatiive factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ji) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified mfastatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, th,e planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complie:d with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charge with governance, we determined those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We described this matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determined 
that a matter .should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

5. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

5.1 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books; 
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INDEPEN DENT AUDITORS ' REPORT (UDIN : 20053267AAAAAN3780] 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Statement of Chang~s in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report arc in 
agreement with the relevant books of account; 

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Corripanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014~ 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2020, taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31 , 2020 from being 
appointed as a directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in •~ANNEX URE - A''. Our 
report expresses and unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporting~ 

(g) With respect to the Other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance whh requirement 
of section 197( 16) of the Act, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information ant! 
according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during 
the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be jncluded in the Audjtor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which impact its fi nancial position in its 
Standalone financial statements; 

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, 
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts­
Refer Note No. 27.2 to the Standalone financial statements; 

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

5.2 As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order''), as amended, issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
"ANNEXURE- B", a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Order. 

8, Camac Street 
Kolkata - 700 017 
The 30th day of June, 2020 
UDIN : 20053267AAAAAN3780 

For NAVIN NAY AR & COMPANY 
Firm Registration No. 317117£ 

Chartered Accountants 
NAVIN NAYAR 

Proprietor 
Membership No. 053267 
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"ANNEXURE - A'' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
OF EVEN DATE ON THE STAND,~LONE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF DHP INJDIA LIMITED 
UDIN : 20053267 AAAAAN3780 

Report on the Internal Financial Control unde,r Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") - Referred to in paragraph 
5.J (f) of our report of even date to the Standalone financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended M:arch 31, 2020: 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial re:porting of DHP INDIA LIMITED (''the 
Company"), as of March 31, 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on.that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internaJ control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over financial Reporting issued by the ln:stitute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities includes the design, implementation. and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial infonnation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit i11 accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 
143( I 0) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicabk to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comp1ly with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethe:r adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit eviidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financia.1 reporting, assessing the risk that a ri1aterial weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operaling effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial-controls system over financial reporting of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as nec~ssary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use. 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reportingi including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, to the based of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the fnstitute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. 

8, Camac Street 
Kolkata - 700 017 
The 30th day of June, 2020 
UDIN : 20053267 AAAAAN3780 

For NAVIN NAY AR & COMPANY 
Firm Registration No. 317117£ 

Chartered Accountants 
NAVlN NAVAR 

Proprietor 
Membership No. 053267 

.... 
• ' 



NA VIN NAYAR & COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

Address : Shantiniketan Buildings, 8, Camac Street, 9th Floor, Room No.IS, Kolkata - 700 017. 
Email : navinayar.nnco@yahoo.com Phone No. 9831025559 

"ANNEXURE - B'' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
UDIN : 20053267AAAAAN3780 

Referred to in paragraph 5.2 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and 
,Regulatory Requirements'' of our report of even date to the Standalone financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 : 

I. In respect of the Company' s - Property, plant and equipment i.e. Fixed Assets: 
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particu lars, including quantitative 

details and situation of Fixed Assets. 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, 
designed to cover all the ite.ms over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, 
a portion of the fixed assets has physically verified by the management during the year and no 
material discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been 
noticed. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the records examined by us and 
based on examination of the conveyance deeds/registered sale deeds provided to us, we report 
that the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and bui ldings which are 
freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date. 

2. In respect of its Inventories : 
(a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals. 

(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records 
which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material. 

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to the companies, firms or other 
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

4. In our opinion and according to t he information and explanations gfven to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of 
loans, investments, guarantees and security. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and hence t he directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted 
from public are not applicable. 

6. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment 
Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We 
have, however not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine 
whether they are accurate or complete. 

Cont. page 2 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 
: 2 : 

" ANNEXURE - B'' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT [UDlN : 20053267AAAAAN3780) 

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the books of accounts, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues •including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, 
Duty of Customs, Value Added Tax, Cess, Goods & Service Taxes (IGST/CGST/SGST) and any 
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in 
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they 
become payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income-tax, 
duty of customs, value added tax, goods & service tax (IGST/CGST/SGST) outstanding on 
account of any dispute. 

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken loan either from financial 
institutions or from the government and has not issued any debentures. 

9 . Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the 
Order are not applicable to the .company and hence not commented upon. 

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanation given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its Officer or 
Employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

11. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanation given by the 
management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act. 

12. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

13. In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the deta ils have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the Information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not made any preferenttal i311otment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions 
of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

16. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve 
bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provislons of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

8, Camac Street 
Kolkata - 700 0 17 
The 30'h day of June, 2020 
UOIN: 20053267AAAAAN3780 

For NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 
Firm Registration No.317117£ 

Chartered Accounlu111s 
NAVIN NAYAR 

Proprietor 
Membership No. 053267 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 

Note Asat As at 

No. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

A ASSETS (Amount In Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

1 Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (Tanglable Fixed Assets) 3 10,41,95,678 14,99, 75,428 
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 1,56,06,000 ll,44,000 
Total Non-Current Assets (1) 11,98,01,678 15,11,19,428 

2 current Assets 
(a) Inventories 5 12,55,41,557 11,45,40,640 

(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 6 39,21,50,173 42,78,99,121 

(ii) Trade Receivables 7 3,87,65,935 6,92,10,833 
(iii ) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 6,88,56,815 36,21,341 

-(iv) Other Financial Assets 9 1,30,98,929 2,06,36,839 

(b) Total Financial Assets 51,28,71,852 52,13,68,134 

(c) Other Current Assets 10 25,00,191 (12,80,041) 
Total Current Assets (2) [a+b+cj 64,09,13,600 63,46,28,733 

['\)TOTAL ASSETS (1+2) 76,07,15,278 78,57,48,161 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1 Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 11 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 

(b) Other Equity 12 65,52,17,554 67,95,44,576 

Total Equity (1) 68,52,17,554 70,95,44,~76 

2 Liabilities 
(a) Total Non-current liabilities (a) - -
(b) Current Liabilities 

li) Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings (Short-term working capital borrowings) 13 2,00,00,000 3, 12,90,023 

Trade Payables 14 3,41,69,589 2,08,91,214 

Other Financial Liabilities (Unclaimed Dividend) 4,65,205 4,09,088 

(ii) Current Tax liabilities (Net) 15 61,59,389 66,73,877 

(iii) Other Current Liabilities 16 1,47,03,541 1,69,39,383 

Total Current liabilities (b) 7,54,97,724 7,62,03,585 

Total liabilities (2) 7,54,97,724 7,62,03,585 

[BJ TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1+2) 76,07,15,278 78,57,48,161 

See Accompanying Notes Forming Parts of The Finandal Statements 

8, Ca mac Street 
Kolkata • 700 017. 

In terms of our report of even date 
For NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 317117£ 

NAVIN NAYAR 

The 30th day of June, 2020 Proprietor 
UDIN: 2.0053267AAAAAN3780 Membership Mo. 053267 

- -

1 to 27.15 

For and on behalf of the Board 
ASHE'ESH DABRIWAL • M.O. & C.E.O. (DIN-00044783) 

JANAK BHARDWAJ· Director & C.0 .0. (OIN-00047641) 

8UODHAOEB BASU - Independent Director (DIN-00061771) 

AS HOK KUMAR SINGH ~ Chief Financial Officer 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the ye,ar ended 31st March, 2020 

A CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

INCOME 
1 Revenue from Operations (net) 

(a) Sale of Products 

(b) Other Operating Revenue 

2 Other Income 

3 TOTAL INCOME (1+2) 

4 EXPENSES 

Note 

No. 

17 
18 
19 

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 20 

(b) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Scrap Goods 21 

(c) Employee Benefits Expense 22 
(d) Finance Costs 23 

(e) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 3 

(f) Other Expenses 

(i) CSR Expenses• Contribution to PMNRF 
(ii) Other Expenses 24 

TOTAL EXPENSES (4) 

5 Profit Before Exceptional Items & Tax (3-4) 

6 Exceptional Items 

Provision for Dimunatlon in Value of Invest. in Mutual Fund 
(Less) : Deferred Tax Assets on such Provision on Exceptional Items 

Net of Tax of Exceptional Items - Provision for Investments 

7 Profit Before Tax (5-6) 

8 Tax Expenses : 

(a) Current Tax Expenses for Current Year 

(b) Income Tax Expenses refated t-o Ea rifer Year 

(c) Net of Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets) 

Total Tax Expenses (8) 

9 Profit for the year from Continuing Operation (7-8) 

B DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS 
10 Profit from Discontinuing Operations 

C TOTAL OPERATIONS 

11 Profit for the year i.e. Profit After Tax (9+10} 

5 

25 

12 Other Comprehensive (loss)/ Income for the Year 26 

(i) Items th,;1rt will not be reclassified to Proflt & Loss (Loss)/lncome 

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be redassified to P & L 

Total Other Comprehensive (Loss)/ Income [(i)•(ii)] 

13 Total Comprehensive (Loss)/ Income for tne period (11+12) 

14 Earning per equity shares of face value of Rs.10 eac'h of Total Operation & 

Continuing Operations - both Basic & Diluted (in Rs.) 

See Accompanying Notes forming Parts of The financial Statements 1 to 27.15 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2020 
(Amount In Rs.) 

47,87,01,127 
7,66,00,298 
3,68,54,613 

59,21,56,038 

28,35,74,904 
(1,51,30,148) 

8,98,26,871 
19,88,106 

1,7S,38,477 

29,71,000 
6,46,48,942 

44,54,18,152 

14,67,37,886 

9,73,49,827 
(1,41,15,000) 

8,32,34,827 

6,3S,03,059 

3,18,13,090 

·-
7,77,000 

3,25,90,090 
3,09,12,969 

--

3,09,12,969 

(4,73,22,345) 
(11,24,000) 

(4,61,98,345) 

(1,52,85,376) 

10.30 

For and on behalf of the Board 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2019 

(Amount In Rs,) 

56,46, 73,404 

10,68,11,665 
52,07,232 

67,66,92,301 

34,28,36,244 

(7,36,792) 

8,06,86,309 

16, 15,514 
1,34146,250 

24,30,000 

6,81, 73,022 

50,84,50,547 

16,82,41,754 

-·· 
·-- -~ 

--
16,82,41,754 

4,68,54,323 

13,569 

2,79,000 
4,71,46,892 

12,10,94,862 

- -

12,10,94,862 

89,20,501 

(10,98,000) 

78,22,501 

12,89,17,363 

40.36 

In terms of our report of even date 

For NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

ASHEESH OABRIWAL - M .O. & C.E.O. (DIN'-00044783) 

JANAK BHARDWAJ• Director & C.O.O. (DIN-00047641) 

8, Camac Street 

Kolkata - 700 017. 

Firm Registration No. 317117E 

NAVIN NAYAR 
The 30th day of June, 2020 Proprietor 

UDIN ; 20053267AAAAAN3780 Membership Mo. 053267 

BUOOHAOEB BASU· Independent Director (DIN-00061771) 

ASHOK KUMAR SINGH • Chief Financial Office~ 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INOIA LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity For the Year Ended 31st March, 2020 

[A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particulars 

AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Balance at the beginning of the Reporting period i .e. 1st April, 2018 

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the rinancial Year 2018-19 

Balance at the end of the Reporting period i.e. 31st March, 2019 

AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Balance at the beginning of the Reporting period i.e. 1st April, 2019 

Changes in Equi ty Share Capital during the financial Year 2019-20 

Balance at the end of the Reporting period i.e. 31st March, 2020 

[BJ OTHER EQUITY 

3,00,00,000 

3,00,00,000 

Securitiei Premium 

ReS<!rve (Rs.) 

General Reserve 

Particulars 

AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Balance at the beginning of the Reporting period i .e . 1st Apr11, 2018 

/Less} : Other Comprehensive Income {Unrealised Gain of £q.Orienred Unics a/ 

Units of Mutual Fund) as on OJ/04/1018 /Net of Ta11) lrf./regroupped 

Add: Trf. of Profit for the Year & Other Comprehensive Income {Net of TaK) 

(Less) : Dividend Declared & Pald 

(Less) : Tax on Di\lidend paid 

Transfer to/ (from) Retained Earnings 
Balance at the end of the Reporting period i.e. 31st March, 2019 

AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Balance at the beginning of the Reporting period I.e. 1st April, 2019 

Add : Trf. of Profit for the Year & Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 

Dividend 

Tax on Dividerid 
Transfer to/ (from) Retained Earnings 

Balance at the end of the Reporting period i.e. 31st.March, 2020 

10,00.000 

10,00,000 

10,00,000 

10,00,000 

See Accompanying Notes Forming Parts of The Financial Statements 1 to 27.15 

8, Ca mac Street 

Koll<ata • 700 017. 
The 30th day of June, 2020 
UDIN ~ 20053267AAAAAN3780 

In terms of our report of even date 

for NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 317117E 

NAVIN NAYAR 
Proprietor 

Membership No. 053267 

(Rs.) 

ss,ss,00,000 

12,00,00,000 
67,8S,00,000 

67,85,00,000 

(2,43,00,000) 

65,42,00,000 

Retained 

earnings (Rs.f 

1,68,859 

(3,83,75,844) 

12,10,94,862 

(75,00,000) 
(15,41,646) 

(12,00,00,000) 
(4,61,S3,769) 

(4,61,53, 769) 

3,09,12,969 

(75,00,000) 

( 15,41,646) 

2,43,00,000 

17,554 

Other Comprehe­

nsive Income (Rs.} 

Equity lrm. (U"ro•H••d 

Gain of Eq. M•tuol Fundl 

3,83,75,844 

78,22,501 

4,61,98,345 

4,61,98,345 

(4,61,98,345) 

Total 

(Rs.I 

SS,96,68,8S9 

12,89,17,363 

(75,00,000) 

( 15,41,646) 

67,95,44,576 

67,95,44,576 

(1,52,85,376) 

(75,00,000) 

(15,41,646) 

651S2,17,554 

For and on behalf of the Board 
ASHEESH DA&RIWAl - M,0 _ & C.E.O. (DIN-00044783) 

JANAII BHARDWAJ -Director & C.0.0. (DIN-00047641) 
BUDDHADEB BASU• Independent Director (DIN--00061771) 

ASHOK KUMAR SINGH · Chief Financial Officer 



NAVIN NAVAR &COMPAN Y 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st Marc:h, 2020 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

N•t Profft kfote &tnord~ry ttems and taic .as per 5tatttment of Profit and Lou 

Adjustment for ; 

Depreciatron and amortisation (Non-Cash Expenditure) 

(Excess Funded) Gratui ty as per Ind AS-19/Provision for Gratuity 

Finance Costs (for Separate Consideratlonl 

{Profit) on sale of Fi•ed Assets (for separate consideration) 

(Income} from lnvesttntmt on Mutual F\Jnd (for Separatte Con.s.ideratlon) 

Interest (Income) (for Separate Consideration} 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Ch;,nges 
Changes in Working capital : 

Adiustment for flricreaseVdecrease in operating assets : 
Inventories 

Trade Receivables 

Other Financial Assets 

Adiustment for increase l{decreast!/ in pperatJnq liabilitit!5 ; 
Trade Payables 

Other Financial Liabilities (Unclaimed Dividend) 

Other Current Uabilfties 

Cash Generated from Operat1ons 

Net Income Tax (Paid) 

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTl VITIES (A) 

B CASH, FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest income 

Sale of Fixed Assets 

(Investment) in Acquisition of Plant, Machinery & EqLfipments IFi,ed Assets) 

Current Investments not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalent ,. 

(a) (Investment} of Current Investment in Mu tual Fund 

(b) Net of Sale Proceeds received from Sale of Curre~t lnvescmenisof Mutual fund 

NET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (BJ 

C CASH FLOW FROM/ (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net Increase I I Decrease I in Borrowings (Working Capital) 

(less): Payment ot Dividend & Di\lldend Tax 

(less): Finance Cost 

NET CASH FLOW FROM/ (USED IN} FINANCING ACTIVITIES (CJ 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Vear 

Cash and Cash Equivalent·s at the End of the Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Vear Comprises ; 

(al Cash -,n Hand 
(bl Balances with Banks:­

(i) In Current Accounts 

(Ii) In Fixed Deposit Accounts 

(111) Jn Unpaid Dividend Accounts 

Net Cash and 8;,n~ Balances as per Balance Sheet 

For the year ended 
31.rt March, 2020 

(Amount In Rs.) 

l,7S,38,4TT 
(37,,80,232) 
19,,88,106 

(l,~,89,480) 
(SS:,20,475) 
(2,,54,201) 

(1,10,00,91.7) 
3,04,,44,898 

75,,37,910 

1,32,.78,375 
56,117 

(22,,3S,842) 

14,67,37,886 

(65,17,805) 

- 14,02,20,081 

2,69,81,891 

1,10,98,650 
17,83,00,622 
(3,23,27,578) 
14,59, 73,044 

2,54,201 

6,55,28,814 
(2,07,98,061) 

(17,15,00,000) 
6,80,97,251 

(S,84,17, 795) 

(1,12,90,023) 
(90,41,646) 
(19,88,106) 

(2,23,19,775) 

6,52,35,474 
36,21,341 

6,88,56,81S 

2,70,663 

6,63,25,163 
17,95,783 
4,65,206 

6,88,56,815 

For the year ended 

3151 March. 2019 

(Amount in Ro;.) 

1,34.46,250 
16,60,572 

16, ts,514 

929 

(95, 76,776) 
(2,71,074) 

(25,64,935) 

(2,33,50,111) 

1,97,08,329 

87,56,118 

6Z,040 
16,24,314 

16,82,41,754 

68.75.415 

17,51,17,169 

(62,06, 717) 

l ,04,_42,472 

17.93.52.92-4 
(5,34,02,878) 

12.59,50,046 

Ul,074 

10,938 

(4,49,34,8411 

(t2,60,00,000) 

4,90,00,000 

(12,16,52,829) 

JS,48.44 2 

(90,41.646) 

(16.15,514) 

(91,08, 718) 

(48,11,501) 

84,32,842 

36,ll,341 

2,95,359 

9,79,003 
19,37,891 

4.09.088 
36,21,341 

Note : The Cash Flow Statements reflects the Cash flow of contlnuing operations. There are no discontinued operations. 

5•• Accompanying Nole. Forming PartS of The Ananclal StatemMts 1 to 27.15 -

8, Camat Street 

~olkata • 700 Ql7. 

The 30th day of June, 2020 

UDIN : 20053267AAAAAN3780 

In terms of our report of even date 

For NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANV 

Chartered Accountant.s 

firm Registration No. 317117E 

NAVIN .NAYAR 
Proprietor 

Membership No. 0S3267 

For and on behalf of the Board 

ASHEESH DABRIWAl • M.O. & C.E,0. IOIN•00044783I 

JANAK BHARDWAJ . Director & C.O.O. IDIN.000476411 

BUDDHADEB BASU - lnd•pendent Director (DIN-00061771) 

ASHOK KUMAR SINGH · Chlel Ananclal Officer 
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NA VIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
1.1 COVID - 19 Pandemic effected : 

In view of the lock-down declared across the country by the Central / State Government due to COVID-19 
pandemic during second half of March 2020, the Company's operations were adversely impacted. The operations 
have since resumed in a phased manner from May 2020 in accordance with the guidelines issued by relevant 
regularity authorities with regard to adhering of social distancing and following prescribed hygiene standards. 
The Company continues to comply with such guidelines from time to time. 

The Company has sufficient liquidity / financing arrangements for the continuity of business operations. The 
Company is confident of its ability to service the debt / financing arrangements. The lock-down due to COVID-
19 is continuing with certain relaxation in FY 2020-21 and Company is continuing its operations with existing 
demand. The Company has assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 based on the .current circumstances and 
expects no significant impact on the continuity of operations of the business on long-term basis. The Company 
does not have any material risk of non-fulfilment of obligations by any party arising out of existing contracts / 
arrangements. 

1.2 Other Corporate Information: 
DHP India Limited ("the Company") is a listed entity incorporated in India. The Company is a mid-sized 
manufacturing Company of Engineering Goods like Liquified Petroleum Gas Regulator (LP GAS Regulator), 
Accessories and Parts thereof. The Company is ISO 900 l : 2015 Certified. The Company manufactures various 
designs- of LP Gas Regulators, its Parts and Accessories as per requirement of export markets. As per Section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the product of 
h C d d N R I d S h' h b I t e ompany covere un er on- el!ll ate ector, w 1c are as e ow:-

Name of the Custom Tariff Act (CTA) Head & Description of manufacturing 
Industry/Sector/Product/Services Code of Product Products or activities 

Under Non-Re2ulated Sector 
Other Machinery 848) LPG Regulators for 

(84 818090 & 84819090) Cylinders, accessories & 
parts thereof 

Base Metals 7419 Articles of Brass used as 
(74 199930) accessories ofLPG 

Regulators 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES : 
2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Presentatioo : 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the lndian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 I 5 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, ("the Act") and other relevant provisions of 
the Act. 
Company' s financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees, which is also its functional currency. 
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except the 
following items :-
a) Financial Assets - Current Investment in Mutual Fund - Valued at Fair Market Value. 
b) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities - Valued at Fair Value on Balance Sheet approach. 
c) Other Comprehensive Income/(Losses) and Exceptional lncome/(Losses) on Unrealised 

Gain/(Losses) on Mutual Fund as Current Investment - Valued on Fair Market Value. 
d) Current Assets/Liabilities in Fore ign Currencies - Valued at Fair Market Value on lower of closing 

forex rate and/or relatively future forward contract rate as on 31 st Marc h, 2020. 
e) Revenue from Operation includes Indirect Taxes collected from parties ( IGST/CGST/SGST) and 

reflected as Gross Revenue recognized and the payment of the same Indirect Taxes 
(lGST/CGST/SGST) reflected from Statement of Profit & Loss. 

Conr. 2 



NA YIN NAY AR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITE'.D 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

2.2 Use of Estimates and Judgements : 
In preparation these Standalone Financial statements, man:agement has made judgements, estimate..s 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. 

The company has exercised due care in determining its, significant accounting judgements and 
estimates while preparing its financial statements including internal control over financial reporting 
d_ue to COVID• 19 pandemic situation. As per the current assessment of the Company, there are no 
material impact on the carrying values of trade receivabks, inventories and other financial / non 
financial assets as at the reporting date. The Compa11y continues to closely monitor the developments 
in economic conditions and access their impact. However, considering the prevailing uncertainties, the 
final impact may differ from current estimates made as at the date of approval of financial statements 
for the year et1ded 31st March, ·2020. 

2.3 Measurement of Fair values : 
The Company has valued Financial Assets: (a) Investment i1n Mutual Funds, (b) Trade Receivable and 
Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables at a fair vaJue. Impact of fair value changes, if any as on the date 
of transition, is recognized in opening reserves and changes thereafter are recognized in Statement of 
Profit & Loss during the period. 

2.4 Cash Flow Statement and Cash and Cash Equivalents : 
Cash flow statements are reported using the indirect method, where profit before extraordinary items 
and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of 
past or future cash receipts or payments. The Cash Flows from operating, investing and financing 
activities of the Company are segregated based on available information. 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivaJents are short-term 
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisitions), highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk or changes in value. 

2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation : 
Property. Plant and Equipment i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost. less allowable net 
recoverable taxes like GST (IGST/CGST/SGST) Credit allowable, Import Duty Credit allowable less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Suc:h costs include purchase price, overheads 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use less any 
recoverable tax credit entitled. 

Depreciation on such tangible. assets have been provided on the written down value method as per the 
useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2.6 Impairment of assets : 
The carrying amount of the Property, Plant & Equipment i.e. Fixed Assets are reviewed at each 
Balance Shee-t date. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is 
estimated and impairment is recognized. An impairroeot loss .is charged to the Depreciation Schedule 
and Statement of Profit and Loss in the year which the assets is identified as impaired. 

Cont. 3 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

: 3: 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 318

T MARCH, 2020 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES : 
2. 7 Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities and Provision for Deferred Tax : 

During the year the Company has adopted and exercise the Section l 15BAA (Lower Tax Rate and 
simultaneously forgo certain tax incentives, deductions and accumulated MAT Credit) as per Income 
Tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities valued on Balance Sheet approach on availability of future taxable 
profit against whicb tax losses and tax benefit carried forward can be used. Provision for Deferred Tax 
recognized on the timing differences between the taxable income and the accounting income that 
originate in one period and are capable of the reversal in one or more subsequent period enacted as at 
the reporting date. 

2.8 Inventories : 
ftems of inventories are measured as per "Valuation of Inventories" guidelines issued by Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and Institute of Cost Accountants of India. The details as fo llows :-
a) Stock of Raw Materials (inclusive of various components), Stock of Stores, spares & Consumables 

are valued at Cost on FIFO (First in First Out) basis (excluding the amount of IGST/CGST/SGST 
Credit allowable). A separate Ledger of IGST/CGST/SGST credit allowable has been maintained 
for the purpose of ut ilization of IGST/CGST/SGST credit and the same adjusted against the 
payment of Output IGST/CGST/SGST liability on account of any Sales. However the 
JGST/CGST/SGST realization from party and paid shown in a separate head in the statement of 
Profit & Loss as per Ind AS format. Rebate on IGST on exported goods, if any realized or 
receivable has been adjusted against such payment of IGST liability on exported goods. 

b) Stock of Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost (excluding of the amount of 
IGST/CGST/SGST credit aJlowable) or net realizable value. 

c) Stock of Scrap materials such as Brass Generated Scrap, Zinc ash/Dross, and M. S. Scrap are 
valued at net realizable value. 

d) There is no deviation in method of valuation of stock as prescribed under section 142A of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961. Similarly there are no changes of method of accounting since previous year 
as per Ind AS accounting method. 

2.9 Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities : 
Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities are valoed at fair market value. The details as below :-
a) Investments in Mutual Fund are valued at fair market value as per Ind AS method of accounting. 

Any differences from market value and cost treated as Unrealised Gain/(Losses) and their deferred 
tax assets/liabilities are provided in Statement of Profit & Loss Account as Other Comprehensive 
Income /(Losses) and/or Exceptional Income /(Losses). 

b) Trade Payables and Trade receivables are valued fair Market value. Receivables and payable in 
Foreign Currencies are valued at lower of the closing market rate or relatively future forward 
contract rate on Balance Sheet date and any differences are recognized through Statement of Profit 
& Loss Account. 

Cnnr .J 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 315

T MARCH, 2020 

2. SIGN[FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES : 
2.10 Provisions and contingencies: 

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation· as a result of past events and its 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a 
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discontinues to their 
present value and are determined based on the best, estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

However as per implementation of Ind AS there are no provision made for proposed dividend and their 
dividend taxes, which will be approved in forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Only the actual 
declaration of dividend and their taxes wi ll be provided on the date of Annual General Meeting. 

2.11 Revenue Recognisation and Government Grants: 
The revenue are recognized as follows :-
a) Sale of Manufactured Goods : Export Sales in fore ign currencies are recognized on prevai ling 

exchange rate on the date of transaction of sales invoice less any export return of goods. The 
fluctuation of foreign currencies on the date of transaction and the date of actual realization etc. are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under a separate account head. The IGST payment 
on exported goods, if any, are claimed as rebate after successful export. However there is no 
amount of JGST on Exported Goods reflected through Statement of Profit and Loss. 

b) Sale of Scrap : As per Ind AS method the Domestic sales recognized on actual sales basis plus 
collection of IGST/CGST/SGST. The payment of above JGST/CGST/SGST again reflected in 
expense side of Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c) Government Grants, subsidies and Export incentives : The Export benefit like Sale of Licence 
and Duty Drawback are covered as export subsidies and the same are accounted for in the year of 
such actually materialized. 

2.12 Foreign currency transaction and tr:anslations: 
The foreign currencies transactions are recognized as follows :-
a) Initial recognition : Transaction in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted 

at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction or at the rates that closely 
approximate the rate at the date of transaction. 

b) Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date : Foreign 
currency monetary items (other than derivative contracts) of the Company outstanding at the 
balance Sheet date are restated at the year-end rates. Exchange differences arising out of these 
transactions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c) Treatment of exchange differences : Exchange differences arising on settlement/restatement of 
short-term foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the Company relates to any 
transactions are recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C'om. J 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2020 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES : 
2.12 Foreign currency transaction and translations: 

d) Accounting of forward contracts : Premium/discount on forward exchange contracts, which are 
not intended for trading or speculation purposes are amortised over the period o f the contracts if 
such contracts relate to monetary items as at the BaJance Sheet date. Due to COVJ-19 pandemic the 
short-term fluctuation in foreign currencies rate adversely effected the forward exchange contracts 
and their MTM (Marked to Market) losses of outstanding forward exchange contracts are not 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.13 Other Income, Other Expenditures, Other Comprehensive Income/ (Losses) and Exceptional 
Income / (Losses) : 
a) lnvestment Income on actual transaction are recognized on actual basis. 
b) Unrealised Gain /(Losses) on Investment lncome recognized as Other Comprehensive Income / 

(Losses) and/or Exceptio11al Income / (Losses) along with their deferred tax assets/liabilities on the 
basis of fair market value at the prevailing Balance Sheet date as per implementation of Ind AS. 

c) Interest Income are recognized on accrual basis. 
d) Other expenses (other than Borrowing Cost and Employees benefits, which shows separately) are 

recognized on accrual basis. 

2.14 Borrowing Cost i.e. Finance Cost : 
The accounting for borrowing costs represented as Finance Cost in Statement of profit and Loss and Its 
include interest, amortization of ancillary cost incurred and exchange differences, if any arises from 
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. 

2.15 Employee Benefits : 
Employee benefit include employees provident fund, group gratuity fund. 
a) Defined contribution plans : 

The Company' s contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plans to 
Recognised Provident Fund (EPFO) which are fully funded and administered by the Central 
Government. 

b) Defined benefit plans : 
For defined benefit plans in the form of Group Gratuity Pund, the cost of providing benefits is 
determined using the actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial 
gain and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they 
occur. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present 
value of defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the 
fair value of scheme assets. Any assets resulting from calculation is limited to past service cost 
plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the schemes. 
The Company contributes to the Group Gratuity Fund under a Group Gratuity cash Accumulated 
Scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LICI) for future payment of Gratuity liability to 
its employees. 

c) Short-term employee benefits : 
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the 
service rendered by employees are recognized during the year when the employees render the 
service. These benefits includes Leave Encashment benefit of unutilized leave and bonus/exgratia, 
both are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss each year on accrual basis. There are no rules 
in the Company for any carried forward unutilized leave benefits. 

Cont. 6 
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DHP INDIA LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 315

T MARCH, 2020 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES : 

2.16 GST Input Credit: Custom Duty payment elements, Goods and Services Tax payment elements on Purchase / 
Import / Reverse Charges payment, whichever applied, covered and allowable as JGST/CGST/SGST credit are 
accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service received is accounted. 

2.17 Taxes on Income : The provision for current income tax and the amount of tax payable on taxable income for 
the year as determined with exercising the section 11 SBAA of the Income Tax Act, 196 l. Provision for 
deferred tax assets/liabilities charged to Statement of Profit and Loss measured on differences of Valuation of 
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities from one Balance Sheet date to next Balance Sheet date. 

2.18 Earning per share : The Basic Earning Per Share is computed by dividing the Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax, by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted Earning Per Share is 
computed by divining the Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax, as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to 
expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity 
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares 
which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The Company has not 
incurred any expenses for issue of shares, hence the Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share of before and after 
extraordinary items are same. 

l.19 Dividend and Dividend Tax : As per Ind AS presentation tbe Divideod and their taxed appropriates from 
Profit and Loss on actual dividend declaration basis. There are no provisions made for proposed dividend and 
their taxes, which will be approved in forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

2.20 Hedge accounting : The Company used foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risk associated with 
foreign currency fluctuations relating to highly probable forecast transactions. The Company designates such 
forward exchange contracts in a cash flow hedging relationship by applying the hedge accounting principles set 
out in Accounting Standard (AS) - 30. This forward exchange contracts are stated at fair value of each 
reporting date. The MTM (Marked to Market) losses are a short-tenn phase due to COVID-19 pandemic 
impact, hence, no provision made in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account, but the same has been disclosed 
in the Notes. 

2.2 l Derivative contracts : The Company enters into derivative contracts in the nature of forward exchange 
contracts with an intension to hedge its existing assets and liabilities and highly probable transactions. 
Derivative contracts which are closely linked to the existing assets and liabilities are accounted as per the 
policy stated for "Foreign currency transactions and translations". Derivative contracts designated as a 
hedging instrument for highly probable forecast transactions are accounted as per the policy stated for ''Hedge 
accounting". The MTM (Marked to Market) losses are a short-tenn phase due to COVID-19 pandemic impact. 
hence, no provision made in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account, but the same has been disclosed in the 
Notes. 

2.22 Segment reporting : The Company has only one primary segment i.e. manufacturing of Engineering Goods 
i.e. Liquified Petroleum Gas Regulator (LP Gas Regulator), accessories and parts thereof. The Secondary 
segment of its geographical markets like domestics (within India) and export (outside India) are reportable 
regularly. 

2.23 Operating Cycle : Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between 
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has detennined its operating 
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. 

Com, 7 
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NAVIN NI\YAR & COMPANY CONTINUATION SHEET 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
NOT( . "3" Of. NON-CURRENT ASSITS [TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS · PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT) ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART Of THE STANDAtONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH , 2020 

G R 0 s s 8 L 0 C K DEPRECIATION ANO AMORTISATION NET 8 l O C K 

TANG I BLE Opening Additions Disposal Total Opening Depredation Disposal Total As at As at 

ASSETS As at during the during the As at As at & lmpaJrment during the As at 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 

01.04.2019 year year 31.03.2020 01.04.2019 during the yur V(!ar 31.03.2020 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

(al LANO (Freehold) : 

(i) Land with Factory - Dhulagarh 92,49,340 ···- --~·- 92,49,340 -·- -- -··· - 92,49,340 92,49,340 

(ii) Land - lshlampur 4,89,52,078 · -·· 4,89,52,078 -·- - -· - - ·· --- . 4,89,52,078 

lb) Buildln~ (Own usel : 

(i) Fattory Building • Ot,ulagarh 6,00, 11,166 57,08,105 --- 6,57,19,271 2,65,26,244 33,97,093 --· 2,99,23,337 3,57,95,934 3,34,84,922 

(ii) fi•ed Electrical Installation ln Building 24,76,309 - ·· 24,76,309 12,08,830 3,34,172 - 15,43,002 9,33,307 12,67,479 

le) Plant & EguiQment (own used) : 

(i) Plant & Machinery (other thao Office 

Equipment and Computer) 14,29,93,657 1,10,78,457 47,71,343 14,93,00, 771 8,74,07,421 1,29,54,703 47,71,343 9,$'5,90,781 5,37,09,990 5,55,86,236 

(ii) Computer 2,25,638 46,815 61,572 2,10,881 1,76,768 48,483 61,572 1,63,679 47,202 48,870 

(d) Furniture & Fixtures (Owned) 6,59, 037 31,800 2,19,977 4,70,860 4,82,171 64,900 2,19,977 3,27,094 1,43,766 1,76,866 

(e) Office EqUlpment (Owned) 43,510 13,800 43,510 13,800 40,097 5,452 43,S.10 2,039 11,761 3,413 

(f) Vechiles & .Motor car {Owned) 75,33,164 39,19,084 14,44,840 1,00,07,408 63,26,940 7,33,674 13,57,584 57,03,030 43,04,378 12,06,224 

GRAND TOTAL 27,21,43,899 2,,07,98,061 5,54,93,320 23,74,48,640 12,21,68,4 71 1,7S,38,477 64,53,986 13,32,S2,962 10,41,9S,678 14, 99,75,428 

PREVIOUS VEAR 23,05, 11,253 4,49,34,841 33,02,195 27,21,43,899 11,20, 12,549 1,34,46,250 32,90,328 12,21,68,471 14,99,75,428 11,84,98,704 

Note : 1) Pursuant to th• enaron,nt of Companies Act 20l3, the Company has applied the estimated useful lives as speclfled In Schedule II on w.d.v. method according to lhelr uselul life ofasseu, 

2) Disposal durin1 the year In Gross Bladt of Rs.5,54,93,320/- 1s not the Sale Price of Flud Assets, It Is a Cost Pr lee of fi.ed Assets e(gther rold nelgther fully depreciated fb~d assets during the year. 

3) Disposal durln& th• year In Oep<edatlon Bloc!< of Rs.64,53,986/- is the cumulative depreciation of Fll(f?d Assets which Is fully depreciated and cumul;itlve depretlatlon of Sale of Motor Car during the year. 

4) During the year only three FiKed Assets sold and their Sale value as {a) Freehold land Sale value Rs.6,S0,00,000/· I.bl Old Transformer Sale value Rs,S0,000/-lc] Old Motor Car Sale Value Rs,4,78,814/-. 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Formi ng Part of The St andalone Financial Statements for t he Year Ended 31st March, 2820 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS As at 31st A5 at 3 1st 

Ma rch, 2020 (Rs.) March, 2019 (Rs.) 

4 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET} 

(a] Related to Profit & Loss Account 
Deferred Tax Assets atlslng on account of Depredation on Flked ASsets n.20,000 18,04,000 

Deferred Tu AsselS arlsl~I on account of Carried forward lo55es - - 2,09,000 

{less)/ Add : Deferred Tax (Ueblllty) / Assets on £•cess of funded Value of Group 

Gratuity over Actuarial Valuation as per l'nd AS - 19 (6,29,000) 3,56,000 
(Len) Deferred Tax (Uablllties) arl1ln1 on account ot PKW4JJOi'\ to, lttvutmtnt l ,41,15,000 !1,01,000) 

1,56,06,000 22,68,000 

(bl Related to Other Com11rehenslve Income 
(Less) : Deferred Ta• Uablllty arlslnc on account of Prov. for Investment under OCI -- U 1,24,000) 

1,56,06,000 11,44,000 

5 INVENTORIES 
(a) Raw Materials (including vario us Components) 

(I) Raw Materials-Indigenous (Brass, Zinc & Others) 1,98,49,629 2,35, 11,798 

(ill Ra.w Materials-Imported (Brass) 2,74,53,519 3,00,44,230 

(IO) Components-Indigenous (parts of Raw Materials) 3,30,56,849 2, 72,68,965 

(iv) Com·ponents-lmported (parts of Raw M aterials) 63,34,332 1,02,13,912 

Sub-Total of Raw Materia ls (Including various Components) 8,66,94,329 9. 10.38,905 

(b) Finishe d Goods {Manufactured) 1,41,86,523 2,42,482 

(c) Si ores and Spares 1,31,92, 258 1,29,76,913 

(d) Scrap Materials (Brass Scrap/M.S,Suap & Zinc Ash) 1, 14,68,447 1,02,82,340 

12,55,41,557 11,45,40,640 

Notes : (1) 113w Materials (lndudln1 various Components), Traded Goods&. Stores and Spares are valued at Cost. 

(2) Anlshtd Goods (Manufactured) are valu~ at Cost or Market Value, whichever 1, less. 

(3) Scrap Materlal• are valued at net rHNsable value 

14) 'll,e 1bove stock are certified by the manacement and there are no ch•n&H of.method of valuation since earlier year. 

(5) Similarly there are no deviation In method of.voluatlon of stoclras prescribed U/s.14SA of the Income Tu Act, 1961. 

6 CURRENT INVESTMENTS Face As a,t 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 

QShtt Currtot lnvtttmc!ll ,~alued at.fair Mfrill S ~i!ll!ll Value Nr>. of lJnltt Value asat ~Q. of 0 Ai11 Value as at 

\nttnms:at f!! Um1uote-d Egulti Qr1'otld Unlb of Mutual funi1 Rs. ot MYluitJ 1rund 31/ 03/2020 IRs-l of Mutu•I fund 3l/03/W l9 (Rs.) 

Axis Bluechtp fund • Regular Plan -Growth 10 386956.:738 1,25,00,000 ..... ...... 
Alcis Focused 25 Plan Fund · llegular Plan •Growth 10 400276.:795 1,25,00,000 ··- · --
DSP Equity Opportunities Fund -Regular Plan- Grow th 10 371971J,76 7,70,00,000 274699.956 5,42,53,666 

franklin India Prima Fund-Re gular:Plan-Growth 10 85388.352 7,70,00,000 62095.494 5,43,44, 783 

HDFC Midcap Opportunities Fund-Regular Plan-Growth 10 97n41.:zo1 5,oo,oo,ooo 870145.141 4,40, 11,578 

HDFC Top 100 Fund-Regular Plan-Growth 10 55352.8'47 2,65,00,000 23105.707 1,05,00,000 

ICICI Pru Mid Cap fund-Regular Plan-Growth 10 556398.liSS 5,00,00,000 495013.973 4,39,51,297 

ICICI Pro Multi Cap fond-Regular Pla n-Growth 10 121708.t)SO l ,S0,00,000 37976.222 1,0 5,00,000 

ICICI Ptu Value Discove ry Fund-Regu lar Plan-Growth 10 48993.853 70,00,000 399599.675 5,38,94, 340 

S81 Bluechlp Fund-Regular Plan.•Growth 10 1820568.474 6,50,00,000 1561673.610 5142,83,867 

SBI Focused Equity Fund-Regular Plan-Growth 10 61.41&2.!;52 7,70,00,000 475391.234 5,48,37,245 

(a.I Total Other Current Investments (Cost Price) 48,95,00,000 38,05, 76,776 

{Lt!H)/Add ~ ProviJJQA for (dlmunatfon) / appred,tlon lo v.iue of other current lnvutment 

a.s investment In Unquo1td Units of Mt.1tUal fund 

A~is Bluechip Fund - Regular Plan -Growth (24,39,125) ·-· 
A~is focused 25 Plan Fund - Regular Pla n ·Growt h (31,37,S26) · - · -
os·p Equfty Opportunitle s Fund -Regular Plan- Growth (1,44,31,016) 70,S3,870 

franklin India Prima fund-Regular Plan-Growth (1,79,72,288) 61,41,650 

HDFC Midcap Opportunitie s fund-Regula r Plan-Growth (1,18,49,516) 49,63,671 

HDFC Top 100 fund-Regular Plan-Growth (74,15,778) 11,1S, 308 

ICICI Pru Mid Cap fund-Regular Plan-Growth (1,41,06,723) 38,32,402 

IC ICI Pru Multi Cap Fund-Regular Plan-Growth (99,28,136) 7,25.012 

ICICl Pru Value Discovery Fund-Regula r Plart-Growth (18,20,370) 45.63,096 

SSI Bluechip Fund•Regular Plan-Growth (1,08,35,175) 69,48,105 

SBI Focused Equity Fu nd•llegula r Plan-Growth (34,14,174) 1,19,79,231 

lb) Total Appreciation measured at Fair value through Profit & Loss (9, 73,49,827) 4, 73,22,345 

Total Other Current lnvestmenh (valued at Fair M.trl<et as per Ind AS)-{a+b) 39,21,50,173 42,78,99,121 

Accregate market value of Other Current Investments In Unquoted•Motual Fund 39,21,50,173 42, 78, 99•,121 

Agc,egate provision tor Unreallnd (loss)/G• ln In the value of other <urrent lnvesu,,ents (9, 73,49,827) 4, 73,22,345 

Prlocfpal loss on Dlmunatlon In value of lnvestm,nt In Mutual Fund on FMV due to 

Temporaty ph• se (time of COVJD-19) Debited as htraordln .. ry Item In P & L A/c. 9,73,49,827 - --
AdJ•stment : (Less) · Deferred Ta~ Assets arises on such l oss ,ecosnlsed as btroordlnary Items (1,41,15,000) - ·· 
.Net of Tia of [ xt raordlnary Items (Prov fo, Olmunatlon in value of lnvestme_nt Dr. to P &. L) 8,32,34,827 - ·-

lnde•ed Cost of ArqulsaUon of Current lnvestmtntttn Unquotf'd~Mut\llill Fund In 

pervlew of Section SS(2)(ac)/112A of Income TaK Act,1961 lor Carried forward 49,30,61,757 41,99,85,912 

' . 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part of The Standalone Financial Stateme.nts for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS As at 31st As at 31st 

7 TRADE RECEIVABLES March, 2020 {Rs.) March. 2019 (Rs., 

(Unsecured and Considered Good) 

Due for more than six months - -
Others 3,87,65,935 6,92.10.833 

3,87,6S,935 6,92,10,833 

8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
(a) Cash In Hand 2,70,663 1.,95,.359 

(b) Balance.s with Banks 

(I) In Current Accounts 6,63,2S,163 9,79,003 
(11) In Fixed Deposit AG<ounts 17,95,783 .19,37,89.1 
(111; In Unpaid Dividend Account for unclaimed dividend 4,6S,206 4,09,088 

Cash at bank balanci.s (b) 6,85,86,152 33,.1.5,982 

Cash and cash Equivalent as per Standalone Statement ,;,f Cash Flow 6,88,56,815 36,21,341 

9 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

(Unsecured and Considered Good) 

(a) (i) Staff Advances (Attributed to Other Employees, 2_,57;,703 2.35.003 
(ii) Staff Advances (Attributed to Related Party) ·- 75,000 

(b) Security Deposits 30,59,720 28,7S,095 
(c) Prepafd Expenses 8,30,847 4,11,124 
(d) Balances with Government Authorities 

(I) Goods & Service Tax (GST) Credit Receiva.),le 32,46,846 32,84,917 

(ii) Export Refund of Goods & Service Tax (GST) Receivable 33,84,104 1,20,58,118 

(iii) Provislon,11 GST Credit Receivable in Next Year 10,3n 11,048 
(e) Advance recoverable in cash Qr In kind or for value to be received 23,14,331 16,86,S34 

1,30,98,929 2,06,36,839 

10 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
Exeess of Funded Value of Group Gratuity over Actual Valuation 

as per lnd-AS-19 and or (Provision for Gratuity Uabllity) 
' 

25,0Q,191 (12,80,041) 

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31St March, 2019 

11 SHARE CAPITAL No. oJ Snate.s Amount (Rs.) Na. of '5ti\Uf-(" Amount (Rs.) 

(ii) Authorised : 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/· each with voting (ights 40,00,000 4,00,00,000 40,00,000, 4 00,00,000 

(bl Issued ; 

Equiry Shares of Rs. 10/ · each with voting rig~ts ~ 3.00,00,000 30.00,000 3,00.00,000 

(c) Subscribed and fully paid-up (In cash) : 

Equiry Share~ of Rs. 10/· each with voting ligtlts ~ 3,00,00,000 30,00,000 3,00,00.000 

Notes : (I) Reconcillatlon of tht number of shares and am2unt at the b~g,nnln,t and at thf: f'nd 2t the 1e22rt1n1 e:trlod : 

As at 31st Man:h, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 
Partlcvlars No.of Sh.tu Amount (Rs.) Na. al ~harit, Amount (Rs.) 

Be1lnnlng of the yur Le. opening Balances of Issued, 

Subscribed & ·fully Paid-up lqulty shares with voting rl&hts 30,00,000 3,00,00,000 30,00,000 3,00,00,000 

End of the year I.e. Closlnc Balances of l.ssu<d, 

Subscribed & fully Paid-up Equll)' sharos with vot1n1 llcht< 30,00,000 3,00,00,000 30 00,000 3,00,00,000 

(II) 0.,taMs of shares held b~ the holdln& cem~••~. tht ultlm•te holdln& corof!!n~, thflr subsldlarlu and assocl1j~ : 
As at 3151 March, 2020 A5 at3lst March, 2019 

Particulars Ho. ~ 5.Nft'S Amount (Rs.) No. of 9'•,ft Amount (Rs.J 

Sharu held by holdlnJ company, the utllmat• holdlnc 

Co .. their subsidiaries ond assoclolu (wl!h vo1lng rights) Nil &A,. NIL &A 

(iii) O~t•tls gl shares h•ld bi .. ch shoreholdYs holdln1 more than 5% shares : 

Namt of ,ht Sha~h2ltlers ltll ~re PrgmgJfl'$ G[QU2 As at 31st Ma~h. 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 
with voU01 rl1htsl No.of5haru " of holdln.1 No. of Sh•1e1, 1' ct hoCcflr.1 

Oabrtvala Constructions Private Umlte.d 3,85,600 12.85% 3,85,600 12.85% 
Asheesh Oabriwal 6,62,600 22.09% 6,62..600 22.-09% 
Kumkum Oabrlwal l ,80,100 6.00% 1,80,100 6.00% 
Nlrmal Kumar Oabrlwol• 9,65,000 32.17" 9,65,000 32.17% 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part of The Standalone Financial Statements for the Vear Ended 31st March. 2020 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 

12 OTHER EQUITY 
(a) Securities Premium Account 

Sa lance as per Last Account 

(b) General Resen,e 
Balanre as per Last Account 

(less)/ Add : Tra~sferred (to)/ from Profit & Loss Account 

Closlnj Balance of General Resen1e 

(C) Surplus In Statement of Profit and loss 

Balance as per Last Account: Surplus /(Deficit) 

/Ltss} : Othtr Comprth~nslvt In'°"'" (Unrtallstd Gain of fq.Orltnttd Units of 

Units of Mutual Fund) 01 an 01/04/101B /Ntt of TDK} trf./regr-oupptd 

Add : 'frl. of Profit for the Year 

(less) : Actual Dividends Declared to be distributed to 

equity shareholders • Rs. 2.50 per share 

(Previous year Rs. 2.50 per sha,e) 

(Less) : Ta~ on dividend 

Add/ (Less) ; Amount transferred from/ (to) General Reserve 

Closing Balance of Profit & Loss Account 

Id) Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance as .per Last Account 

Add; OtMr Comprthtnslvt lncomt (Unrealised Goin af Eq.Or/Mrtd Units of 

Units of Mutual Fund} OS an 01/04/201B (Net of TOK} trf./rtgr-oupptd 

(less)/ Add; Othtr Comp. (loss)/lncome for lht vear [Unrealised (loss)/ 

Gain on Eq. Oriented Units of Mu1ual fund)• on Equllylnstn.immenlS 

Add/(u,ss) : Def. lnco,ne Tu uab./(Assets) on above Othe, Comp. tnc,;,me 

Closing Balance of Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Other Equity 

13 FINANOAL LIABILITIES : SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 
loan, Pavable on dtmand ffom Bank (Working Captt-al Loan)· Secured 

(i) Cash Credit loan from Cltlbank N .A. (In Rs.) 

(ii) Packlng Credit rn 1ndian Currencies from The Citlbank 

Amouffl (As.I 

67,85,00,000 
(2,43,00,000) 

(4,61,53,769) 

3.09,U,969 

(1,52,40,800) 

(75, 00,000) 
(15,41,646) 

2,43,00,000 

4;61,98,345 

(4,73,22,345) 

11. 2.4,000 

Am°"nt (Al ,) 

10,00,000 

6S,42,00,000 

17,554 

65,52,17,554 

As at 31st 
March, 2020 (Rs.) 

2,00,00,000 
2,00,00,000 

Notes , Loans Repayble on dtmand muns Workfo& Capltal loans ire securtd by the h~pothtculon of Comp1n,'s entire stock, 

book d.ebts and othtr curreni auets bolh present and future and also secured by first chars• of fixed •nets of the 

company, equitable mor1ca1• of factory land and building situated at Dhulaprh by way of collateral sKUrlty. 

As a! 31st 

14 TRADE PAYABLE March,2020(R.s-.) 

(a) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

(b) Others· Creditor$ in r espect of purchse of goods & sen1kes 3,41,69,S89 
3,41,69,S89 

Amounct,1:1.) 

55,85,00,000 

12,00,00,000 

t,68,859 

(3,83,75,844) 

12,10,94,862 

8,28,87,877 

(75,00,000) 

(15,41,646) 

(12,00,00.000) 

3,83, 75,8,44 

89,20,501 

(10,98,000) 

10,00,000 

67,85,00,000 

(4,61,53,769) 

4,61,98,3 45 

67.95,44,576 

Asat3lst 

March, 2019 (Rs.) 

1,62,90,023 

1,50,00,000 

3, 12,90,023 

As at 31st 

March, 2019 {Rs.) 

2,08,91,214 

2,08,91,214 

Notes : The,e ere no transacUon entered ;and delay In payment made to the suppllers as defined.under the "Micro, SmaU and Medium Enterprises Oevefopment 

Act, 200fi" (M5MED Act). The details of dlsclosu,.,, u/s.21. of the MSMED Act are as below,. As at 31st As at 31st 
~ Particular$ March, 2020 (Rs.I March, 2019 (Rs.) 

1 PrindPt-1 •moilffl ck,• • ftd rern1lnln, IA'\petd 

2 lnttrut dut an U) ebovt • nd unperd lntuut 

3 lftltruf patd on all dtl.ytd p.tyn\tntl undeir th~ MSMtO Ac:.1. 

4 Pavment made b.tyoncl the appolnt•cl day dutln, the 'fHr 

5 lnten,t du~ • nd ~-pbJe for tht pe,iod of del•'I 01hr than(.)) •bolle 

6 lnu-rcu acvued , ,,d r«-Mln'ini ,.m~ id 

1 "-l'ICUf'lt of furtti,tr Jtl(ttt-f.t ,.IMff'lf~l <filH- • M p,6'pblt ht tl.«t-fd;l"II '(f!• f\ 

15 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET} 
Provision for Income Tax 

(Less) : Advance Income Tax paid & Tax Deducted at Source 

Net of Provision for Income Tax over Advance Income Tax & TOS 

16 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
(a) Statutory liabilltles 

(b) Others liabilities for Expen1es 

M Advance from tustomer$ against sales 

Nil 
Nil 
NIL 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 
NIL 

Asat31s1 

March, 2020 (Rs.) 

3,18,13,090 

(2,56,53,701) 

61,59,389 

As at 31St 

March, 2020 (Rs.) 

97,09,571 

43,27,110 

6,66,860 
1,47,03,541 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

N it 

NIL 

As at 31st 

March. 2019 (Rs.) 

4,68,54,32 3 

(4,01,80,446) 

66,73,877 

As at 31st 

March, 2019 (Rs.) 

1,}9,58,378 

41,16,720 

8.64.285 

1,69,39,383 

.. .::· ,1 • 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part of The Standalone Financial Statements for the-Year Ended 31st March, 2020 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 

17 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2020 

(Amount In Rs.) 

For the vear ended 

31st March, 2019 

(Amount In Rs.) 

SALE OF PRODUCTS (EXPORTED GOODS) 

(al Export Sale of Manufacturing Products "LPG Regulators, Its parU & acceS$0rlltS" 

(I) Sate of LPG Regulators for Cy11nders, a«essories & parts (Non Re,11.ta10,y Seelor Industry 

Codt : Other Machtnt,y and CTA Gr.Code: 11481 & Tarrlf Codt : 84818090 & 84819090) 

Direct fxport Sales in Foreign Currencies 

(n) Sale of Anlcles of Brass used as accessories of LPG Re,ulators [Non Reculatory Sector lndustr,: 

Code: Bue Moterlal and CTA Gr. Code: 7419 & Tarrl!Codt : 74199930) 

Direct Export Sales in Foreign Currencies 
Net E~port Sale of "LPG Regulators, its parts & accessories" 

(bl Domestic Sale of Manufacturing Products "LPG Regulators, Its parts & accessories" 

Sale of Articles of Brass used as accesso<les of LPG Re,uiato,s [Non Re1ul•tory Sector Industry 

Code: S.se ~terlal and CTA G·r. Code: 7419 & Tarrlf Code: 74199930) 
Domestic Sales (Inclusive of GST) 

GROSS SALES 
(less) : GST Recovered on Domestic Sales 

18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 

NET SALES 

(I) Sale of Scrap In Domestic Market (lndudln1 of GSJ1 

(less): GST compontnts of Sale of Scrap 

Net Sale Value of Scrap Materlals 

(fl) Income from Sale of Licence 
(tli) Duty Drawback received 

OTHER. OPERATING REVENUE 

19 OTHER INCOME 

(a) Net Profit/ (Lossl due to Forex rate Fluctuation 

(bl Interest Income {TOS Rs.25,427 /-, Previous Year TDS Rs. 27,710/-) 

(I) Interest from Banks on Flxed Deposits 

(ill Interest from WBSEB on Security Deposits 

(c) Sundry balances written back (net) 

{d) Profit on Redemption of Mutual Fund (for separate consideration) 
(el Profit /(Loss') on Sale of Fixed Assets 

(f) Miscellaneous Receipt 

(1) Prov. for Gratuity written baci</(Actual Provision) as per Acturlal valuation of Gratuity 

20 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED 
Opening Stock of Raw Materials & Components 

(a) Raw M1terlals-lndlgenous (Brass, Zinc & Othersl 

(bl Raw Materlals-lmported (Brass) 

(cl Components-Indigenous (parts of Raw Materials) 

(d) Components-Imported (parts of Raw Materials) 

Add : Net of Purchase of Raw Materials & various components 

(indusive of their fretght etc.) 
(I) Indigenous Purchase. of Raw Mateials & Components 

(ii) Imported Raw Mneri;i,b (Brau) & Components 

6,11,51,846 
(93,28,248) 

73,520 

1,80,681 

2,3S,U,798 
3,00,:44,230 
2,12,68,965 

1,02,13,912 

10,03,96,617 
17,88,33,711 

34,33,S0,009 

13,51,99,823 
47,85,A.9,832 

1,78,528 

47,87,28,360 
(27,233) 

47,87,01,127 

5,18,23,598 
1,s2,o 1,9·35 

95,74,]65 

7,66,00,298 

1,08,10,121 

2,54,201 

101 

55,20,47S 
'l,64,89,480 

3 

37,80,232 

3,68,54,613 

9,10,38,905 

27,92,30,328 

1,31,38,666 
(1,ll,56, 748) 

1,01,S75 

1.69,499 

2,43,02,262 
2,47,01,564 
3,88,57,274 

27,7S,366 

U ,32,42,735 
21,99,95,948 

(Lessl : Closing Stock of Raw Materials & Components 
(al Ra.w Materials-Indigenous (Brass, Zinc & Othersl 

(bl Raw Materials• Imported (Brass) 

(1,98,49,629} (2,35,11.798) 

(2,74,53,S191 (3,00,44,230) 

(3,30,S6,849) (2,72,68,9651 

36,62,04, 770 

19,84,68,634 
56,46, 73,404 

56,46, 73,404 

56,46, 73,404 

6,19,81,918 
3,39,73,803 
l ,08,SS,944 

10,68,ll,665 

129,86,560) 

2,71,074 

7443 

95,76,776 
(929) 

-
(16,60,572) 

52,07,232 

9,06,36,466 

~.32,38,683 

(cl Co111ponents•lndlgenous (parts of Raw Materials} 

Id) Components-Imported (parts of Raw Materials} ___ (,._6_,3,---34_,_,3_3.;;;.2)'--_..:.(8'-',66"-=,94;...:.;.,3c...29""-) __ ('-'1"",0-'2,_13.._,9 __ 1_2)'--_.:c.(9'-', l..:0. __ 38'-'-9---0S-'-'-I. ) 
Net Cost of Raw Materials & Components Consumed 28,3S,74,904 3 4.28,36,244 



NAVIN NAYAR &COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part of The Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020 

for the year ended For the year ended 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 31st Man:h, 2020 31st March, 2019 

(Amount in Rs.! (Amount in Rs.) 

20 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED 
20.1 The ConsUmQtlon of Raw materials consists Geogral,!hlcal , 

(a) Indigenous Cons11mptlon of Raw Materials etc. .9,82, 70,902 13,56,21,508 
(b) Imported Consumption of Raw Materials etc. 18,53,04,002 28,3S,74,904 . 20,72,14,736 34,28,36,244 

20.2 The Consuml!!ion of Raw materials consists Material wise : 
(a) Zinc Alloys 2,99,63,972 4,74,29,647 

(b) Brass Rod/HEX 14,62,42,121 17,01,86,595 
(c) Others (each value less than {1!>10% of purchase) 10,73,68,811 28,3S,74,904 12,52,20,002 34,28,36,244 

20.3 The Val11e of Raw Material lmQorts on CIF Basis ; 

Raw Materials & Components 17,88_,33,711 21,99,95,948 

21 CHANGE INJNVENTQRY : (INCREASE} IN INVEr:!TORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & SCRAP 

Opening Stock of Finished Goods at the beginning of the year 2,42,482 23,42,090 
Openl'ng Stock of Scrap at the beginning of the year 1,02,82,340 74,45,940 
Opening Stock of Traded Goods at the beginlng of the·year - ···-
(le5s) : Closlng Stock of Finished Goods at the end of the year (l,41,86,S23) {2,42,482,} 

(less): Clostng Stock of Scrap at the end of the year (1,14,68,447) (,l.,02,82,340) 

Net of (Increase) In Inventories of Finished Goods & Scrap (1,S1,30,148) {7,36,792) 

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 
(a) Salaries, Wages & Bonus: 

• Paid to Key Managerial Perso11nel (As per Ind AS-24) 1,29,03,4S9 92,33,338 
• Paid to Other Employees 6,31,7i,S41 7,60,76,000 5,91,40,9t0 6,83, 74,248 

(b) Employers Contribution to Provident Fund & other funds 
(I) Employers Contribution ro Provident Fund etc. 73,28,038 64,13.833 
(II) Employers Contribution to Group Gratuity fund with llC 28,46,147 1,01,74,185 '32,39,S58 96,S3,391 

(c) Staff Welfare Expenses 
(I) Employers Contribution to ESI 12,65,330 16,41,,205 
(ii) Employers Contribution to Welfare Fund S,430 3,810 
(m; Other Staff Welfare Expenses 23,0S,926 '35,76,686 10,13,65S 26,58,670 

8,98,26,871 8,06,86,309 

22.1 A5 per Ind AS -19 • "Employees Benefit", the disclosure defined in the 

Accounting Standard are as below :-

I Defined Contribution Plans : The Company's Contrlbutlon to Recognised Provident Fund wlth "Employees 
Providend Fuf)d Organisation" is covered under defined Contrlbutior> plan & the disclosure are as below ;• 

Cu,rent Vear Ended 31/03/202.0 Pr,vious Year f nde6 31/03/2019 
Paniculars (Amount In Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

Employer's Contribution to Providend Fund etc. 73,28,038 64, 13.833 

II Defined Benefit Plan : The d1sdosure for defined benefit plans based on actuarlal report of Funded with life 

lr>surance Corporat ion of lndfa as "Gratuity Benefit" as per Ind AS • 19 are as below:-

current Year Ended 31/03/2020 Previous Year Ended 31/03/2019 
A. Change In Ptesent Value of Defined Benefit Obli&!tions : [Gratul~ Funded • In Rs.) [Gratuity Funded • In Rs.) 

Pre,sent Value of Defined Benefit Obllgatlons as at the beginning of th<! year 1,97,09,090 1,38,SG,542 
Interest Cos:t 14,78,182 10,39,241 
current Servke C.ost 13,68,267 10,56,915 
BenefJts paid bv ~he Funded Group Gratuity SG.hemes (27,404) (1,26,900) 
Net of Actuarial Losses/ (Gafnsl rMognised during the vear (.24101,833) 38,83,292 
Present Value of Deflned Benefit Obllgai'lons as at the end of the year 2,01,26,302 1,97,09,090 



NAVIN NAVAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part of The Standalone Financial Statements for the Vear Ended 31st March, 2020 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 
22.1 As per Ind AS 19 - "Employees Benefit", the disclosure defined in the 

Accounting Standard are as below (continuing} :• Current Vear Ended 31/03/ZOZO Piev,ous Yur Ended 31/03/lOI 9 

Partkulars IGratui~ Funded · In Rs.2 !Gratuity Funded - ill Rs.) 

B. Chan1e In the Fair Value of Plan Assets : 
Fair Value of the Plan Assets at the beglnnl11g of the ye.ar 1,84,29,049 l,42,37,073 
Expected/ Actual Return on th• Plan Assets 15,91,185 12,59,043 

Contribution paid by the Employer to under Group Gratuity Fund 26,33,663 30,59,833 
~nefit p• rd by the Funded Sc:he.mes from Group G.ratu,tyfund (27,404) {l .26,900) 

A<1u•rtal Galn / llo<Sl of the ?Ian Assets - -
Fair Value of the Plan Assets at the encl of the year 2,26,26,493 l,84,29,049 

C. Reconclllatlon of Present Value of Defined Benefit 

Obli&!tlon and the Fair Value of Assets : 
Pre:se-nl V• IU~ or Oefined ~nefit Oblig.ition as ~l th~ ~nO·of the ye1r 2,01,26,302 1,97,09,090 

F•lr V,lue of the Plan Assets at the end of the year (2,26,26,493) (1,84,19,049) 

(Assets)/ l iabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet as "Current Assets/Uablllttes• (2S,00,191) 12,80,041 

D. jlocomel l Ex11enses reco11nised in the Profit & Loss Account : 
CLJtr.ent ~Mee Cost 13,68,267 10,56,915 

Life Cover Premium/Mortali,v E~p. pald(incluswe of GST) 
und~t Group Gri toitv f und to UCI 2,08,15S 1,76,576 

On A/c. of Revenue Expense• of Group Gratlll,v f!md paid 4,329 3,149 

Interest Cost 14,78,182 10,39,241 

Expected/ Actual Return on the Pion Assets jtS,91,185) (12,59,043) 

Net of Actunlal Losses ,ecognfsed during the vear (24,01,833) 38,83,292 

Total of Net (Income)/ EJCpense rec;ognised 111 the Profit & loss 
Account• (See Note below as "G") (9,34,085) 49,00.130 

E. Investment Details(" of Total ln1,estedl : 
Life Insurance Corporation of India • Insurance Policies 100.00% 100.00% 

f . Prlnci11al Actuarial Assum11tion used : 
Discounted Rate (per annum) Compound 7.25% 7.50% 

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.50% 7.50% 

Rate of Salary increase (per annum) 3.00% 7.00% 

Mortalfty Rate UC UIJlmate (Re1,lsed 2005) LIC Ultimate (1994-96) 

(•l G. (CREDITEDllDEBITEO IN PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT jN£Tl 
iota I of £mployers Contnbution paid to Group Gratuity Fund 
for UCI Contribution & Stotutory Audit Fees Debited to P & LA/c. 2_8,46,147 32.39,558 
lles.s)/ Add : Nrt of Provision for Gratuity (Credited)/debited l o Staternent of P & L A/c. (37,80,232) 16.60.Sn 

(9,34,085) 49,00.130 
. 

22.2 leave Encashment benefit for unutilised leave are encashed at tlie end of year and charged to Profit & Loss Account under the 

head of"Salary & Wages". There are no rules for any carried forward unutllised leave benefit. 

Current Vear Ended 31/03/207.0 Prevlou, Year Ended 31/03/2019 

23 FINANCE COSTS (Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

(a) Interest Expenses on Working Capital Borrowing from Bank 16,99,006 14,05,514 

(b) Other Borrowing Costs - Loan Processing fees 2,89,100 2,10,000 
19,88,106 16,15,514 

,·. 
\ \ f 

., 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part of The Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS Cu"ent Ye•r Ended 31/03/2020 Previous Yoar Ended 31/03/ 2019 

24 OTHER EXPENSES 
(a) (i) Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts •Indigenous 

(ii) Consumption of Stores and Spare Pairts -Imported 

(b) Power & fuel 

(c_) Travelling and Conveyance 
(I) Travelling Expensi,s 

(Ii) Local Conveyance Expenses 

(Iii) Car/ Bus Hire Charges for Staff 
(iv) Motor Car/ Vechlcles Expenses 

(v) Motor Cycle Expenses 
(d) freight and ·Forwardfng 

(i) Net of freight Ol!tward Expenses 
(ii) local Freight,loading & unloading Charges 

(e) Rent, Rates & Taxes 
(I) Offi(e Rent (paid to related party as per ind AS 24) 

(ii) Rates & Taxes 
{I) Legal & Pr9fessional Charges (other than finance Cost) 

(I) Consultancy Fees 

(ii) Internal Audit Fees 
(g) Repairs & Maintenance 

(I) Repairs & Maintenance • Buildings 

(ii) Repairs & Maintenance• Machinery 

(iii) Repairs & Maintenance • Others 

(h) Testlng & Certlfication Charges 
(f) Advertisement & Business Promotion Expenses : 

(i) Statutory Advertlsement 

(ii) Other "-dvertisement 
(iii) Business Promotion Expenses 
(iv) Trade Fair Eltibition Expenses 

OJ SMurity Service Charges 

(k) Comrnunlcation Expenses 

(i) Telephone & Internet Charges 
(ii) Postage & Tefegrarn 

(I) Insurance 

(m) Bank Charges (Other than Finance Cost) 

(n) Printing & Stationery 

(o) Donation & Contribution : 

(f) Oonatlon 

{Ii) Fees & Subscription 

(pl Payment & Provision to Auditors Remuneration :­

(f) Stat utory Audit Fees provided 

(ii) Tax Audit Fees provided 

(lff) GST Audit & Certification fees 
(iv) Other Certification Fi,es pald 

M Secretarial Audit Fees provided 
(vi) Cost Audit Fees providi,d 

(q) Non•E•ecutive Director's Sitting Fees 
(i) Paid to related party as per Ind AS-24 

(m Paid to other non-t,•ecutive directors 

(.r) Miscellaneous E•penses 

(Amount In Rs.) (Amount in Rs,) 

1,69,22.,S88 

73,42,882 

78,108 

16,77,173 
9,39,256 

97,Z7S 

18,74,301 

4,46,593 

1,50,000 
6,98,627 

10,84,348 

21,1SO 

4S,1S,320 

32,02,326 
6,26,688 

28,S45 

5,13,000 
3,75,274 

11,98,255 

2,52,473 

4,36,106 

32,100 

38,400 

1,31,250 

43,750 
15,000 
s,ooo 
7,500 

17,500 

10,000 

30,000 

1,69,22,588 

l,S2,23,989 

1,01,34,694 

23,.20,894 

8,48,62'7 

11,05,498 

83,44,33.<I 

23,87,731 

21,iS,074 
16,44,915 

6,88,579 

12,18,444 

7,.41,137 

2,96,039 

70,500 

2,20,000 

40,000 

3,2S,899 

6,46,48,942 

2,1S,Sl ,081 
S4,770 

l,01,27,387 
1,03,107 

16,32,345 
9,58,496 
1,07,842 

10.46,305 
8.60,809 

~.50,000 
16,51,967 

12,77,080 
22,500 

1,63,319 
28,30,899 

5,74,383 

27,293 
1,43,000 

15,80,605 
11,77,065 

2,97,409 
4,88,739 

26,500 
34,040 

1,31,25'0 

43.750 

8,500 

7,500 

17.500 

10,000 

30,000 

2,16,05,851 

1,52.57,995 

1.2.9.29,177 

19,07,114 

18,01.967 

12,99,580 

35,68,601 

15.4&,076 

29,V,963 
14,37.402 

7,86,148 

12,40.620 
9,87,020 

2,69,984 

60,540 

2,08,500 

40:000 

2,98,484 

6,81,73,022 

,,.,, 
•. 

-



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part.of The Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS C-urttnt Year Endod 31/03/2020 Provio"5"V .. , Ended 31/03/2019 

25 TAX EXPENSES 
A Amount recognised In Profit & Loss 

Current Income Tax 

Income Ta~ for earlier years 

Total Curtent Income Tax 

Deferred Ta~ liability pertaining to Current Year 

Total of Tax Expenses Recognised in Profit and loss IA! 

B Amount recognised In Profit & Loss as Exceptional Items 

Deferred Tax (Llabilltv) of Unrealised Loss on Equity Oriented Units of Mutual fund 
Total Recognised during the financial year In Profit & Loss as Exceptional Items IB) 

C Amount recognised In Other Comprehensive Income 

Deferred Ta• Liability 

On items that will not be reclauified to Profit or loss 

Equity instuments throught Other Comprehensive Income i.e. 

Deferred Tu \uabllitv) of Unrealised (Los~) /Gain on Eq. Oriented un;ts ot Mutual Fund 

Total Rococnls•d during the llnanci.l yoar In Profit & Loss •• Other Comprehensive Income [Cl 

26 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - Statement of Profit & Loss 
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss 

Re-E"quity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income I.e. 

Unreallsed (loss)/Galn of Equity Oriented Units of Mutual Fund on 

valuation of fair marlcet value as on year ended date 

(less) : lncomt TaM (Deferred TaM Uablllty) relating to Items that 

will not be re-dasslfled to Profit and Loss as stated above 

.Net of Other Comprehensive (Loss)/ Income recognised during the year 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in P.s.) 

3, 18,13,090 

3,18,13,090 

7,77,000 

3,2S,90,090 

(1,41,15,000) 

1u.24.oool 

(4,73,22,345) 

(11.24,000) 

(4,61.98.345) 

4,68,54,323 

13,569 
4,68,67,892 

2,79,000 
4,71,46,892 

(10.98,000) 

89,20,S0l 

(10,98,000) 

78.22.501 



NAVIN NAYAR &COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part of The Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 202q 

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 

(Amount In Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

27 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 

27. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & OTHERS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for} 

a} Claim against the company not acknowledge as debt NII NII 

bl Letter of Credit Given by bank on Import : 

Value of Letter of Credrt issued by bank on liehalf of tile Campany 1,74,97,958 1,93,92,248 

27.2. Details on derivatives instruments and unhedged foreign currencv exposures 
.A Only one derivative as "forward exchange contracts• is open as on 31st Man:h, 2020. These transactions have been undertaken to act 

as economic hedges for t he Company's exposures to •various risks in foreign exchange markets and may/may not quallfy or des'fi:nated 
as hedging instruments. The Forward exchange contracts, which are not intended for trading or speculative purpOse but for ht!dge 
purposes to establish the amount of reporting currency a11allable at the settlement date of certain receivables. The accounting for 
these transactions is stated in Notes of accounts. The details of exposures are u below:-

Oetailf 2t Forward exchange contracts ex11osures are as below:• 
CUrff- Current Year 31/03/2020 Previous Year 31/03/2019 

Particulars ncles 
= 

(In Foreign Currencies) (in ForeiJ1.n Currencies) 
(a) OpMlnc forward exct,ance contract as on the 

beglnnlnJ of the year for Export Receivables USO $16,00,000 $33,50;000 

·--·· do -·--···-·--·· GBP ·- ESS,000 

(b) Forwa(d •~change controcts made during the 
flnanclal year for Export Recei•ables USO $37,SO,OOO $29,50,000 

(c) Forw1rd e•ch~nce. contracts materlalls.ed 

during th" yea, !Tom Export Recelv1bles USO $28,50,000 $47,00,000 

-· do ···--- GBP - £55,000 

[d) Closing fO<Ward exchange contract as on the 
Md of the year for Ellport Receivables USD $25.oo.ooo $16,00,000 

8 Details of Hedged Foreign Currencies Ex11asures as on the i,:ear ended valued at the Closing Exchange Rate 
Curre- As at 31st Man:h, 2020 As at 3:1.st Marth, 2019 

Particulars ncies jln Foreign Currencies! •(tn Foreign Currencies) 
(a) Export Receivables In foreign currencl~ as on 

year ended • valued at dosing exchance rate USO $S,35,909 S9.98,461 
year ended - valued atd01ln1 e,cthan11 rate GBP - -~u -

(I>) MTM • Profit on Outstanding forward uchance 
contu1cts as an y@ar ended ~Nor to b~ recognls~d Rupee -- R s .33,27.920 

(<) MTM - loss. If •ny on Ouutanding forward exchange 
contn1cts as on yur ~r,dNI ~ Not to be recognised Ru~e Rs. 16,90,944 -

C Details of Unhedged Foreign Currencies Ex11osures as on the i,:ear ended valued at the Closing Exchange Rate 
Curre- As at 31st Man:h, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 

Particulars ncies 
.--C.. 

(In Foreign Currencies) (in Forel1Rn Currencles) 
(a) Export Recelvablos In Foreign currMdes as on 

yHr ended - valued at dosing e,change ,ate GBP - £401 

lbf Outstanding Sundry Cteditors agalnsl Import USO $2,31,2S6 Sl.26,128 

(<) A;dvance recelved Cutomers 1ealon Export $ales USO $3,616 -··~-
-··· do ····-·-·----- GBP £4,201 ----

(d) Advance paid to suppliers against Import USO $3,660 ·--

0 Details of Unhedged Foreign Currencl!! Ex11osures uon the ir:1ar ended v_alued on bookins rat1 onli,: 
Curre- As at 31.St March, 2020 As at 31.st March, 2019 

Particulars ncles (rn Foreign Currencies) (tn foreign Currencies) = Advanc• paid against expens11~ EURO €10,3S0 {4,350 

Current Year Ei,ded 31/03/2020 Previous Year Ended 31/03/ 2019 

27.3 C. I.F.Value of Imports : (Amount In R.s.) (Amount in Rs.) 

(a) Raw Materials & Components 17,88,33,711 21,99,95,948 
(b) Consumable Stores & Spares - 54,770 
(c) C!pltal Goods - 60,87,681 

Total C.I.F. Value of Imports 17,88,33,711 22,61,38,399 

._ . 



NAVIN NAYAR &COMPANY 

DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part of The Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 202,~ 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS Curre~t Year Ended 31/03/2020 Previous Ye,ar Ended ~l/03/201-9 

27.4 Exeenditure in Foreign Currenclr'. : (Amount In Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

Travelling Expenses 45,20,301 65,29,78S 

Trade Fair & Exlbition El<penses (net of pmt) 8,33,ns 3,93,623 

Testing & Certlflcatron Expenses 20,80,914 12,25,438 

Business Promotion Ei<pe(lses - 4,00,467 

Advance pafd against Trade Exibltion expenses 8,17,909 3,64,530 

Total Expenditure In Foreign Currency 82,52,849 89,13,843 

27.S Earning in Foreign Exchange : 
Net Export of Manufactured Goods calculated on FOB basis 47,85,49,832 56,46.73,404 

Total Earning In Foreign Currency '47,85,49,832 56,46, 73,404 

27.6 Details of Government Grants : 
Government grants received by the Company dur)ng the Cunent Ye,, Ended 31/03/20211 PreviO<Js Year Ended 31/03/2019 

year towards - Other Incentive like !Amount In Rs. J (Amount In Rs.) 

Duty Drawback Received 95,74,765 1,08,S5,944 

Sale of licence 1,52,01,935 3,39.73.803 

27.7 Details of Segment Information : 
(a) Information about Primary Business Segments:- The Company is prlmarily engaged In the business of manufacturing of Engineering 

Goods like Llqu1fied Petroleum Ga.s Regulator {lP Gas Regulator),. Accessorfes and Parts thereof. Since lnhe1ent the nature of all these 

manuf.lcturlng Items have been grouped as a single segment in the financial statement As the Company's business activi ty falls within 

a single primary business segment the dlsclosure requirements In this regard are not applicable. 

(b) lnfgrmat111n about ~conda[ll Business Segments : Current Yur Ended 31/03/2020 Previous Ye1Jr Ended 31/03/2019 

[I) Revenue bit: Geogra1ihical Markets (Amount In Rs.) (Amiount in Rs.) 

Revenue from Operation : Export in Foreign Currencies 47,85,49,832 56,46, 73,41)4 

Revenue from Operation : Domestic 7,67,51,593 55,53,01,425 10,68, 11,665 67,14,85,069 

(ii) Segment Assets bit: Geogra11hlcal M'arkets 

Total Asseu in lndl a (other than E•port reCt'1vable) 72,19,49,343 71,65,37,3:18 
Export receivable represents outside India 3,87,65,935 76,07,15,278 6,92,10,833 78,57,48,161 

[Ill) Capital f)lpenditure Incurred during the year 

In Domestic Markets 2,07,98,061 3,88,47,160 

In foreign Markets -- 2,07,98,061 60,87,6131 4,49,34,841 

27.8 Details of Related Partlr'. Transaction - As 11er Ind AS 24 & Coml!ensation of Kell Management Personnel : 
A) List of Related Parties :-

(a) Main promoters holding more than twenty percent as substantial intrerest of the Company and have slgnif1cance lnfluer,ce over 

the activity:-

Promoters Grou11 Name jholdding more than 20%) Relationship 

Nirmal Kumar Dabriwala [holding 32.17 %) Father or Managing Director Sri Asheesh Dabriwal 

Asheesh Dabriwai [holding 22.09%] Managing Director of the Company 

(b) Key Management Personnel & their Relative Involved in Companies activities:-

(i) Sri Asheesh Oabvriwal - Managing Director & Chief E~ecutive Officer of the Company. 

(ii) Smt AnJurri Dhandhanfa-Non E~ecutfve Director of the Company (sister of Managing Director Srf Asheesh Dabriwal) 

(iii) Sri Janak Bhardwaj - E~ecutive Director & Ch1ef Operat,ng Officer of the Company, 

(iv) Sri Ashok Kumar Singh - Chlef Flnaocia) Officer of the Company. I 

(11) Ms. Suruchi Tiwari - Company Secretary-cum-Compilance Officer or the Company. 

(C) Enterprises where Key M anagement Personnel & their Relatives have substantial interest and/ or significance lnflu,ence I.e. 

"Promoter Group" : 

Oabriwala Construction~ Private Limited 

BJ The Company has entered Into transactions with certai11 parties as listed above during the year under consideration. Full 

dlsclosures have been made and the board considers such transactions as being in the normal course of business at rates 

agreed between parties. Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31st march, 2020 and balances 

outstanding as at 31$t March, 2020 : 
(a) Related 1iam,: transaction during the iear ended 31st March, 2020 Curn~t Yr.E/1d~I PrevlOU,S Yr~E'ndtd 

H•ad 2fAccoun11 frume Ingar 9.! !!!~ !hi!! 1~) Categories of' Related Part:ic lll.Q~lmll 1!!111 ~1103/2012 IR!-I 
Emg12ite-s Ben1:fll ~as~s lnsurr:NI for kt~ Manigeme.nt Personnel 

Salary & Wages and Bonus Key Management Personnel 1,29,03,459 92,33,338 

Non-Executlve Director's Sitting Fees 

paid to AnJum Dhandhanla Kev M anagement Personnel 10,000 10,000 

Offic.e Rent paid to 

Dabriwala Constructions Pvt. ltd. Promoter Group 1,50,000 1,50,000 

Total of Related Party Transaction during the year 1,30,63,459 .93,93,338 

(bj Outstanding of Related p~!!l/: transa~ion as al 31st M ar~h, 2020 

Total of Related Party Transaction outstanding as at year ended -- 75,000 



NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

OHP INDIA LIMITED 
Notes Forming Part of The Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March. 2020 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 
27 .9 Details of Earning Per Shares : 

Basic; & DIiuted {ekcludlng and Including E)traordlnary Items) ot 
Earning Per Share on Continuing Operation as wen as Total Operations 
Net Profit fOI' the year from Contlnuln1 Operations attributable to the equity 
shareholders (Amount In Rs.) 

CU!NfttYr.~ 

3J/Q3{10ZQ l!•-J 
PrevlOllS Yr.(pded 

31/03/2019 jAs.l 

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/· each per Value (In numbers) 

Basic & Olluted le•cluding & Including Extraofdinary Items) of Earning Per Shares 
on. Continui ng Operations as weU as Total Operations jAmount In Rs.I 

27.10 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) : 

3,09,U.969 

30,00,000 

~10.30 

CSR amount to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof by the Company during the year Is 

Rs.29. 71,000/- (Previous Year Rs,24,30,000/·) and the entire CSR expenses Contributed/paid to Prime Minister national Relief Fund. 

27.11 Events after the Reporting period : 
The Board of Directors have recommended final eQuity dividend of Rs.2.50 per fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.10/- each, i.e, @25% of the 

total Equity Share Capital, aggregating Rs.75 lakhs for out of profit of Financial Year 201,9-20 (year ended 31/03/2020), The actual dividend 

amount and their taxes will be reflected at the t l me of actual declaration In AGM, 

27.12 Details of Deferred Tax Assets : 
(a) During the year, the Company recorded the cumulative net timing difference as a "Deferred Tax Assets" up to 31st March, 2020 of 

Rs. 1,56,06,000/· (Prevlous Year Rs..ii,44,000/·J. The Net Deferred Tax Liability of Rs.7,77,000/-debited to Statement of Profit and Loss 

forthe year ended 31st March, 2020. (Previous Year deferred tax llabllity debited of Rs.2,79,000/·). The Net Deferred Tax Assets of 

Exceptional Item (loss from Mutual Fund due to COVID-19) Adjusted in Profit & Loss Account of Rs.l,41,1S,000/-. Deferred Tax Liabinty 

on Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March 2020 adjusted Rs.11,24,000/· (Previous Year Rs.10,98,000/•). 

(bl In the current flnancial year Company opted U/s. llSBM (Lower TaKrateJ of the I.T.Act.1961 and accordingly the Income T.ix Liability for 

the year ended 31st March, 2020 has been determined after taking into consideration the benefits available under the provislons of the 

income Tu Act, 1961 and accordingly Rs.3,18,13,090/· for Cur rent Year income tax has been provided (Previous year Rs.4,68,54,323/· & 
Tax related to earlier year Income Tax of Rs.13,569/-). The above provision for Income Tax in the op1nion of the Management is adequate, 

(c) The Income-Tax assessment of the Company U/s 143(1)(a) )las been rompleted up to Assessment Year 2019-2020. 

27.13 Approval of Financial Statements : 
The Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 30th June, 2020. 

27.14 Previo.us Year Figures : 
The above statement rs prepared accordirig to the Companies Act, 2013. This has significantly lmpacted the disclosure 

and presentation made In the ffnanci;I statements. Previous year's figures have been regmuped/redassified wherever neces.sary to 

correspond with the current year's classific.ation/disclosures. 

27.15 Other Information : 
Other information required by the Companies Act, 2013 are either nil or not applicable In the circumstances of the Company. 

SIGNATORIES TO NOTES "1" TO "27,lS" 

12, 10,94,862 

30,00,000 

~ 4().36 

8, Ca mac Street 

Kolkata - 700 017, 

In terms of our report of even date 

f .o, NAVIN NAYAR & COMPANY 

Chartered Accountants 

Finn Rectstratlon No. 317117E 

NAVIN NAYAR 

Proprietor 

Membership No, OU267 

For and on behalf of the Board 

ASHEESH OABRIWAL· M,O. & C.E.O. (DIN-OOOC4783) 

JANAK BHAI\OWAJ • Director & C.O.O. (OIN-00047641) 

BUOOHAOEB BASU. lndepe"dent Director (DIN~tno 

i\SHOK KUMAR SINGH· Chief fln1nd1I Office, 

The 30th day of June, 2020 
UOIN: 20053267MAAAN37BO 
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Twenty-Ninth Annual General Meeting at Calcutta Chamber of Commerce, 18H, Park Street, Stephen Court, 
Kolkata - 700 071 held on Monday, 28th September, 2020 

folio No. _ ________ DP ID No. ___________ Client Id No. __________ _ 
NameoftheMember _____ _________ _ _ _ _ _ Signature ____________ _ 

Name of the Proxy holder ______ ___________ Signature --~------------
1 certify that I am registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company. 
I hereby record my presence at the Twenty-Ninth Annual General Meeting held on Monday, 28th September, 2020. 

Member's/ Proxy's Signature 
Note : Shareholders / Prm.'Y ho lders desiring Lo attend the meeting should bring their copy of the Annual Report as the same will 
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PROXY FORM- Form NO. MGT-11 
(Pursuant to Section I 05(6) of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 and Ruic 19(3) of the Companies (Mllnagement and Administration) Rules, 2014) 
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from September 28, 2020 to March 31, 2025. 

Signed this ... . .. .. ... day of. . .. ...... 2020 
!Affix Revenue Stamg 

Signature of shareholder .................... . .......... ..... Signature of Proxy holder(s) . . ........ . .. ......... .... . 
Note: I. The Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Oflice of the Company at 10, Middleton Row, Kolkata 700 071, not less 

than 48 hours before the.time.for holding of Annual General Meeting (on or before September 28, 2020 al l 1.00 a.m.). 
2. The form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen s ignature registered with the Company. 



DHP INDIA LIMITED 
BALLOT FORM 

Corporate Identity Number (Cl N) : L65921WB1991PLC051555 
Registered Office: lO, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071 
E-mail : info(@dhpindia.com, Website : www.d ilindia.co.in 
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F'o Ii o No./Client ID No. DP ID NO. --- - ----- - - - - -- - -----------No. of Equity Shares Held __________________________ _ 

I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the Resolution to be passed through ballot for the business 
stated in the Notice of the Company dated 30th June, 2020 by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the 
said Resolution by placing the tick M mark at the appropriate box below : 

Resolution Description I/we assent to VWe dissent to 
Sr. No. the resolution the resolution 

(FOR) (AGAINST) 
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Statements (including the Standalone Financial Statement like Balance 
Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity, 
Cash Flow Statement and other Financial Reports) together with Report 
of the Board of Directors and Auditors report for the year ended March 
31, 2020. 

2 Ordinary Resolution to declare a final dividend of Rs.2.50 per Equity 
Shares (i.e. @25% of Share Capital of the Company) for tne financial 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS 
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TOWARDS MALLICK BAZAR 



If undelivered please return to : 
DHP INDIA LIMITED 
Regd. Office : l 0, Middleton Row, 
Kolkata- 700 071 
Phone : (033) 2229-5735/7995/9626/7929 




